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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEHEARMRSH

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (“Year”), Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”) recorded
a loss before tax of approximately HK$102.4 million. The loss
attributable to the owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$98.4 million (2019: approximately HK$99.1
million).

Total revenue for the Year was approximately HK$66.2 million.
Compared to approximately HK$179.0 million recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2019, it represents a decrease of approximately
63.0%. The Group's operations comprised of 4 segments, i.e.
the manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses,
property investment, debts and securities investment and film
investment and distribution (2019: comprised of 5 segments, i.e.
the manufacturing and trading of optical frames and sunglasses,
property investment, debts and securities investment, film
investment and distribution and money lending).

The largest part of total revenue came from the sales of optical
frames and sunglasses. This decreased by approximately 63.0% or
approximately HK$106.7 million (2019: HK$169.3 million). Eyewear
sales noticeably decreased due to the Group’s termination of
cooperation with a business strategic partner which contributed a
significant amount of revenue in the past year.

For property investment, rental income decreased slightly from
approximately HK$2.3 million in 2019 to approximately HK$2.1
million in 2020. However, it remained relatively insignificant to the
Group's operation.

For debts and securities investment segment, the Group has
recorded a segment loss of approximately HK$1.6 million (2019:
HK$0.7 million). The fair value of the Group's securities investment
amounted to approximately HK$5.7 million as at 31 March 2020.
The management will continue to adopt prudent approach in
investment and monitor the stock markets closely. The Group will
cautiously search for investment opportunities.

For film investment and distribution segment, Filmko Culture
Limited, the holding company of a major film distributor in the
People’'s Republic of China ("PRC"), whose 25% interest was
acquired by the Group in July 2018, showed good performance
in its film distribution business in the PRC. That company issued
five films this Year and recorded a profit after tax of approximately
HK$42.8 million, which had exceeded the profit guarantee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

PROSPECT

The Group is of the view that the manufacturing and trading of
optical frames and sunglasses business for the coming financial year
would be challenging. The unprecedented economic disruption
from COVID-19 (“COVID-19") has brought about volatility and
challenges on a global scale. Even though the COVID-19 epidemic
of certain regions seems under control, the board of directors of
the Company (the “Board” or "Directors”) believed that due to the
economic shutdown is substantial and long-lasting, it is unable to
estimate the impact. The Group will consider whether to increase
outsourcing the manufacturing and production of the products
instead of utilising its own production capabilities, so as to achieve
an optimal business model with reference to current and future
market conditions.

However, on the other hand, the Group is of the view that the film
market in the PRC is facing crisis as well as opportunities. The film
market in the PRC maintained the momentum of continuous growth
in 2019 and the box office of films in the PRC was RMB64,266
million, representing an increase of 5.4% over the corresponding
period of 2018 and remaining the world’s second largest film
market after the North America. The total number of overall
screens in the PRC has increased by 9,708 to 69,787, ranking first in
the world in movie screens for years and consolidating its leading
position in the world. The cinema admission reached 1,727 million,
representing an increase of 11 million as compared to 2018.

Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus epidemic in 2020,
the film market was significantly affected with a loss of over
RMB10 billion in the box office of films. However, as the epidemic
in Mainland China was under control and the PRC has issued
various favourable policies, including the “Announcement on
Temporary Exemption on National Special Funds on Films"*, the
“Announcement on Supporting Policies on Taxes and Fees on
the Films”* and "Other Industries and the Notice on Supporting
Cinemas in Fighting against the Epidemic with Special Discounted
Interest on Films”*, to support the development of the film
industry, the film market in the PRC is gradually recovering.

The Group will stably operate its current film business and further
enhance management on its current film investment, TV drama
investment, script and film and television copyright trading and
artiste management to enhance the business quality. Meanwhile,
it will pay prudent attention to investment opportunities in the
upstream and downstream industry chain of the film business and
the cultural and entertainment industry. The Group will maintain a
prudent attitude in the sound development of the film investments
and distribution business.

i The English translation of the Chinese name(s), where indicated (*) is
included for information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the
official English name(s) of such Chinese name(s).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had no capital commitments,
which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2019: Nil). As at
31 March 2020, the Company had no contingent liabilities (2019:
Nil) in respect of corporate guarantees given to banks for the
general banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group's financial position with cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$28.4 million (2019: HK$13.9 million), short-term
borrowings of approximately HK$30.5 million (2019: HK$20.7
million) and the debt to equity ratio (expressed as a percentage
of non-current liabilities over equity attributable to owners
of the Company) is approximately 12.1% as at 31 March 2020
(2019: 0.9%). The non-current liabilities of the Company mainly
comprised of deferred tax liabilities, deposit received, obligation
under finance leases, interest bearing other borrowings and lease
liabilities amounting to approximately HK$2.4 million, HK$0.1
million, HK$Nil, HK$8.3 million and HK$17.0 million respectively
(2019: HK$2.2 million, HK$0.2 million, HK$0.3 million, HK$Nil and
HK$NIl) which came up a total amount of approximately HK$27.7
million as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$2.7 million). The Group's
equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 March 2020
amounted to approximately HK$229.4 million (2019: HK$303.4
million).

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 May 2020, Elegance Optical Investments Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (the “Vendor”) and
Healthmark Medical Supply Co., Limited (the “Purchaser”), entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Vendor had agreed to dispose of and the Purchaser had agreed
to purchase the property situated at Factory B7, 3/F, Block B, Mai
Hing Industrial Building (of Hing Yip Industrial Centre, Phase |,
Blocks A & B), Nos. 16-18 Hing Yip Street, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(“Property”) at the consideration of approximately HK$10,260,000.
completion for the disposal of the Property shall take place on or
before 17 July 2020 or after completion of quarantine condition,
whichever is later. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company titled “Discloseable Transaction — Disposal of Property”
published on 20 May 2020 for details.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

FULFILLMENT OF PROFIT GUARANTEE OF
FILMKO CULTURE GROUP

The acquisition of 25% of Filmko Culture Limited was completed
on 11 July 2018. Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition, Alex
Film Limited (the vendor and a company beneficially owned as to
72% by Mr. Wong Hoi Fung) shall give a profit guarantee in favour
of the Filmko Culture Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
"Filmko Culture Group”) in the amount of HK$40 million for each
of the years ending/ended 31 March 2019, 31 March 2020 and
31 March 2021. Mr. Wong Hoi Fung, as a guarantor, shall guarantee
by way of continuing guarantee to the Group the due and punctual
performance by Alex Film Limited of its obligations under the profit
guarantee. For further details of the terms of the acquisition, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 22 January 2018,
11 April 2018 and 21 June 2018.

The Board confirmed that based on the audited financial
information of the Filmko Culture Group for the year ended
31 March 2020, the Filmko Culture Group recorded a profit after
taxation of approximately HK$42.8 million. Therefore, the profit
guarantee requirement for the year end 31 March 2020 has been
met.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed 271 (2019: 384) full time
employees in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Salaries, bonuses
and benefits are determined with reference to market terms and
performance, qualifications and experience of each individual
employee, and are subject to review from time to time.

BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

Being one of the major manufacturers and exporters of optical
frames, the Group has put its emphasis on product quality and
production technology development. Putting the customers’
needs on the highest priority, the Group always strives to provide
customers with first class service and full satisfaction.

The Group is also actively identifying and exploring other
investments and business opportunities to broaden its assets and
revenue base. Potential acquisitions or mergers will be assessed by
the Board for expansion of the business segments of the Group.
The Board believes diversified investments are beneficial to the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Following are the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong) and are in
addition to the matters referred to the Management Discussion and
Analysis.

In the normal course of business, the Group's operations, business
performance, financial position and prospects may be exposed to
the following risks and uncertainties:

1. [Economic Conditions and Market Risk

The impact of economic conditions on consumer confidence
and buying habits will affect the sales, revenue and results
of the Group. The economic growth or decline in respective
geographical markets that affected consumer spending
on our products will also affect the Group's business. The
Group continues to implement its strategies to develop and
strengthen penetration of different geographical markets
thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets.

2. Credit Risk and Liquidity Risk
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, loan and interest receivables, equity
investments, amount due from a joint venture, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables, deposits received,
deferred income, obligation under finance leases and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings. The management will
closely monitor the risks attributable to those assets should
there be any significant exposure arise in the future. Details of
the Group's credit and liquidity risks are set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
(Continued)

3.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the
impact of rate changes on interest-bearing financial assets
and liabilities, mainly loan and interest receivables, interest
bearing bank and other borrowings and bank balances at
prevailing market interest rates. The Group's interest rate
risk relates primarily to its interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings subject to negotiations on expiry/renewal date.
The Group currently does not use any derivative contracts
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
risk should the need arise.

Commodities Risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of
commodities used as raw materials in the manufacturing
process, primarily cellulose acetate and potassium gold
cyanide. While the Group may be able to partially offset
these fluctuations with a flexible pricing policy, the Group
bears the risks of fluctuation in the costs of these materials.
Accordingly, rising prices for commodities have affected and
are expected to continue to affect the Group's cost of goods
sold in the form of higher raw materials prices. On the other
hand, decreases in prices for commodities may affect the
value of the Group's inventories. The Group currently does
not use any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to
commodities risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant commodities risk should the need arise.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group conducts its business transactions mainly in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi (“RMB"”) and United Stated dollar
("USD"). As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the USD, the
Group does not foresee any material exchange risk in this
respect. The management closely monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TERMNRRS I

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE
OF PROCEEDS
Rights Issue of 202,184,561 shares

On 18 February 2020, the Company completed its rights issue and
issued 202,184,561 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares, at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per
rights share (the “Rights Issue”). The net cash proceeds received
from the Rights Issue amounted to approximately HK$26,012,000
after share issue expenses. Details of the Rights Issue were set out
in the Company’s prospectus dated 23 January 2020.

According to the said prospectus, the net proceeds from the
Rights Issue was estimated to be approximately HK$26.3 million
and were intended to be used as (i) approximately HK$23.0 million
for repayment of the Group's indebtedness; and (ii) approximately
HK$3.3 million for the general working capital of the Group.

On completion of the Rights Issue, the actual net proceeds were
approximately HK$26,012,000. As at 31 March 2020, HK$9.8 million
had been used for repayment of the Group's indebtedness and
HK$1.8 million had been utilized as general working capital.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had securities investments with a
market value of approximately HK$5.7 million (2019: HK$6.7 million),
representing an investment of 1 listed securities in Hong Kong. The
Group recorded an unrealised fair value gains of approximately
HK$1.8 million (2019: HK$2.1 million) in respect of the securities
investments at the end of financial year. The details of the securities
investments as at 31 March 2020 are as follows:
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6,700,000 7)) - BREBIHD LW BEZ
BE Zli‘iﬁéﬁﬂﬁlifﬁﬂi?ﬁ%#&’éﬁz%
REIE N A EWE41,800,00008 T (= F
— L& 2,100,000 L) - R _E-_TF=
AZ+—B2&EHREFHBUET:

Unrealised Cost of
gain/(loss)  acquisition/fair % of net asset
on fair value  value brought of the Group
Number of % of change for forward from  Fair value as at  as at 31 March
Company name Stock code  shares held shareholdings the year 31 March 2?%19 31 March 2020 2020  Principal activities
&£Ee
—F-0E EARRER
FEARE ZAS+-B  RZBCF¥E -k
BBHzReE  2WERE/ ZA=+-H =ZA=+-8
AFER RSk FRHBE ERESSE W3R (BE) ARE ZARE BEFEEML ZERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET
SEHEEEERAR 8160 10,008,000 = = 6,705 = —  Provision of tutoring
Goldway Education services to secondary
Group Limited school students and
primary school students
in Hong Kong.
REEHR/SERUESE
PR
ERHAEEERAR 2322 6,872,000 8.34% 1,821 = 5,704 2.59%  Provision of vessel chartering,
Hong Kong trading, money lending,
Chaoshang Group factoring and finance
Limited leasing service.
REmmEE 25 EE.
RERHERE-
1,821 6,705 5,704
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE-HERELHSE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This report highlights its Environmental, Social, and Governance
(the "ESG") performance by the Group, with disclosure reference
made to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("”Stock Exchange”).

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
areas, namely, environmental and social areas of the business
operations in the PRC and Hong Kong including the offices, 2
factories in the PRC, retail shops in the PRC and Hong Kong.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report in this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors,
shareholders and employees have been involved in regular
engagement sessions to discuss and to review areas of attention
which will help the Group meets its potential growth and be
prepared for future challenges.

SUSTAINABILITY VISION

Our vision and aspiration are:

1. To be a pioneer and a leader in the industry with a portfolio
of transformative and innovative products for our customers;

2. To ensure that our business is sustainable and profitable
providing healthy and long-term returns to our shareholders;
and

3. To build a high-performance team with good business culture

and robust engagement of internal and external stakeholders.

Our commitments are:

1.  To do business in environmentally-friendly way to conserve
resources;
2.  To create a positive impact and contribute to our

communities; and

3. To be an effective organization that enhances integrity and
high operational standards.
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HHERFAANRERNRE L@ REE (R
SoHeghERDITEZRE H2EER
BERXZMARRAR ([BXFT])BMEE
F EmRA (T Em AR R M 827 B R E IR
BoHEgREAREESIMMKE-

ARE HENERREREAEENHE
REBNRERY BRERER HEMME
BE TEEEENEEERREREEN
g2 EERE -

RhEZLERERY

BRTAEENERA L8 REARES
FERzBETH A LEHHE (RER
E% RERER)BTEHS AT HREN

ERNASBEBEEERNEBRNRR
EEETRER

o B REAR
RMMBERRAAR:

1. BMRTEZABRAE REFPREH
— R G K B EVE M

2. WMREBEFBERLBNTE B
BANERERRREEZER: &

3. BYABREEEXERAEBMING
K EBGR2EZ S MEMK -

BAPIRAGE S

1. FORRRAELEEBAHOER:

2. REMNHERFRLEZERER:
&

3. AR—RERRESHELRAGBREE
B AR

=X EEEEEBR AT 2019/2020 £33k 11



12

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIBS

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Type of emissions the Group has involved in the reporting
period was mainly electricity, gasoline, water, paper and

waste.

The business does not involve in production related air and
land pollutions which are regulated under the laws in Hong

Kong and in the PRC.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was 479,722 sq.ft.
(2019: 479,722 sq.ft.) and the Group accounts for 100% of
emissions from its operations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

A. IRIE

AEBRBERABMEIESREN A
K AR BEEME BRI

A FETEA MBS R N 5 R AE
MEE BRSAXEENRTBEIER

PTAE -

KEB 2B EBELEMIER479,722

FHER(ZFE—NF:1479,722F F

BR) MAKERTBELRELZEH

HEPFRE Z100% °

Greenhouse Gas Emission mEREHER
Change in
Scope of Greenhouse Emission Emission
Gas Emissions Emission Sources (in tonnes of CO.e) (in percentage)
HEmE B EEIL
mERBHENEE HEBURIE (M-S LREES) (E5tt)
31 March 31 March
2020 2019 2020 vs. 2019
k- ek 33 —E-NF T _TFH
=RA=+-—H ZA=Z+—H ZE-AFER
Scope 1
giE"
Direct Emission Unleaded Petroleum 60.8 83.3 (27.0%)
BEHEW Consumed by
Company owned fleet
KRB BHAEREZ
Eii DA
Scope 2
giE2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 2,802.4 4,750.5 (41.0%)
£ HERK BAEN
Water Consumption 31.62 46 (31.3%)
RAXE
Sewage Consumption 29.18 42.4 (31.2%)
EKBRE
Scope 3
gE3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Consumption 35 27.40 27.7%
Hoh B HE A MR IBRE
Total 2,989 4,950
4 =

WA
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Removal of Greenhouse Gas Emissions

BRREREHBE

Unit 2020 2019 Changes

B —B=B& —T-NF g1t

Total Greenhouse Gas Emitted (a) tCOse 2,952.3 4,950 (40.4%)
BEREHNEE () W —aixEE

Total Floor Area Coverage (b) ft? 479,722 479,722 0%
FiEE 2 BEEMEE (b) T ER

Annual Emission Intensity (c) = (a)/(b) tCO,e/ft? 0.01 0.01 0%
FEHBREE () = (a)/(b) W —aLixE =
SR ER

There was 2,952.3 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
greenhouse gases (mainly carbon dioxide, methane and
nitrous oxide) emitted from the Group's operation in the
reporting period. The annual emission intensity was 0.01
tCO,e/ft? (2019: 0.01).

Water

Water consumption by the Group was 103,429 m? (2019:
72,085 m3), with water intensity of 0.22 m3/m? (2019: 0.15
m3/m?). The Group actively promotes water efficient practices
so as to reduce water wastage caused by human error and
unintentional switching mistake.

Electricity

The electricity consumption by the Group was 3,991,005 kWh
(2019: 6,766,479 kWh), with an energy intensity of 8.3 kWh/m?
dropped from last year (2019: 14.1 kWh/m?) despite positive
business growth. The Group continues its commitment in
installing and switching to energy-saving lighting fixtures and
sourcing energy efficient equipment to ensure functioning in
optimal conditions and efficiency.

Gasoline

A total of 36,219 liters of gasoline (2019: 49,616 liters) was
used for motor vehicles and production equipment in the
reporting period, contributing to 60.8 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (2019: 83.3 tonnes).

AEBEBRBERHZAERE (X
ER_EMH FhkEATE)FK
BR29523W AL EE FEH
WEE &S T 77 3 R0.018 — S (LR
EE(ZZFE—h%F:001)-

K

AEE Y FAKE H103,4297 F K (=
T— AL 72,085 F k)  AKEE
BEEHHKO2TF K (ZE—NE:
FI K05 K) - RE BB EIR
BE M AKER  LURADE A SR
REENRBARMERRENKE-

==
==Y

BEEKIAKE ALEEZEE
£ 53,991,006F B (ZF — hLF:
6,766,479F B b)) HEREFFEH
K8ITERB (ZZE—NAEF - FFHXK
YNTER) REFRI AEEE
BRNLTHEEREERARLE B
BEREEURE NBEREERBRE
AR T I B8 18 B KA EE

pan
AREBZAREREERBRIREHM
FiERzARmE £AE362190H (=
T — NF 49,6162 F) » E H£60.81
ZEEMREERER(ZZE—NF:
83.3MF) °

=X BEEEEBR AR 2019/2020 35 13



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BR -EREIBS

Paper

The Group continues to practise paper saving initiatives, such
as default double-sided printing, reminder for staff to have
environmentally friendly photocopying habit, and separated
collection of waste paper for effective recycling. A total of 7.89
tonnes of paper (2019: 6.18 tonnes) has been used for daily
office operations and advertising materials such as leaflet,
catalogue, sales kit.

Non-Hazardous Wastes

Wastes from the Group’s operation includes cellulose acetate
sheets, packaging materials, scrap metal, scrap equipment
and scrap papers for production and office use for sales and
marketing purposes.

All of the aforesaid wastes have been collected by licensed
recycling companies. Packaging materials such as paper
boxes and carton containers used for packaging were also
collected by licensed recycling companies.

R

K%l?ﬁ%‘f T BN 4D R AR R HE - I a0
REmMINE-RBEETIHEERLR

\%EUE’\J%\T& F Uk £ BE 4 DA 5 8

Bli- AEMAELERESYH (10

EE ERESMEESR) MBER

A A7 8OME (T —NF6.18H) o

HEBEZEY

AEBMEGRELZ BENARIEL
ERHEREHNDARORBE S
BiR-2ENH EESE BERE
R B4 -

Fﬁﬁitf%%am%%@ﬂﬁzﬂﬂuﬁl
- BERMANBEYH (NARME R
T&Q)JTEETWHEQEH& L

B. SOCIAL B. #&
Employment and Labour Practices BRERSIER
Employment = E
The Group had a total number of 271 employees as of RZE-NAF=ZA=+—HB Kx&EH
31 March 2019 (2019: 384), in which 100% was working as full BHRBENEB(ZZE-NF:384%8)E
time staff. B EHR100%REHE T -
Employee’s Age Distribution EEFRIMH
56 and
18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
18-258% 26-358; 36-458% 46-55% 56mRLLE
2020 k- k3.5 15% 21% 32% 24% 8%
2019 —h&E 1% 9% 36% 37% 17%
The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional AEBREHAS %772 57 B - A‘}H&

T fHENMEMNEE ARSIRBRE

opportunity, compensation and benefit packages to attract

14

and retains talents. Salaries are reviewed and adjusted on a
yearly basis based on performance appraisals and the market
trend. Employees are entitled to year-end bonus, mandatory
provident fund, medical insurance, various types of paid leave
in addition to annual leave and sick leave.

T EI%}?@HEE%?&?%&%%@
EmEFRTAAE - BREAIZEAF
RIEAL I TEE BERERRUR
FREBBRAINZZEEHERDY -
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The Group regularly reviews employee handbook which
outlines the Group's key messages, policies, procedures,
promotion channel, compensation and benefits, occupational
health and safety, complaint and whistleblowing channels.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

AEBEHRIBEIFM EPEHI
BRARRIZERAR BR -EF-
B RE WENN BEEREZ
2 HRARBHRRE-

Annual Turnover Rate FERRARE
56 and
18-25 26-35 36-45 46-55 above
18-258; 26-358% 36-457% 46-555 S56mRULE
2020 k- ek 3 3 16% 30% 13% 19% 22%
2019 —Z-NE 47% 35% 39% 20% 4%
Occupational Health and Safety Data BEEEERZZ2HE
2020 2019
k- Jt- - 3 —E-hEF
Work related fatality HITIEEERET 0 0
Work injury cases > 3 days ITHER(ZK3A) 0 0
Work injury < 3 days T (LR3E) 0 0
The total days lost due to work injury ~ ET{EEBXATIEE 0 0
Employee Health and Safety BERERZZ

The Group commits to ensure safe and healthy working
environment for employees and to inspire and strengthen
workforce regardless of their age, gender and ethnical
backgrounds. With the aging population being a long-term
demographic trend in Hong Kong, the Group has a
sustainable workforce in this perspective.

The Group regularly reviews the employees’ health and safety
procedure to safeguard employees’ well-being. Briefing,
training, news and tips are provided to employees to raise
their awareness on safety production process.

There was no lost day due to work injury in this reporting
period. The management will continue its effort in
strengthening the Group's occupational health and safety
performance.

AEBHNERBEE R 2R
B THERE UHBRZEESS S -
THEENFR HHRERER &
FEEAOZRICRARMBENESR
T AEBERUESTHEC A FENS
E

AEBERRTEERERLERF
URERERE - AEEAEBREH
B mIEARRER ARARE
B2 EERFOER-

RAFSHERBERNTEMBLRZA
B-EEBRAEBER D NS EE B
ERERZER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BE - HERELRSE

Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was in the Group's operations
in the reporting period. It is in compliance with the
Employment Ordinances, both in Hong Kong and the PRC in
terms of employment management.

The recruitment process is strictly abided by the guidelines
of the Group’s Human Resource Department. Every job
applicant is required to fill in their information in a recruitment
questionnaire, which is checked by Human Resource
Department to ensure information’s accuracy. This also allows
the Group to hire suitable candidate in accordance with the
job requirements and candidates’ expectations.

Employment Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees
through various communication channels. The regular update
on website keeps employees updated on corporate news and
activities. The Group also organized annual dinner, festival-
related celebration, sport and volunteer works, etc. to nourish
a greater sense of belonging and to provide enhanced
communication channels between senior management and
general staff. The Group believes having better transparent
governance and investing efforts and hours on our best asset,
employees, is the key to success of a sustainable business.

Development and Training
Comprehensive professional training is provided to
employees to deliver top services to our customers.

Equal Opportunity

Equal opportunities are given to employees in respect of
recruitment, training and development, job advancement,
and compensation and benefits. The employees are not
discriminated against or deprived of such opportunities on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, religion, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status, family status, retirement,
disability, pregnancy or any other discrimination prohibited by
applicable law. The Group also appreciates the importance
of cultural diversity in the development of the business, and
employs employees in a wide range of ages, genders, and
ethnicities.

BIXA

RFERAR AEEXBKLEERALN
FEEREIXREBSETIHNER &
BEEE T H EFERTEHCE
ST & 1R 15RO R € ©
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Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

A strict tendering process is also in place to provide a fair
and transparent platform for securing the best supplier for
procurement of all equipment, products and services.

Supplier

Suppliers for products, semi-products, spare parts, raw,
treatment and packaging materials range from France,
United Kingdom, Germany, ltaly, Japan, Taiwan, the PRC
and Hong Kong. They are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as production process, quality
management system, regulatory requirement compliance,
operating capacity, sample availability for testing, packaging,
management’s commitment, training policy and procedure,
price, delivery assurance, and product recall policy, so as
to procure superior goods and services from the most
competitive sources. Additional information such as
observation results after suppliers’ production plant visits
is used to evaluate the suppliers in order to have the best
selected providers. The Group also monitors the overall
performance of selected suppliers by conducting vendor
audits with documented reports to substantiate the selection
and on-going cooperation.

Product

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials and equipment with
standardized procurement procedure and policies. The
Group's procurement policy and its comprehensive
procurement management systems help screening out
undesirable products in the aspects of raw materials
and ingredients selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Product Responsibility: Product recall policy

The Group maintains a good record of zero product recall
this year, nevertheless the Group continues its commitment
to consumer safety and protection by having product recall
procedures and policy in place.
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BR -EREIBS

Consumer Data Protection and Privacy Policy

The Group's Information Technology Department has devised
a comprehensive data protection policy to provide adequate
protection and confidentiality of all corporate data and
proprietary information. To comply with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance, Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and to protect the rights of employees, customers, and
business partners, access control protocol is clearly defined
to limiting the access to a system or to physical or virtual
resources. The Group employs a comprehensive enterprise
resources planning system for its finance-related operations
to ensure privacy and maintain information confidentiality.
The Group strictly abides with the regulation in the collection,
usage, handling, and storage of data to ensure data integrity
and safety.

Anti-corruption

The Group commits to manage all business without undue
influence and has regarded honesty, integrity, and fairness
as its core values. All directors and employees are required
to strictly follow the Code of Conduct and Group's policy
to prevent potential bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

The Group will continue actively sourcing energy-saving appliances,
equipment and materials with careful selection and review of
suppliers and their origins. Opportunities to work with other charity
partners and more training and development in terms of raising
staff's awareness on environmental and social impacts from the
business will also be considered. The Group also recognises the
trend and possibilities with applying digital technologies in daily
office operations and marketing strategy, therefore resource use
and promotional tools in the future will be adapted to make the
businesses more transformative, sustainable, as well as having
greater capability to attractive future talents.

APPRECIATION

| would like to take this opportunity to express my deepest
gratitude to all of our staff and fellow directors for their
contributions, support and dedication. | would also like to thank
our customers, shareholders, bankers, suppliers and other business
partners for their continuous support.

Chung Yuk Lun
Executive Director

Hong Kong
29 June 2020
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Profiles of Directors

EFEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHUNG YUK LUN, aged 59, had been an executive director of
the Company from 29 September 2018 to 11 January 2019 and was
reappointed on 15 July 2019. He is also the company secretary,
an authorised representative and a consultant of the Company.
Mr. Chung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
ICAEW Business and Finance Professional. He has approximately 30
years’ management experience at board level in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Currently, Mr. Chung is also the company secretary and authorized
representative of Life Healthcare Group Limited (Stock Code: 928)
and the company secretary of QPL International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 243), both are listed companies in Hong Kong.

CHAN CHUNG YIN VICTOR, aged 59, had been an independent
non-executive director of the Company from 29 September
2018 to 11 January 2019 and was reappointed as an executive
director of the Company on 15 July 2019. He is also an authorised
representative of the Company. Mr. Chan obtained his Bachelor
of Arts degree from The University of Hong Kong in 1984 and has
been admitted as a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong since
1991. He has over 28 years of experience in commercial law, and
civil and criminal litigations and is now the principal of his own
solicitors firm, Messrs. Victor Chan & Co.

Currently, Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of KNK Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8039), and was a non-
executive director of On Real International Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 8245) until 31 March 2020, both are listed companies in
Hong Kong.
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Profiles of Directors
EEEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MAN WAI LUN, aged 47, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 11 January 2019. He
is the chairman of both of the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Man obtained his diploma in Business Management from the
School of Continuing Education, Hong Kong Baptist University in
April 2003 and obtained a bachelor degree of accountancy from
the University of South Australia in March 2007. Mr. Man has over
16 years of experience in accounting.

Currently, Mr. Man is also an independent non-executive director of
China Trustful Group Limited (Stock Code: 8265) and an executive
director of Life Healthcare Group Limited (Stock Code: 928). He was
previously an independent non-executive director of Roma Group
Limited (Stock Code: 8072) until 1 March 2020 and an executive
director and compliance officer of Glory Flame Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 8059) until 19 September 2018. The above companies
are all listed companies in Hong Kong. He is one of the directors of
HF Financial Holdings (H.K.) Limited which was founded by him.

CHENG CHUN MAN, aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since 15 July
2019. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Cheng is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has
over 30 years' experience in accounting, auditing, consulting
and management. Currently, Mr. Cheng is also an independent
non-executive director of Life Healthcare Group Limited (Stock
Code: 928), a listed company in Hong Kong.

HUI MAN HO, IVAN, aged 41, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
31 March 2020. He is a member of each of the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Hui holds master degree in Practising Accounting, master
degree in Applied Finance and a bachelor degree in Business
(Banking & Finance) from Monash University, Australia. He is also
a member of CPA Australia. Mr. Hui has over 14 years of working
experience in auditing, accounting, financial management and
corporate finance.

Currently, Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Prime Intelligence Solutions Group Limited (Stock Code: 8379) and
Upbest Group Limited (Stock Code: 335), both are listed companies
in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREIHE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The statement of corporate governance practices set out below and
information incorporated by reference constitutes the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

The Board is committed to ensuring and maintaining high standard
of corporate governance practices and procedures in fulfilling its
responsibilities. It is the belief of the Board that shareholders can
maximize their benefits from good corporate governance. The
Company has always recognised the importance of transparency
and accountability. The Group has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "Code") contained
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate
governance practices. The Directors of the Company consider that
the Company has complied with the Code throughout the year
ended 31 March 2020 (“Year"), except for the following deviations:

Code provision A.2

Code provision A.2 stipulates that there should be a clear division
of responsibilities between management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of business. During the Year, the Board did
not appoint any Director as its Chairman. The Board will review the
present situation in the coming regular meetings as appropriate.

Code provision A.4.1

Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Other than
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan who has been appointed for an initial term of
two years which is renewed automatically for successive terms of
one year, the other existing independent non-executive Directors
of the Company do not have any specific term of appointment. All
of them are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meetings pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.
The Bye-laws require that every Director will retire from office no
later than the third annual general meeting of the Company after
he was last elected or re-elected. Further, any person appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional director
(including non-executive Director) will hold office only until the next
general meeting and will then be eligible for re-election. As such,
the Board considers that such requirements are sufficient to meet
the underlying objectives of the relevant code provision.

Code provision A.5.1

Owing to the resignation of Directors during the Year and the
causal vacancies did not fill in timely, the nomination committee
of the Company did not have any members at the material time
which constitutes a deviation from Code provision A.5.1. Upon the
appointment of new Directors, such deviation from Code provision
A.5.1 had been rectified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
(Continued)
Code provisions C.2.3 (e) and F

(a)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report

There were delays in release and publication of the results
announcement and the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2019 by 30 June 2019 and 31 July
2019 respectively in accordance with the relevant Listing
Rules 13.49(1) and 13.46(2)(a). Besides, there was delay in
convening the annual general meeting of the Company
before 30 September 2019 in accordance with the relevant
Listing Rule 13.46(2)(b). Such non-compliance leads to
deviation from Code provision C.2.3 (e). The aforesaid delays
were caused by the change in auditor of the Company.
The previous auditor resigned on 31 May 2019 whereas the
existing auditor could only be appointed on 9 August 2019.
The Company had kept the shareholders and potential
investors informed of the progress of the aforesaid matters
by announcements. Eventually, the results announcement
and the annual report were released and published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and the
annual general meeting of the Company was convened. The
Board is of the view that the aforesaid delays are one-off
incidents and that the aforesaid matters had been rectified
eventually and the Company had complied with the Listing
Rules in keeping the shareholders and investors informed of
the progress of the aforesaid matters.

Owing to the resignation of Directors during the Year, the
casual vacancies did not fill in timely and that the Board
consisted of only one independent non-executive Director
at the material time. This constitutes non-compliance with
relevant Listing Rules 3.10(1) and (2), 3.10(A), 3.21, 3.25 and
3.27. Such non-compliance leads to deviation from Code
provision C.2.3 (e). Following the appointment of new
Directors to the Board, the aforesaid non-compliance with
relevant Listing Rules had been rectified.

Following the resignation of the then company secretary of
the Company during the Year and the causal vacancy did not
fill in timely, the Company did not have a company secretary
at the material time. This constitutes non-compliance with
Listing Rule 3.28. Such non-compliance is a deviation from
Code provisions C.2.3 (e) and F. Upon the appointment
of a new company secretary subsequently, the aforesaid
non-compliance with the Listing Rules had been rectified.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

Code provisions C.2.3 (e) and F (Continued)

(d) Following the resignation of the Authorised Representatives
during the Year and the causal vacancies did not fill in timely,
the Company did not have any Authorised Representative
at the material time. This constitutes non-compliance with
Listing Rule 3.05. Such non-compliance leads to deviation
from Code provision C.2.3 (e). Upon the appointment of
new Authorised Representatives subsequently, the aforesaid
non-compliance with Listing Rules had been rectified.

Code provision C.2.5

Code provision C.2.5 stipulates that a listed company should have
an internal audit function. In the past, the Company has outsourced
the internal audit function on analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems to independent professional firm(s).

For the Year, the Audit Committee has performed such function
itself by carrying out walk through tests on the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems with reference to the
policy and procedures manuals of the Company, interviewed and
discussed with the management on their effectiveness and followed
up on the rectifications of any findings from their work. The Board
considers that compliance with Code provision C.2.5 has been
fulfilled by the Audit Committee for the Year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers under Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors of the Company, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
of dealings as set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises a total of five Directors, including
two executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung Yuk Lun and Mr. Chan
Chung Yin, Victor and three independent non-executive Directors
("INEDs"), namely Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. As least one of the INEDs has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as prescribed by Rule 3.10 of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from Mr. Man Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho,
Ivan as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The composition of the Board will be reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical details are set out in the section “Profiles of Directors”
of this annual report.

Appointment and re-election

According to the Bye-Laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.
Further, any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.

The Company has published the procedures on its website for
shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director.

Duties of the Board

The Board formulates the overall policies and strategies, monitors
the financial performance, oversees the management, and
implements good corporate governance practices of the Group.
The Board is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Group by directing and supervising the Group's affairs.

The Directors meet regularly to review the financial and operational
performance of the Group by discussing and formulating the
Group's development plans. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's
management. The members of the Board are mostly professionally
qualified and widely experienced personnel who bring in
valuable contribution providing different professional advices and
consultation for the development of the Group. They provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties and
responsibilities of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board

During the financial year ended 31 March 2020, 33 Board meetings
were held. The attendance records of each Director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and general meeting of the Company

=
BE_ T ZF-A=+-HLUBFE
N EFEBRTBRES
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BES

RBE ST _ZF=A=+—"HBILFERN
MEETL BEXZET RELZTEZ FHN

during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out as follows: ZEEEBRUARARARERG 2 HFER
BT
Number of meetings attended/held
e/ BTEHERY
Audit Nomination R ation General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of directors Exgz EXE BEEEE REZEE FWEEE BREXE
Executive Directors BITES
Ms. Liu Shufeng flERZ L 5/8
(resigned on 14 June 2019) (R=ZF—NE~NA+HAEE)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun BEEBELE 20/20 2/2
(re-appointed on 15 July 2019) (R=F-NF+tA+HA
EEHEF)
Mr. Chan Kam Wah BRipEESL L 0/0
(resigned on 18 April 2019) (R=F—AFMA 1/ AEHE)
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BRiR A S 7/20 172
(appointed on 15 July 2019) (R=ZF—-NF+ATHAEZE)
Mr. Wong Hoi Ping TETEE 5/5
(re-designated as non-executive (R=ZBE—NERA-1+tHAELE
director on 27 May 2019) HHTEE)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung FHERE 0/4
(resigned on 9 May 2019) (R=F—NFHANAFL)
Mr. Wong Hoi Ping TEFRE 8/8 11
(resigned on 25 June 2019) (R=F—NFENF=+HHABE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors B kEHiTES
Mr. Wan Kin Man, Tony FRREE 5/10 11
(resigned on 18 June 2019) (R=F—NFE~NATNAFE)
Mr. Chan Ming Kei BREAE S 3/10 11
(resigned on 18 June 2019) (R=ZF-NFENA+/HFE)
Mr. Chen Youchun RRELE 0/1
(resigned on 25 April 2019) (RZFE-NFHA=1HAFE)
Mr. Man Wai Lun NEBEE 33/33 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/4
Mr. Cheng Chun Man SRR 4 19/20 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/2
(appointed on 15 July 2019) (RZZFE-NF+A+HAEEE)
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis BEREE (BIBERS) 5/18 0/3 01 0/1 01
(appointed on 15 July 2019 and (R=ZF-NF+tATHAEZIR
resigned on 31 December 2019) R-B-NEFZH=1+—HEHE)
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan FXERE 0/0

(appointed on 31 March 2020)

(R=ZF-FFE=F=+—HEZ()
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Functions of the Board (Continued)

All the regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance, and
at least 14 days’ notice is given to all Directors to give them an
opportunity to attend. Agenda and accompanying Board papers are
normally sent to all Directors in advance of every Board meeting to
enable the Directors to make informed decisions on matters placed
at the Board meetings. All Directors have been consulted about any
matters proposed for inclusion in the agenda. With the support of
the company secretary, all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings, so that Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner.

Detailed minutes of Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary and are open for inspection by any Director. All Directors
have access to independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary by the Directors.

Directors’ continuous professional development
The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills for discharging their duties and responsibilities as
directors of the Company.

In addition, each newly appointed Director would be provided with
an induction package covering the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, the Companies Ordinance and
other related regulatory requirements.

The Company provided updates and reading material (“CPD")
to keep the Directors informed on a timely basis about the latest
major developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements affecting the Group or their duties and
responsibilities as the Directors as well as the macro economics
and general business environment in which the Group’s major
operations are operated. The Company, through CPD, enhances
Directors’ awareness and keeps them abreast of the essences and
key areas of such updates and information. Such CPD is an efficient
and effective way which offers flexibility to the Directors by allowing
them to access the information at a time suitable to them. All
Directors are required to provide the Company with their training
records on an annual basis. A summary of their training records
during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development
(Continued)

EFE(H)
EEZHEFEER (H)

Type of training activities

H]]

Name of directors EEga sl EEE R
Executive Directors BITEE A:  In-house training and/or
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun EEBEE seminars.

(re-appointed on 15 July 2019) (R=ZBE-NF+ATHABETZF) REFINR, K G o

Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor BR A 2 4

(appointed on 15 July 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUEHBITEE
Mr. Man Wai Lun NXEB T E
Mr. Cheng Chun Man BIRESLE

(appointed on 15 July 2019)

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis
(appointed on 15 July 2019 and
resigned on 31 December 2019)

(R=F—ANFLtATHHAEZE)

(R=F—hF+ A+ BAREL)
ERHEE (GIREEE
(R=F—NE+ /1 BARELE
K- AE+=A=+—ARLE)

%)

B:  Reading newspapers
and journals relating
to directors’ duties
and responsibilities as
well as updates on the
Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory
requirements.
BERREERANE
EARBET EHRA R
Hi @A EE R T A&
HmE LT

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Board
is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment in annual and interim reports and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. With the assistance of Finance Department,
the Directors prepare the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with statutory requirements and prevailing accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for timely publication
of the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The
Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, having
made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 50 to 61 of the annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 29 March 2012. The Remuneration
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chun Man
and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The major duties and functions of
the Remuneration Committee include but not limited to making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual directors and senior management of the Company. It is
also mandated to review and approve compensation payable to
the directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office to ensure that it is consistent with the contractual terms and
is otherwise fair and not excessive.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Functions of the Board"” of this report.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee are
summarized as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

2. to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

3. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

4. to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors;

5. to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

6.  to review and approve compensation payable to executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

7. to review and approve compensation arrangement relating to
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate; and

8.  to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration.

During the reporting year, the Remuneration Committee has,
among others things, reviewed the remuneration packages of all
directors and senior management (including two newly appointed
Directors) with reference to market terms, their duties and
responsibilities and performance as assessed by the Remuneration
Committee, and has made recommendation to the Board
accordingly. Pursuant to B.1.5 of the Code, details of the annual
remuneration of the members of senior management by band for
the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows:

FMEEE (8)

7. R RIERERTRKEMHEE
KERBERESTAS R 2BERE:
NERZERERSQER B F
RERGOGR B AHEBEZEAR

BEE R

8. MWRIBEFIRZEMBEALS
HEEARG ZHM-

REeEEFE FHEZEED (AHhEE)2

EMGER 2BEERAREEABZE
B BERERR (KFMEZE 2 E) HE
E2EFEWAR(REMUTZEES)ET
ER YERUERNESSROEZ RIETAH
FBISK BE-_ZE-_ZTFE=A=+—~H
HFERGEEES D aRERBABZEE
HEEFIEOT

Number of employees

EBEAE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ 7T 15
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 £ & 1,500,000/ 7T 0
Total Rk 15

Details of the emoluments of Directors are set out in Note 10 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company had adopted a specific terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee as of 29 March 2012 in accordance with
Rules 3.25 to 3.27 of the Listing Rules which has been posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established in June 2005 and its terms of
reference were amended on 6 September 2013. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Man Wai Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheng Chun Man and
Mr. Hui Man Ho, lvan. Its main duties and functions include but
not limited to review of the structure, size, composition and the
diversity policy of the Board and the selection or recommendations
to the Board for nomination on directors and senior management.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the reporting
year and the attendance of each member is set out in the section
headed “Function of the Board” of this report:

1. review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company's corporate strategy;

2. identify individuals suitably qualified to become board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board
on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

3. assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;
4. review on directors’ contribution in performing their

responsibilities;

5. make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive of the Company;

6. review the board diversity policy of the Board or this
Nomination Committee, as appropriate, considering factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience of Board
members, and review the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing the board diversity policy, and
the progress on achieving the objectives; and

7. conform to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in
the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation, where appropriate.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

A board diversity policy had been formulated and adopted by the
Board in 2013. The Company recognises the importance and values
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. Appointments to the Board will largely be based
on meritocracy with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. Selection of candidates will generally be based on factors
considered applicable and adopted by the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills and knowledge. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Company had adopted a revised specific terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee as of 6 September 2013 in compliance
with the Code Provision A.5 and it has been posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in 1999 and its terms of reference were amended by
the Board and became effective on 23 February 2016 and 1 March
2016 respectively. The Audit Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Cheng Chun Man
(Chairman), Mr. Man Wai Lun and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. Mr. Cheng
Chun Man possesses appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as prescribed
by the Listing Rules. None of them is employed by or otherwise
affiliated with former or existing auditors of the company.

The main duties and functions of the Audit Committee include
but not limited to review of the relationship between the
Company and its external auditors, review of the Group's financial
information, oversight of the Group's financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems, assessment on any
potential special risks to be encountered by the Company and
review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the reporting year.
Minutes of the Audit Committee are kept by the secretary of the
Audit Committee and the copies of the minutes are sent to all
members of the Audit Committee. The outcomes of the Audit
Committee meetings were submitted to the Board for consideration
and action where appropriate.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
the annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the meetings held in the Year, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

1.

reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2019 (“Previous Year”) and the
related annual results announcement with a recommendation
to the Board for approval.

reviewed the relevant disclosures made in the Directors’
Report of the Annual Report in the Previous Year.

met with the external auditors in the Previous Year and
discussed the audit findings reported by external auditors.

assessed broadly any special risks faced by the Group and
reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the Previous Year
and concluded that the Group operated at a manageable risk
level and kept on improving the management system.

reviewed the reports including the 2019 audit planning report
and the management letters (if any) submitted by the external
auditor.

reviewed the Group's unaudited consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 September 2019 and
the interim results announcement with recommendation to
the Board for approval.

considered those topics, which were requested by the Board
and reviewed those relevant documents.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were amended and
took effect by the Board on 23 February 2016 and 1 March 2016
respectively. Such amendments in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code under the Listing Rules have been posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee recommended the re-appointment of CCTH
CPA Limited as the external auditors of the Group for 2020/2021
and that the relevant resolution shall be put forth for consideration
by the shareholders of the Company and their approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM").

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board performs the following corporate governance functions
during the Year:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c)  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices
in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conducts and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the Code and the
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

All committees established under the Board are required to report
back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations, unless
there are legal or regulatory restrictions on their ability to do so
(such as a restriction on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun is the current company secretary of the
Company. The company secretary, whose appointment
was approved by the Board, complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements under the
Listing Rules. All Directors are entitled to have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary, who is responsible for
providing Board papers and related materials to Directors in order
to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable law, rules and
regulations are followed.
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AUDITORS' INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditors to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements in
accordance with applicable standards. Members of the Audit
Committee were of the view that the Company’s auditors, CCTH
CPA Limited, are independent and has recommended the Board to
re-appoint them as the Company’s auditors at the AGM.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the remuneration paid or
payable to the Company's auditors, CCTH CPA Limited is set out
as follows:

% BB <z 35 3114 K Fr M

ERREQERERBERNERNZHNR
EEZEM BN ARV B BREEZ
BENEBEMERE - BRZEEXER
RARAZEMAEREEFTMARRA A
BEY YEREFENBERBFAE LA
B AR R R Z B -

BE-T-TF=A=+—AIFE BOf
SR T AR A MR EXE A
RAROFHEIIMT
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Services rendered Frig (AR 7S HRAT
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services EZ R 1,225
Non-audit services IEEZ RS 50
Total FEE 1,275

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the shareholders as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Code.

(1) Procedures for shareholders to convene a

special general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Board
shall, on a requisition in writing by any shareholder made
in compliance with the applicable law to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company holding not less than
one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company, forthwith proceed to convene a special general
meeting ("SGM") in accordance with the Bye-Laws of the
Company.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene the SGM for a day not later than two
months after the date of deposit of a proper requisition, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
do so but any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution at
general meeting of the Company. The number of shareholders
shall represent not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting, or shall not
be less than one hundred shareholders.

The written requisition must state the resolution, accompanied
by a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution
or the business to be dealt with at the general meeting. It
must also be signed by all of the shareholders concerned
and be deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Unit 2405, 24/F, World Wide
House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the company secretary not less than six weeks
before the general meeting. In case of a requisition requiring
a notice of the resolution, the requisition must be served to
the Board not less than one week before the general meeting.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company's expenses
in giving the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the shareholders concerned under
applicable laws and rules.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company's Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. Shareholders and the
investment community may during office hours make a
request for the Company'’s information to the extent that such
information is publicly available. Shareholders may also send
their enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing to
the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no significant
change in the Company's constitutional documents.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
all shareholders. The Company establishes different communication
channels with shareholders and investors: (i) the annual general
meeting provides a forum for shareholders to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board; (ii) updated key information of the
Group are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company; and (iii) the Company's website offers communication
channel between the Company and its shareholders and investors.

The annual general meeting is a channel for the Board of Directors
and the sub-committees of the Board to address concern of
shareholders. Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meeting. Notice of the annual general meeting and related
papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and the said notice is also published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

A. Objectives
The Board is responsible to ensure that adequate systems of
internal control and risk management (“Control Systems”) are
maintained within the Group, and to review their effectiveness
through the Audit Committee. The Control Systems are
designed to meet the Group's particular needs and the risks
to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement
or loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure
in achieving the Group's objectives. Practicable and effective
internal control systems and procedures and risk management
systems have been implemented by the Group to enhance
internal control and risk management on an ongoing basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

B. Internal control

The Board J ensure the maintenance of
appropriate and effective Control
Systems in order to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and assets
of the Group;

o define management structure with
clear lines of responsibility and limit
of authority; and

] determine the nature and extent of
significant risk that the Company
is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate
the Group's risk management

strategies.
Audit Committee e oversee the Systems of the Group;
° review and discuss with the

management annually to ensure
that the management has
performed its duty to have effective
Control Systems; and

o consider major findings on
internal control matters and make
recommendations to the Board.

The management o Design, implement and monitor
the Control Systems properly and
ensure the Control Systems are
executed effectively;

o monitor risks and take measures
to mitigate risks in day-to-day
operations;

4 give prompt responses to, and

follow up the findings on internal
control matters; and

] provide confirmation to the Control
Board on the effectiveness of the
Systems.
Internal Audit o carry out the analysis and
Function independent appraisal of the

adequacy and effectiveness of the
Control Systems, and the details
are set out in the section headed
“Internal Audit Function” of this
report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (Continued)

C.

Risk management

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and
review.

The management conducted interviews with relevant staff
members, reviewing relevant documentation of the internal
control system, identifying and evaluating findings of any
deficiencies in the design of the Group's internal control
system, providing recommendations for improvement and
following up on the effectiveness of implementation of such
recommendations, where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the risk management and internal control are
reported to and reviewed by the Audit Committee annually.

Certain significant risks have been identified through the
process of risk identification and assessment. Such significant
risks of the Group and their respective key strategies/control
measures are set out on pages 8 to 9 of the Management
Discussion and Analysis of this report.

Control approach

The scope and findings of review on the risk management and
internal control are reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually. Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring maintenance
of proper accounting records in compliance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Management confirmation

The Board had received a written confirmation from the
management on the effectiveness of the Systems of the
Group. The Audit Committee and the Board, upon reviewing
the Systems, were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Control Systems.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Control Systems for the
year ended 31 March 2020. The review identified the findings in
internal control system of the Company, the risks associated with
operating units of the Company and the recommendations to
rectify the findings in internal control systems and to lower the risks
identified. Most of the recommendations have been adopted and
implemented with the remaining ones to be implemented in due
course.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the Control Systems
in respect of financial, operational and compliance aspect annually
and considers that the Control Systems are adequate and effective.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also reviewed the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting and financial
reporting functions, and consider that they are adequate.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy where the
Company would, where the situation allows, declare dividends to
shareholders taking into consideration the Group's distributable
profits generated during the Year, the financial situation and
liquidity of the Group, the funding needs for future investment and
development purposes. The payment of dividend is also subject to
any restrictions under the laws of Bermuda and Hong Kong as well
as the Bye-Laws of the Company.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
FOR THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION
OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group complies with requirements of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO") and the Listing Rules in relation to
the handling and dissemination of inside information. The Group
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public,
the Group ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the
Group would immediately disclose the information to the public.
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EFERE

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

During the Year, the Company is an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture
and trading of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment,
debts and securities investment, money lending business and film
distribution.

Further discussion and analysis of the activities as required by
schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis
set out on pages 8 to 9 of this annual report. The discussion forms
part of this Directors’ report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 and its financial
position at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 62 to 194.

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION HHEEFRME

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and AEBERBERLERGAMBRREKLE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial P (MER) 2 BERT BV ERFERE 2B TI#
years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial ¥EUARBEE BENMETEREGHMEZHRN
statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This Tt ZW R EREE W EmERAE

summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial BXEB 5 o
statements.
Results 245

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEE —T-hF —E-N\F T—+F T—X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHEIT FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&&5)
REVENUE Yz 66,246 178,951 111,790 136,248 211,527
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE ZA&EEHF,/ (E1E)
YEAR (101,685) (102,841) (17,057) 5,646 (90,129)
Attributable to: THI AL E:
Owners of the Company AR E#A A (98,399) (99,090) (14,117) 8,038 (86,729)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE4% f i 25 (3,286) (3,751) (2,940) (2,392) (3,400)
(101,685) (102,841) (17,057) 5,646 (90,129)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests EE BENRIEEERERS
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“EZEE —“Z-hEFE —ZT-N\F T+F —T—REF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
(Restated)
(&=&E5)
TOTAL ASSETS BERRE 379,664 427,737 450,019 381,003 379,966
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEERE (159,106) (129,289) (88,741) (114,304) (112,825)
NON-CONTROLLING R
INTERESTS 8,837 4,971 768 (984) (4,509)
229,395 303,419 362,046 265,715 262,632
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EFERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the reporting year
are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company's share capital are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme"”) on 16 March 2020 to provide incentive or rewards to
participants including the Directors and eligible employees of the
Group. Particulars of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
35 to the financial statements. No options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the reporting year are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity set out on page 66 of this annual
report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the reserve of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$106,923,000 (2018:
HK$126,062,000) is available for distribution or paying dividends
to the Company’s shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Bye-Laws and provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the reporting year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. Liu Shufeng (resigned on 14 June 2019)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (re-appointed on 15 July 2019)

Mr. Chan Kam Wah (resigned on 18 April 2019)
Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor (appointed on 15 July 2019)

Mr. Wong Hoi Ping (re-designated as non-executive director
on 27 May 2019)

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung (resigned on 9 May 2019)
Mr. Wong Hoi Ping (resigned on 25 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wan Kin Man, Tony (resigned on 18 June 2019)
Mr. Chan Ming Kei (resigned on 18 June 2019)
Mr. Chen Youchun (resigned on 25 April 2019)
Mr. Man Wai Lun
Mr. Cheng Chun Man (appointed on 15 July 2019)
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

(appointed on 15 July 2019 and

resigned on 31 December 2019)
Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan (appointed on 31 March 2020)

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. In
addition, every Director shall retire from office no later than the
third annual general meeting after he/she was last elected or
re-elected or ceased to be a Director and been re-elected by a
general meeting at or since either such annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Accordingly, Mr. Chan Chung Yin, Victor and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan
will retire by rotation at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws
of the Company. All of the abovementioned directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from all the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Man
Wai Lun, Mr. Cheng Chun Man and Mr. Hui Man Ho, Ivan. The
Board considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out on
pages 19 to 20 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Group's business were
entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having regard
to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a clear link of
business strategy and a close alignment with the Shareholders’
interest and current market best practice). Remuneration should be
paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
the salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the executive and non-executive Directors,
internal equity of employment conditions across the Group
and applicability of performance-based remuneration. The
Directors’ fees are paid in line with market practice, subject to the
shareholders’ approval at general meetings. No individual should
determine his or her own remuneration.

Employee’s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’s responsibility, competence and skills, experience and
performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration package
includes, as the case may be, basic salaries, Directors’ fees,
contribution to pension schemes, discretionary bonus relating to
financial performance of the Group and individual performance
and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical and life
insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 10 to the
financial statements.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

EE RATBEI R R AR R
ﬁZ*&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ

R-E_TF=ZA=1+—B ARAEER
THAZNAARHERBEE (EERE
7 R BB ARG S XVER) 2 B i & AR BE A 9
BB RERARRREE MR E GRH
EI2GREFEZBERRMAZ R FIRR
T*ETFL%‘%E@'J%%E’JTTE’E?FE'JE%DE? st

RS FORBIAT

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company REASFLERZEFE
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary shares of issued
Name of director Nature of Interests interested voting shares
HERT
BHEERZ AREERS
EENS S EEny il g i B E B
Mr. Wong Hoi Fung Beneficial Owner 49,020,000 8.08%
TRELEE BEHEBEBA
Note: Mr. Wong Hoi Fung resigned as director of the Company with effect from Mt TEBEAER-_FT-AFRAANAFERRAE

9 May 2019.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
Directors or their respective associates and the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or was likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to be
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in the Related Party Transactions disclosures set
out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, none of
the Directors or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the reporting year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EFENGEERPHER
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SRR U TEARARAIEBITRAR

E%H%EE’US%EUALZ%&T&:

Long positions Be
Number of Percentage
Capacity/ ordinary of issued
Name Nature of Interest shares interested voting shares
HESBT
BREZZ AFRFEERK
wE & S #mty TiE R Bk 82 Bkt
Osman Bin Kitchell Beneficial Owner 142,297,719 23.46%

BEm#EA A

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares”
an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO.

above, had registered
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EFERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed shares during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year, the Group's largest customer and the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 46% and 74.9% of the
Group's total sales, respectively.

During the reporting year, the Group's largest supplier and the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 16.6% and 55.7% of the
Group's total purchases, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors of the Company
or any of their associates or any shareholders, which to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the reporting
year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the reporting year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

During the year, included in other payables was an amount due
to the spouse of Mr. Hui Leung Wah (ex-director of the Company)
of HK$14,453,000, which is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Gold Strong Industrial Limited (“Gold Strong”), a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, in their usual and ordinary course of
business, had amounts due (to)/from the Company's several
wholly-owned subsidiaries. The amounts due are unsecured
and interest-bearing at the same interest rate charged by the
Company's bank which is the same as the rate applied to the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, they are repayable on
demand and the outstanding amounts are details below at the end
of the balance sheet date:

FEX S RFEMERS (15)

AEE-FMF2EMNBARSNELIXRA
RAR(TEFMEIR—REBXHTHEE
() /BRARRETEZEWB QAR
HeRZFERFARBEEABIRARRRITE
RMZBRMEFE - HEEARARBZE
MEBARMANEER HAREREER M
BEEBEAZHREBEFBAABOT:

31 March 31 March
2020 2019
k- Jont -3 —E-hF
=A=+—H =H=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
TFERT TET
Gold Strong T MR (29,209) (29,574)
— amount due to Gold Strong by the - ARFI2EMBRBER
Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiaries & M ERKIA - 141
— amount due by Gold Strong to the RAEI2EWE R AR
Company'’s wholly-owned subsidiaries & F| FE R IE (29,209) (29,715)

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief
having made all reasonable enquiries, save as disclosed above,
none of the Related Party Transactions as disclosed in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report is a connected transaction or/and continuing connected
transaction.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Bye-law 189 of the Company, Directors of the Company
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain by or about
the execution of their duty in their offices or in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and the officers of the Group throughout
the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public during
the reporting year and up to the date of this report.
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CHANGE OF AUDITOR E iR B AT
Ernst & Young (“EY”") resigned as the auditor of the Group with ARARB B KT EBLA ([ZX])
effect from 31 May 2019 as the Company could not reach an BEARBE_ZT-NF=ZA=+—HILH
agreement with EY on the audit fee for the financial year ended HEENZBMERENX 3 TKEBITE
31 March 2019. With the recommendation of the Audit Committee AEEZEM BT AFREA=T—
and passing the resolution at the special general meeting held on BEER - KERZESEZ URNE_Z
9 August 2019, CCTH CPA Limited has been appointed as the new —NFENAANBRITHBRREINAE LA
auditor of the Group on the 9 August 2019 to fill the casual vacancy. BABR P ERBEFMARAGERZ
E-NFNANRANBEZEAERER X
SR » DA 4 B R 22 R

AUDITORS % BLED
CCTH CPA Limited will retire at AGM and a resolution for the FIEFRESHMERAREBABREBAFTR
re-appointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company LRI ARABRE LRE-BRR

will be proposed thereat. B UEEPEREGFTMERABAERR
Az BEm o

On Behalf of the Board REESE

Chung Yuk Lun HITEE

Executive Director EE R

Hong Kong B

29 June 2020 —EZEFRAZTAH
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIZBEDERSE

e

To the shareholders of Elegance Optical International Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Elegance
Optical International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the "Group”) set out on pages 62 to 194, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

CCTH CPA LIMITED
PEXREEEAERAE

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

RERASZERKERRATNZERR
(REREZEZMALZERAA])
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
FSEEEIR

FRETEIE (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E N EEASESEIR

Impairment of trade and other receivables and loan
and interest receivables

B 5 % A fth FE W SR IE R FRE M B K % FE M 1) B iR (B

Refer to notes 4, 22, 23 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BRMREMBERERWES 22 23%24 -

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded gross trade
receivables of HK$10,671,000 before impairment of
HK$2,333,000, other receivables of HK$5,380,000 before
impairment loss of HK$127,000, and loan and interest
receivables of HK$21,249,000 before impairment of
HK$10,120,000.

RZEZTF=A=+—H' BEBEHSHEIE2333,000
78 JT Al 2 42 i U5 BR 310,671,000/ 7T + BRI 18 &5 #8.127,000
75 JT Al 2 H fib & Uk 3K 78 5,380,0007% 7T & BR 7R {E10,120,000
7 7T BT 2 FE WU E 51 % P W R 221,249,000/ 7T

Estimations of the impairment for the Group's trade
and other receivables and loan and interest receivables
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgment, including the historical
default rates, past due status, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions as well
as forward-looking information specific to the trade and
other receivables and loan and interest receivables.
EEEE S R H B IE R EWE R R EWRFE ZRE
BT BARE THRIELEAEEREBHE 2 EABR B8
JE& 5238 A0 % BGAO - — RRASE AR R R E AT AR 2 BT
AR E 5 & Hith fE W R IE & BN E R R BN B 2 % 5E
ATRE =& KL o

We obtained an understanding of the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of
management’s internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and making provisions for
doubtful debts.

BMPETHEEEREEERE KEEKETRR
BRBBEHM AR EENRE T REEREK-

We reviewed the agreements and other relevant
documents relating to the loans made by the

Group.
BMEME SEEEELNERBENHRREM
BEAX -

We assessed the classification and accuracy of
individual balances in trade and other receivables
and loan and interest receivables ageing report
by testing the underlying invoices and loan
agreements on a sample basis.

BHMEREMEARREERELRERBEFEE
5 B B A 8 M R TR B B U E R R MR R BB R ¥R
&P E R AR R S R
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRETEIE (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E A EEMASEGEIR

Impairment of trade and other receivables and loan
and interest receivables (Continued)

B SR H i FEWRIA R FEM B = R BRI B I8 B (4])

We have identified impairment of trade and other
receivables and loan and interest receivables as a key
audit matter due to the magnitude of the receivables
and the estimation and judgments involved the
determination of the recoverable amounts of these
receivables.

BB E 5 M H Al e WK IR & e W & 3R % e e 7 BORUE
BRIAAREAFE WBAREBURRBHEEAREE
TE 1tk 5 B R TR B AT UK 13 < RE B O K il Bt K o

We assessed subsequent settlement of receivable
balances. Where settlement had not been
received subsequent to the year end date,
we obtained an understanding of the basis of
management'’s judgments about the recoverability
of the outstanding receivables and evaluated
the allowance for doubtful debts made by
management for these individual balances.

B ERERRRIARBREE MR FHERRD
N W ER e WK TR - B APT B BE AR B IR B R U [ R U
TRIE B AT W (B 4 I ) e B2 W E AT B IR
Mz LR AR IR 2 KRR

We assessed the historical accuracy of the
estimates made by the management for the
allowance for doubtful debts.
BMPFAEEEEBARRRBEFEL G0 E
Wt -

We assessed the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss positioning methodology, by examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis, to assess
their accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine
the expected credit loss.

BB EMEEERANERE AZIRATHHEE
BHERTEMEUREREARS (2EBE RATE
MERFEEREEERTL T ENEE T A
ErRPEEER-
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRESTEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E A EEMASEGEIR

Provision for obsolete and slow moving inventories

BRERGHEGRAE

Refer to notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEEM B MR ETAR21 -

As at 31 March 2020, the Group recorded gross inventories
of HK$29,174,000 before provision for impairment of
HK$20,372,000. Inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the
weighted average basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. The write down of
obsolete and slow-moving items of inventories to their
net realisable value is estimated by management through
the application of judgement and use of highly subjective
assumptions such as management’s expectations for
future sales and product promotion plans in identifying the
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items, and estimating
the allowance for inventories.
RZZE_ZF=RA=+—H E5EEGHRAERSB
20,372,000/ 7T Al 2 #17 529,174,000 7T ° 77 & 1R AL 7 B2
AR FECREEYR KA METHEEET A
BRRENDRGFTEEREMEATHREEEEZKAR
AHE - BRKFHTEREMAEREATZRFEARER
EERBERAGLERREXTHBRRME; NEBENH
Pl RFHFEIEA R FEREBERERRIEERE
miEE AT EIEHIE -

We have identified provision for obsolete and slow
moving inventories as a key audit matter due to the
magnitude of gross inventories and the estimation and
judgments involved the determination of the obsolete and
slow-moving items of inventories.
BHMESBREFHFERFIANRBAREFER RE
REFERBEREEANEEEBREFBHEHFERBR SR
&t Rl o

We assessed management’'s controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-
moving, excess and other inventory items for
which their costs may not be fully recoverable, and
evaluated the Group's inventory provision policy
with reference to historical sales transactions.
We tested the inventories ageing analysis as
at 31 March 2020 on a sampling basis. We also
assessed the inventory provision by taking into
account the subsequent usage of raw materials and
work-in-progress and subsequent sales transactions
of the inventories.
BMFAEEREESEN R AR BE HHE-
BREEMTFEREONES ARZFHEE K
ARATGEARBETEWE W2 EELHER S AT
i EXRENFERERR BRARMEEENR
RIE-_ZTF=-A=+T-"BNHFEREIN -ZE
ARERMHNERAR ERAEFEEREERS
FHRE HMANTFEFERE-
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRETEIE (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E A EEMASEGEIR

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

ME BERBEBEURERESERE

Refer to notes 4, 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

F2HEAMITWRMES 13Kk14 -

The Group recorded a loss for the year ended 31 March
2020 of HK$101,685,000. Management of the Group
determined that indicators of impairment on the Group's
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
existed and performed an impairment assessment. The
management assessment involved subjective judgements
and assumptions, such as estimated market price of
comparable asset items in determining the recoverable
amounts of such assets. To support management’s
determination of the fair value, the Group has engaged
independent professionally qualified valuers to perform
valuation of the related property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets.

BHE_Z-_ZF=A=+—HILEFE BEXEBREEE
101,6850008 L EXBEEEBTBRIFE BEEXHE
ME - BELREAREREEERE  WETRER -
EREN S REB A RERER WREE AT REEA
WolEBESHEBEERENGATE AXBHEREET
MARE BEEECEZEREBYEXSERMGEMEEHA
ME BELRREAREREEELETRE.

Based on the valuations, management is of the view that
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets is not required to be made as the
recoverable amounts of such assets, with reference to their
respective fair values less costs of disposal, are not less
than their carrying amounts.

BREGE EREBRRANBREEZAIKEEE (K2
EZREZBAABERBERAN) MEREREE  WEER
RE - BERZEARERREEERESBRIELRE-

We assessed the recoverable amounts and
evaluated the inputs and assumptions included
in management’s impairment assessment by
evaluating the data used as input for valuation,
which included reference to the market price
of comparable land and buildings and other
relevant assets. We also assessed the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the valuers in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies.
BAF G E SR WS BEEEE R ER
mEE A BB R RE W E B AIESHERA
PIRNEE EER2ERL M REFTUREM
HEAEENTE RMATFEHEMOTEL B
MM RBEZMBATFEBRREIE

We assessed the valuation methodologies used by
the external valuer for the fair value valuation of
the property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets;

BT AN AR ER R 3R - R M sk s bA K2 B
BEEZ AREBEMEMERNGESE:

We evaluated the independence, competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the external valuer;
BRSNS ERD A B 21 R - BE NN BB
{53
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BASEETEIE (15)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B EEIE B Est N EIEE R ETEIE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (Continued)

ME BERBEURERESERE(H)

We focused on the impairment assessment of the Group’s ~ We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as  relevance of the data and information provided by
the estimation of the fair value less costs of disposal of management to the external valuer; and

such assets involved judgments and assumptions used A 5 g & & 1 8 [m) S 30 18 B A 12 (£ &9
in the determination of sale prices of these assets and EUE R ERAEREFMERE T &

management assessment of the value in use of the CGUs

involves judgments and estimates about the future results ~We considered the potential impact of reasonably
of the business, key assumptions including revenue growth  possible downside changes in these key
rate and gross profit margin, long-term growth rate and  assumptions.

the discount rates applied to future cash flow forecast. BMERZEERBRPEEAEN TTELD
BMBER BEENYE BERREREAEEEN BEVE-

MEFE BREFAEREENAAERELEKRES R
IETZEEENEEBRMELNABRRR BERE
HRSEAEUNERBENE I RBHAEBRKEEDN

H i R BREBREEREREMNE REERELER

RAKRRASREBRAZBERENEERR -
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRETEIE (18)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E A EEMASEGEIR

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

—EBEATREZREFE

Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

AE2HEA M BRKRME4R18

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of the Group's
investment in an associate, Filmko Culture Limited,
amounted to HK$91,000,000 (after impairment loss
recognised of HK$39,543,000).

RZEZTF=H=1T—H KREHERREEE39,543,000
Bk BEEER—MEEEQR (EHUEERAR)EK
& 7 8RB &91,000,0007% 7T ©

To support management'’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers to
perform fair value valuation on the associate.

ﬁiﬁ”@th%Fﬂﬁ%ﬁm@ﬁ@'
BIHNBBLSEREEMEBERARETAR

E\x.aé
LEfAE -

We focused on impairment assessment of the Group's
investment in an associate as the magnitude of the
investment in an associate is significant and management
assessment of the fair value involves judgments and
estimates, key assumptions including the basis of
selection for the comparable entities and their respective
fair values as well as the discount rates applied to the
lack of marketability factor.

BHMEIR SEER-AEBERRKRE ZBERN G R
AARN—HBERRREZHEEAN BEEEHLAE
EHE S RAG R AFTAR B EEREER AL RE
XQW“%EM&@%FﬁZmﬁm@ﬁlﬁz%ﬁym
BB RR

We evaluated and challenged the composition
of the associate’s fair value and the process by
which they were drawn up, including testing
the underlying fair value less cost of disposal
calculation.

AP RT3 R B A A
BF BREASABEOL A

ﬁﬁ%@ﬁu&%%
CER G ERANEE

We challenged the key assumptions including the
basis of selection for the comparable entities for
fair value valuation and the discount rates applied
to the lack of marketability factor. We considered
the appropriateness of the discount rates adopted
by management.
ﬁffiﬁg\ﬁ\“%ﬂiﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁzg
BARRZTSRBUERRHHEXEFWURMER
ﬁﬁ%f%ﬁ%%@%%ﬁﬁméﬂﬁo

We checked the accuracy and relevance of the
input data on sample basis; and

BAAVAE T e & A SR A0 w1 AR R
54

We evaluated the independent external valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

AR BN B EM R e R8N -
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
PSS EIR

FRETEIE (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRI E A EEMASEGEIR

Fair value measurement of investments in film
production

ENREREZARENE

Refer to notes 4 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A2 A M BRI E4RK25

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had investments in film
production with the carrying amount of HK$45,318,000.
RZZE_ZF=A=+—H  EXEEZHERENR
TH {& /345,318,0007 7T ©

The investments in film production mainly represent
investments in certain films that the Group is not
considered to be involved in the production process or as
the distributor.
BYNERAIERRALTEY
HEERRER TR AETHE) -

EEERERTZ

The investments in film production were recorded as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
are subject to fair value measurement at the end of each
reporting period. The Group used discounted cash flows
under income approach to evaluate the fair value of the
investments in film production as at 31 March 2020, and
recognised a loss of fair value of HK$13,647,000 in profit or
loss in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020.

EXREREARIEEREARABEFABREZEREE K
ARBREHPHERBETAAEFE. BEEEREBEK
NEERBRRERERTEEFZREREN_-_T_TF
ZSA=+—HBNARE EkBEBE_T_ZEF=A=+—
AlLFRERBEER R EEE13,647,000/8 7T °

We evaluated the independent external valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

BAARHEB MR ER R e R FBIE

We challenged the key assumptions including the
basis of selection for the comparable entities for
fair value valuation and the discount rates applied
to the lack of marketability factor. We considered
the appropriateness of the discount rates adopted
by management; and
BMEREERAAERBET AR EREIEERE
ARRZTERBERR 2B RAREFARRR R
MEEEEEBRMANBRINSEE: &

We checked the accuracy and relevance of the
input data on sample basis.

BAAIAAER DT AR E A BURA) ERENE M ARRA I
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BWIAWENEE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BASEETEIE (15)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
B EEIE B Est N EIEE R ETEIE

Fair value measurement of investments in film
production (Continued)

ENREREZARETNE (&)

These conclusions required the significant management's

judgment, with respect to the discount rate and the

underlying cash flows, in particular future revenue of the

films.

aiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ??é%:@f‘ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ?&*Efﬂfﬁf/m; (LHERE
7 AR IS ) fEH R -

To support management'’s determination of the fair value
used for impairment assessment purposes, the Group
has engaged external independent qualified valuers
to perform fair value valuation on investments in film
production.

RXBEBBETANBETANAAE BE5ECEZE
BIINBBEIAERGEMYEXREREETAAEMRE

We focused on fair value measurement of investments in
film production as the magnitude of the investments in
film is significant and management assessment of the fair
value involves judgments and estimates, key assumptions
including the basis of selection for the comparable
companies, discount rate and the underlying cash flows, in
particular future revenue of the films.
BREINEXEREZAAEBEFE REANREZREZ
BEEAN BEEEYH QA BN R A R A AR
EREBERBARZEE BREXNARARCRE (K=
RREZ W) VRIS REK -

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE SU B R R R AABER & L
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other EEFHEMEHAE HMERBE R
information comprises the information included in the Annual RERANER - ETBREEEMBEEREK
Report but does not include the consolidated financial statements BPIRZBA RS -

and our auditor's report thereon.

S
EX
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BWIAWENEE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON
(Continued)

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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BWIAWENEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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BWIAWENEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matters or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 June 2020

Kwong Tin Lap
Practising certificate number: P01953

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2, Kowloon Commerce Centre,
No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

= A S A
Reflax
Year ended 31 March 2020
HE-ZT-_ZTF=-A=+—ALFE

2020 2019
—EC-EFE —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
REVENUE &= 6 66,246 178,951
Cost of sales and services HE R ARTE A (58,635) (162,091)
Gross profit EF 7,611 16,860
Other income and gains Eqth Uk A B Uk 25 6 8,996 4,736
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEMAX (1,749) (3,009)
Administrative expenses TR X (74,285) (81,575)
Other operating expenses HAth 4R 7 (48,670) (50,017)
Finance costs %5 & A 8 (5,111) (2,231)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—EEERA 19 103 350
Share of profit of an associate o — B = A B Al 18 10,712 11,525
LOSS BEFORE TAX BrFLRTE B 9 (102,393) (103,361)
Income tax credit TSt & 11 708 520
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEFEHE (101,685) (102,841)
Loss for the year attributable to: TIATREIERER
=i
Owners of the Company iN/NETE Z =N (98,399) (99,090)
Non-controlling interests FEIE A & (3,286) (3,751)
(101,685) (102,841)
2020 2019
—EZEFE —E-NF
HK cents HK cents
A&l Il
(restated)
(&L&E5)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO AR &l A A (HEAX
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY &5 18 12
Basic HAR (22.24) (23.83)
Diluted e N/A RiEH N/A 5
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEREBRR

Year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_Z_ZTHFE-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
ot Jmt 33 —ZE-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E THET FHT
LOSS FOR THE YEAR REEEE (101,685) (102,841)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hizm (), ]A
(EXPENSE)/INCOME
ltems that may be reclassified to profit A E & HifE 7] E¥71 5 48
or loss in subsequent periods: ZERIER -
Share of exchange differences on HEBRE—HEE
translation of a joint venture RAEZEHR Z5 19 73 13
Share of exchange differences on LR E —HEE
translation of an associate RAZEH Z5 18 (1,154) (540)
Exchange differences on translation ~— #E GINEFR 2
of foreign operations PE 7 =58 (2,148) 463
(3,229) (64)
ltems that may not be reclassified to ~ REZHHE T~ EH
profit or loss in subsequent periods: D fEEEHZEE -
Gain on property revaluation, Y E I
net of tax R IE 13 1,012 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE AFEEHEMEE
EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR 53 (2,217) (64)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE  AR4F[Z 2 H 5 X
FOR THE YEAR ks (103,902) (102,905)
Total comprehensive expense TEATRIERER
for the year attributable to: 2 TH A 2 A 5R -
Owners of the Company RRAREAB A (100,036) (98,702)
Non-controlling interests FEIE I & (3,866) (4,203)
(103,902) (102,905)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBRAE
As at 31 March 2020
RZZEZ_EF=A=+—H

2020 2019
i e o33 —ZE-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FERT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FmBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R 13 44,027 58,141
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 14 20,387 =
Investment properties REYE 15 69,382 77,457
Intangible assets BVEE 16 10,250 =
Prepaid land lease payments TE T + 3 A B RRIE 17 - 4,163
Investment in an associate R—EBERR 2KE 18 91,000 99,985
Investment in a joint venture R—A&aERAIZEKRE 19 - =
Financial assets at fair value through AR EFT AHMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE 20 - 290
Prepayments and deposits BRFIEREZES 24 230 1,880
235,276 241,916
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories FE 21 8,802 7,784
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 22 8,338 25,623
Loan and interest receivables FE WU E 5% K e LRI 2 23 11,129 20,022
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE  Re RHAM
receivables J& Wk TR 24 36,656 111,750
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAERZ
through profit or loss TEREE 25 51,022 6,705
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREFEY 26 28,441 13,937
144,388 185,821
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEAE
Trade payables BRI 27 5,113 7,707
Contract liabilities eHaE 28 7.279 12,639
Other payables, accruals and deposits it 15 5038 « FE&T
received RERBWRE 29 72,918 67,924
Interest-bearing bank and other SFERITREMES
borrowings 31 30,513 20,749
Obligations under finance leases RS THE A IE 30 = 1,255
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 90 -
Income tax payable FE T FR A5 %t 15,528 16,340
131,441 126,614
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFRE 12,947 59,207
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BERERRDAER
LIABILITIES 248,223 301,123
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

FEMBERAE
As at 31 March 2020
RZZEZZTF=A=+—H

2020 2019
i e o33 —ZE-hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FERT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deposits received =L ¢ 0 29 67 159
Deferred tax liabilities BEREFIEAE 32 2,351 2,225
Obligations under finance leases & B A 30 - 291
Interest-bearing other borrowings st EHEMEE 31 8,262 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 16,985 =
27,665 2,675
Net assets BEFEE 220,558 298,448
EQUITY R
Share capital % Z< 34 60,655 40,437
Reserves & 36 168,740 262,982
Equity attributable to owners ZAN/NEIE PN
of the Company TE T 229,395 303,419
Non-controlling interests FEVERR R 37 (8,837) (4,971)
Total equity T AR RE 220,558 298,448

Chung Yuk Lun
EE

Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SelgEDR

Year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_Z_ZTHFE-A=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATRANEL
Goodwill Retained
Share Asset  eliminated  Exchange profits/ Non-
Share premium Capital  revaluation against  fluctuation  (accumulated controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve’ reserves reserve losses) Total interests equity
B
Tt Bt HEER Bz EXR® REEN/ R ih
23 BER L1 i ik S BE(RHER) &5t i a8

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

At 1 April 2018 RZZ2-\¥0A-A 38,837 150,675 41,925 21,974 (152) 2,311 106,476 362,046 (768) 361,278
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - (99,090) (99,090) (3,751) (102,841)
Other comprehensive AEEZEMEE
income/(expenses) WA/ (%) :
for the year:
Share of exchange HMERE-EE
differences on translation RRZERER
of a joint venture - - - - - 13 - 13 - 13
Share of exchange PERE-fEE
differences on translation REZERER
of an associate - - - - - (540) - (540) - (540)
Exchange differences on BEBN R
translation of foreign EXER
operations - - - - - 990 - 990 (452) 538
Total comprehensive KEEZ2ERN/
income/(expenses) for the year (%) 838 - - - - - 463 99,090) 98,627) 4,203) (102,830)
Issue of shares kG 1,600 38,400 - = = = - 40,000 = 40,000
At 31 March 2019 and RZ2-nE
1 April 2019 ZA=+-Rk
—Z-N\EmA-A 40,437 189,075* 41,925* 21,974% (152)* 2,774* 7,386% 303,419 (4,971) 298,448
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - (98,399) (98,399) (3,286)  (101,685)
Other comprehensive AEEZEMRRE
income/(expenses) WA/ (B :
for the year:
Share of exchange HMERE-AE
differences on translation RRZERER
of a joint venture - - - - - 73 - 73 - 73
Share of exchange PERE-fEE
differences on translation REZERER
of an associate - - - - - (1,154) - (1,154) - (1,154)
Exchange differences on BEBNEBL
translation of foreign ERZE
operations - - - - - (1,568) - (1,568) (580) (2,148)
Gain on property revaluation ¥ E{EMaE - - - 1,012 - - - 1,012 - 1,012
Total comprehensive REEZ2ARN/
income/(expenses) (Fx)e8
for the year - - - 1,012 - (2,649) (98,399) (100,036) (3,866) (103,902)
Issue of shares ERA 20,218 8,087 - - - - - 28,305 - 28,305
Shares issue expenses B ETET - (2,293) - - - - - (2,293) - (2,293)
At 31 March 2020 R=%=%
= I = 60,655 194,869* 41,925* 22,986* (152)* 125% (91,013)* 229,395 (8,837) 220,558
i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERBRABDERGEAMBRARRZEAH
HK$168,740,000 (2019: HK$262,982,000) in the consolidated statement of 5168,740,0007% 7T ( = F — JL4F : 262,982,0007%
financial position. JT) e
# The asset revaluation reserve arose from changes in use from owner- # BEEMREEEOXIERYEERARAR
occupied properties to investment properties carried at fair value. AREFEZREDE-
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEHERE

Year ended 31 March 2020
BHE_Z_ZTHFE-A=+—HLEE

2020 2019
i et 223 —E-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Ft FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBEL RS
ACTIVITIES mE
Loss before tax B 4 AT BT 18 (102,393) (103,361)
Adjustments for: BT S IEFE
Finance costs M%ER 8 5,111 2,231
Share of profit of a joint venture SME—REERRZ
il 19 (103) (350)
Share of profit of an associate SE—RHEE QR Z
il 18 (10,712) (11,525)
Bank interest income SR1TH B U A 6 (23) (13)
Write-back of other payables H b FE A5 7038 #5 [T 6 (692) (363)
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BB L&ZEH
property, plant and equipment 18 B 2 W 6 (177) (27)
Loss/(gain) on changes in fair values & EWE R R
of investment properties Yo EE(KE) 6,7 2,088 (2,100)
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAREFABZEZ
assets at fair value through ERMEEZAR
profit or loss, net BB (W) T
— equity investments at fair value —BAREFA
through profit or loss Bm 2 REERE 6 (2,306) (1,300)
— investment in film production —BYEIERE 7 13,647 -
Depreciation of property, ME - MENMRREBITE
plant and equipment 9 6,077 10,364
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 9 1,411 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease AR LA ERIE
payments i 9 - 116
Amortisation of intangible assets BILE E 2 #iH 9 1,750 -
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR SRRk (B 7 2,013 11
Impairment of other receivables H th & WK IR R (E 7 127 =
Impairment of property, M HERRERE
plant and equipment 2,706 -
Provision for/(reversal of provision) TEIETFERE
inventory obsolescence (BemEm) 9 66 (1,070)
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ R—EEE AR 2&KE
impairment loss on investment in Ekm—HEag 7
and loan to a joint venture Xz CREEBE
BE),/ REER 6,7 (98) 162
Impairment loss on investment in R—EBE AR ZRE
an associate ZRiEEE 7 18,543 21,000
Impairment loss on loan and FEWE R e W R B 2
interest receivables VRIEN TR 7 9,480 28,844
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeBaRER

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-Z-_EF=-A=+—RHLFE

2020 2019
b Jem 33 ZE-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FHET FHET
Operating cash flows before HEEEHAIZ
movements in working capital KEBERE (53,485) (57,381)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (Egm),Ed (1,084) 6,461
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables JEWBRFUR A (3 h0) 15,272 (11,517)
Increase in loan and interest receivables & E 7k & FE Y 7| B 32 A0 (587) (12,104)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEfTFHIE - Z& K
deposits and other receivables H A [l U R IR
A () 76,501 (19,325)
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets ZA R EFtABEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREE (EMm) R
— equity investments at fair value —EAREFAEBEREZ
through profit or loss iR E 3,307 5,488
— investments in film production —BREERE (58,965) =
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FEfFRRFR (R 4>) 3% 0 (2,594) 577
(Decrease)/increase in other payables, Fth f& {5178 « fE5t
accruals and deposits received HEREWIRE
CRd) /1 (6,406) 26,434
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHARE CRd) H#E
liabilities (5,360) 5,218
Exchange realignment M 5, 58 2,775 =
Cash used in operations REXBREZRE (30,626) (56,149)
Interest paid ERFE (4,5006) (2,219)
Interest element of finance lease REREN KT E
payments =B (30) (12)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEGEBENRZFEBD
payments (575) -
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEFENEH (33) (268)
PRC profits tax paid B AR B S H (1 =
Net cash used in operating activities & & X IFMFE 2R EFHE (35,771) (58,648)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FEeBaRER

Year ended 31 March 2020

BE-Z-_EF=-A=+—RHLFE

2020 2019
—T-TF —h%E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5E FERT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RERDELE RS
ACTIVITIES mE
Bank interest received B ERITHE 23 13
Purchases of items of property, plant BB E Y% 5 & &BE
and equipment B H (1,366) (7,530)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE BERH&
property, plant and equipment 18 B PriSsRIE 2,650 90
Proceeds from disposal of ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁﬂaﬂﬁ
investment properties 7,037 -
Repayment from a joint venture KE—HEERAZEN - 201
Proceeds from disposal of HERAREGTA
financial assets at fair value through ~ HEfiZ2EIA Z
other comprehensive income &R E E TS IR 290 =
Acquisition of an associate 1g B — el B & R | - (70,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEBFE (FIRE) 2
investing activities HEFE 8,634 (77,226)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MERDELEZRS
ACTIVITIES mE
Proceeds from issue of shares P IR B BT AR (D
upon rights issue F8 I8 28,305 =
Share issue expenses Hxﬁﬁ?%fT?ﬂgi (2,293) =
New bank loans g RITE R - 525
New other loan L H M &% 18,551 10,000
Repayment of bank loans BRIETER (525) (839)
Capital element of finance lease BEMEENRZER
payments 2B (1,133) (1,267)
Capital element of lease liabilities HEBBNKZERLS
payments (847) -
Net cash generated from MELTHELEZRE
financing activities FEE 42,058 8,425
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RehBESEED
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g ORd) 8 14,921 (127,449)
Cash and cash equivalents FzBHEekEeF
at beginning of year @% 13,937 138,782
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEFFHZEFE
changes, net (417) 2,604
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZACEREE
AT END OF YEAR (=% 26 28,441 13,937
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FaEMBRRME

31 March 2020
—EZEF=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda.

During the year, the Group, comprising the Company and its
subsidiaries, was engaged in the manufacture and trading
of optical frames and sunglasses, property investment,
investment in debts and securities, money lending business

and film distribution business.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

ATIREEER
SEXSEHBEEEBRAA (AR
Al ARBEREFMKIZERAR -
AN A) 2 5 it it = B AL A Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda °

FR-AKE (BREARARENEA
ADRERERRABREZHER
EE DERE BEHAIBSFKRE K
EXEBREZRITES-

FRAMBATIZEH
AARETEMBAR ZHBEMT

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration and registered paid-in equity attributable
Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
gL R ERTLER KATRELS
&% BB ERMERRE RETHLL TEEH
Direct Indirect
HiE Gk
Elegance Optical Investments Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited N Non-voting deferred property investment
BRERGEREFRAR HK$20,000,000* REZREHERE
EiER200E T
ERFEETR
20,000,0005% 7T*
Elegance Optical Manufactory Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100 Investment holding and
Limited N LRk2ET trading of optical frames
ARRERERAR LA REZRRBRERZES
Fortune Optical Limited The People's Republic Registered - 55  Trading and manufacture
("Fortune Optical")** of China ("PRC") HK$43,700,000 of optical frames
RAlEREBRAA mE AR AME 2 RERZEHREE
([RE&IZ]) = (TehE]) 43,700,0003 70
Gold Strong Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - 55 Investment holding and
ENMEIXER AT N HK$100 trading of optical frames
EE100E T REZRRBRERZES

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

ABREEER (F)
FHAMBASIZEH (F)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued ordinary/
registered paid-in

Percentage of
equity attributable

Name business capital to the Company Principal activities
M R BRfTLER/ FAEEM
3 ERE EdfaRRE IREERIL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Hi& GIEE
People by People Group Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200 - 100 Trading of optical
BE LRR200% T frames and bags in
Hong Kong and
Southeast Asia
REERREEET
BRERRTFRZES
BEXE (R BERRA PRC Registered = 100  Trading and manufacture
(TR HERI ) ** H RMB33,000,000 of optical frames
g2 atfi RERZEHREE
AR #33,000,0007
Brilliant Plan Global Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 - Securities investment
BARKARRA ("BVI") TERIET BERRE
REEIHS
([RBRZHE])
Capital Real Estate Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100 Money lending
Development Limited £ EAAR10,0008 T HfE
EHEXERARDA
Filmko Pictures (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100 Film distribution
Co. Limited B L3 1210,000,000% 7 BIEY

ERFE (FR)BRRA

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
the year and at the end of the year.

REARFEFR HEMBRACET

TERHES -

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

L The first HK$1,000,000,000,000 of the profits which the subsidiary
may determine to distribute in any financial year must be distributed
among the holders of ordinary shares where one half of the balance
of the said profits is distributed among the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares and the other half of such balance among the
holders of ordinary shares. Moreover, the holders of the non-voting
deferred shares have no other rights to dividends. The holders of the
non-voting deferred shares have no right to attend or vote at general
meetings, except for general meetings convened for the purpose of
reducing the capital of the Company or altering their class rights.
The non-voting deferred shares carry the right to receive one half of
the balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up after
the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total return of
HK$5,000,000,000.

e Fortune Optical and @ & Il are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on
the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

1.

ABREEER (&)
FEKMBAS AR (H)

fifd 5% FfT /88 22 ] 4 T 17 B B 6 B 0 R 0
F - 78 # E 7 & %1,000,000,000,0007% 7T
ﬁiﬁ%%i@%%ﬁ/\ﬁim%ﬂﬁﬁﬁz
— kA RTERERETCRIEA
—¥HAAUDRERTFEBRIZTEA ttﬁ\\~
ERERBEERFSA AW & 0
Hxﬁﬁﬁ BEREZEREERBIEAERED
ﬁﬁxiﬁajmgii%'t&?ﬁﬁwﬁXK
RARARERBEZHANENTERZ
& BR K & BR AN o 4R ZE R IR T AR P A A
F-AIRERREEBRSEABEA L
5,000,000,00078 Tt 1% ' BB TR sR E RN 2

—,
* REAERSHRY TIRE D B EEZEM
RENERE-

ERFIAEERATEFEAKE
AEEXEIBRASEEEFEE
KB ZARBIMNBRAR - EERA

FIEMHBARFHBERESREBR
L e

HABR I REXRRESEEEM (X
fﬁi?i ERLAERY) - 1 3% B AL A EY AP

DEBELE BRLEXT AR
ﬁéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁmuxﬁﬁmﬂﬁl & 3 &
BEGFAZEFE@E -EHERT
BHENHEREHEXFNEHE
BERRENRECELEMBOE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and revised HKFRSs applied in the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA").

HKFRS 16

HKFRIC-Int 23

Amendments to

Leases

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with Negative

HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendment to Annual Improvements 2015-2017 cycle
HKFRSs

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
16 "Leases”, the application of other new and amended
standards effective in respect of the current year had no
material impact on the Group's financial position and financial
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases” ("HKAS
17") and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and not apply this standard to contracts
that were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application. For
contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April 2019,
the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance with
the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a
contract contains a lease. The application of new definition
of a lease had no material impact on the Group’s financial
position on 1 April 2019.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application,
1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts equal to the
related lease liabilities. Comparative information has not been
restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

(i) relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets” as an alternative of impairment
review;

(i) elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

(i) excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

(iv) applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of properties
in Hong Kong was determined on a portfolio basis; and

(v}  used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term
for the Group's leases with extension and termination
options.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 2. ERERUBREED([F

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS EUBHREEMN]) (&8)
("HKFRSs") (Continued) N
As a lessee (Continued) € BEBEAN (E)
When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously RREFSBAKEHENHERR
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied HERGER Zliilafgﬁﬁé}/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities HHEEAEEEENIESEEEX 4
at the date of initial application. The weighted average BEEERCERNMETHEEE
incremental borrowing rate applied by the relevant group EEZNFEFI0%E9.0% °

entities ranged from 3.0% to 9.0% per annum.

At 1 April 2019

RZ=ZFB—h%F
mA—AH
HK$'000
TET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZE-NF=ZA=+—HAHEEN
as at 31 March 2019 (T B A 32,361
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant RIAFASEEEXRNRNEEAR
incremental borrowing rates 20,440
Less: Practical expedient — leases with lease AT ERE-HEHEER
term ending within 12 months from the FERBHRI2EAATENEE
date of initial application 79)
Add: Obligations under finance leases mRZE-NAF=ZA=+—HBERH
recognised at 31 March 2019 Vﬂﬁfﬁ SR 413
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 —NWFHEA—HWHEEERE 20,774
Analysed as DR
Current k) 2,160
Non-current FEMEN 18,614
20,774
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NEFHUA-—RAERAEEEN
comprises the following: EEETE BETHIEIE:
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
HK$'000
TET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases # & F & /5 B 75 ] & #E BI 281657 1%
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 MRNCEHERB o ERAREE 20,361
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments BENEENREH S 4,279
Amounts included in property, RER BT ENE17RET AR
plant and equipment under HKAS 17 W K R EH & 5
— Assets previously classified under —BEIERREEENEE
finance leases 466
25,106

=R BEEEEBR AR 2019/2020 £ 75
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 2.
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included:

fEB&BA (18)
RZZE-NFOA-BHEAMBAR
RERNFACFEHUATHE - KRR
BEHTENHEBILRIIA:

Carrying amounts Carrying

previously amounts under

reported at HKFRS 16 at

31 March 2019 Adjustments 1 April 2019

TR R-ZB-h%f

—B-NE WA —B&EEHE

=A=+-—H W ERIE165%

mEMREE Ak ETHAREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FHET

Non-current Assets kRBEE 241916 20,477 262,393

Right-of-use assets EREEE = 25,106 25,106

Prepaid land lease payments ~ TE{J T# 3 & U8 4,163 (4,163) =

Property, plant and equipment ¥1% - BiE K& & 58,141 (466) 57,675

Current assets RBEE 185,821 (116) 185,705

Prepayment, deposits and ERNRIE RER

other receivables H i & W KB 111,750 (116) 111,634

Current Liabilities mBAE 126,614 2,038 128,652

Lease liabilities ME&aE - 2,160 2,160
Obligations under BMEMERE

finance leases 1,255 (122) 1,133

Non-current Liabilities FRBELE 2,675 18,323 20,998

Lease liabilities ME&aE - 18,614 18,614
Obligations under RMEHERE

finance leases 291 (291) =
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

2.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
Amendments to Definition of Material*
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs that are not yet
effective will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties, financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), which have been
measured at fair value.

Fair value measurement

The Group's investment properties, financial asset at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"),
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")
are carried at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 16 (since
1 April 2019), or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16),
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 "Inventories”, or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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FEMBEERME
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

= is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date when the Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the equity holders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
equity holders of the Company.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a joint venture.

Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

= deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 "Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combination (Continued)
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in
another HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the ‘measurement period’ (which cannot exceed one
year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances
that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair
value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchases price first to
principal assets and financial assets/financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase
price is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at
the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity, in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists
only when decisions about the relevant activities require the
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture
exceeds the Group's interest in that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.

An investment in an associate or joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in
profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interests in associates or joint ventures may be
impaired. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or
a joint venture, or when the investment is classified as held
for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associate or joint venture and the retained interest is a
financial asset, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition in accordance with HKFRS 9. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part of interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required
if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to profit
or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment in associate and joint venture
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate
or a joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion
of the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

When an investment in an associate or joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Shorter of the lease terms and 2%

Shorter of the lease terms and the
rates of 5% to 10%

10% to 20%

10% to 20%

Land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because its use
has changed as evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
of that item (including the relevant leasehold land under
HKFRS 16 or prepaid lease payments under HKAS 17) at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the property, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease for
a property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

For a transfer to investment properties from owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change
in use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under "“Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” above. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserve.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Distribution rights

Distribution rights are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 4 years.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date of acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics are
accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial
statements would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property, plant and equipment, and
land that have a lease term of twelve months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term are depreciated from commencement date
to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and are initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments includes:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modlifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities
by making corresponding adjustments to the relevant
right-of-use assets. When the modified contract contains
a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are considered
as integral part of lease payments, the aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a
straight-line basis.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in note 2)

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset, and such costs are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured using fair value model.

Rental income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business is presented as revenue or other income,
where appropriate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEETHHEEME (E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling
prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for
the head lease and the sublease as two separate contracts.
The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head
lease, not with reference to the underlying asset.

Lease modlification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income which is derived from the Group’s ordinary
course of business is included in other income.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), except that at the date
of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset, the
Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other comprehensive
income if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business
Combinations” applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

()

(ii)

(iir)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will
not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the
equity investments, and will continue to be held in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right
to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost
of the investment.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables,
loan and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
and bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL, The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

J existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligation;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

J an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
365 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable date about the following
events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner, Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the below basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade and other receivables are each assessed as a
separate group. Amounts due from related parties
are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

. Past-due status;
. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
J External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)
Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in FVTOCI revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to retained profits.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified either as financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, including trade payables, other payables,
accruals and deposits received, interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, and lease liabilities, are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is
recognised initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance
of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit and loss.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when the Group currently
has a legally enforceable legal right to set off the recognised
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted
as to use.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary differences arise from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sales.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a
whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulted in net
deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group's performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It
is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

FESTBREE (F)

W FF 466 B

A 68 B 2 & B2 BT R 2 MR 8 B Ko
HENE—RMERER - ZEAAR
BER NHEMEEMAXEERR AE
REtEEL A ENKRA R R
REEEDRBBA -

W 2z i 58

REEFEHZWE
AEBER(RE) TKBEQEER (A
REFEENEEHEBENE mLIRS
W [ FI ] BB T EFE) R -

BHEMEE —EREEMNMRS (X
—#HEMIRE) X — R KEER
M B RE B dn AR A

fif 75 & A ™ i — R R F - B AE il 42
AEBHEE MUkzml2EZx2RE
TTHEROE TN ERERERRER:

o EFRAKEEQE R BE K
JH REZN 5% [ B 4O P ER (R RO A 25

s ZFAEENEBAHRIEREREPR
REFERBEAORZEHEE: X

s AEENEBEARRZRHEAKEA
BERAZNEE MAKEA
BHATRURESCERAO S
B FRIR ©

BRI WEREFP T AR MR
T4 R A R SR o

RHEERASENAREPBIIAE
BEOEENE SRR REBRAENE
M R B AR - EIRIBEEY
BREENFORFERE-HR &
USSR TR $5 AN S 1B O A B Y S MR 1 A
MR BEFEREAENENASY
XAt

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k

111



112

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Based on the historical pattern, revenue from film distribution
agency service is recognised over time by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation, as the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised at a point in time
when the goods are served.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis, except for the allocation of discounts.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct goods or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell promised goods or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group's performance
in transferring control of goods or services.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants (including directors of the Company and
employees of the Group) who contribute to the success
of the Group's operations, under which such participants
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby participants render services as
consideration for equity instruments.

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss. When share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to share premium.

When share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

No share options have been grant under the share option
scheme since its adoption.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under
their employment contracts on an annual basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the
end of the reporting period is permitted to be carried forward
and utilised by the respective employees in the following
financial year. An accrual is made at the end of the reporting
period for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits (Continued)

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

FESTBREE (F)

Hitg S\ (&5)

RIKEE

AR BRI 08 Bl R TE 2 5 8 R
REBER2HEBHERESRKER
el (TREEsrEl]) 2EEBRI—A
TREHERBEETE HRBEET
El2HA HADREEBEAFEZ
BOWEL YREMFEERERN
Bro-RBRrmEMEENBYERE
TRAGHEEESHAFR AEHIE
HZBERRRBARBES SR
BRBEEME -

REEETRB B A& E5% 2 M
BRARZEE VAL EAE T B
RIZPRRAKREFAE -ZEHBR
BIARESRTIERABETESL
A AP R GR IR & 5T &) 4F R R
REBEHREARESFERBENE BB
AR -

HBERE

HYE ERILEREREE(RE
BEREBTAEREBHAGIET
HEZEE ) ERABZBEXRAK
BIFER (FRAFTEEMBORA -
EERABREERNARZEFEERM
AERETAN RS ETHERRL -
miGHEEEERRNGEBREERA
FEHREMBZRERAKBD B
FEARZEERANTNE - PTAHAM
EERANEEEHRSH -

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
the joint venture and the associate are currencies other than
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgment. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.

4.

EE ST HIE R

EEENRRAEEZEAVHRE
B AFLEEmESRkE X &
ERBEZEBEAMBRAEERIAR
BEZREZHE B RER-ZF
BRRGEFFETHARE A8
ERFERNBREEEXBEZIRME
BEELEAAE-

¥ R

BB PR S B R BB M
SHE EREOELTIEGAY
BHENERZ WAL REEAY
2 HH

REY¥EBRETHAYERZ D
|

AEEBET -BAVERETAREY
KB W B 1F & H B ER
- REMETITLRIE £ & AIE
B EAmEMFEZYE AL K
SEEELEEMEERELRANEERE L
BUYRAKRERBEMBEEZRER
E-ETYXEEARRAEASHER
BEMBE D RFFIEEEXHE
EmBIRBEHIETEARZ S — 8D -
itk FH OB HERREREM
EBVHHE AEEEKLFIDE
IR fHZER D BEBLHE A
ERIERBODHELEXHRES
mEAMBBETHRAZRZBERT &
EMETDBRRENE - AEEHY
EEMEFHEG RERERBES
EZNEPELEITHEREVENE

o

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below:

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested
for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of investment in an associate

The Group assesses whether there are any indications of
impairment of associate at the end of each reporting period.
Investment in an associate are tested for impairment when
there are indications that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on comparable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. The value in use is assessed by
reference to estimated future cash flows from the asset and
the discount rate applied to calculate the present value.
Changes in business circumstances of the associate may
significantly affect the recoverable amount of the investment
which would result in additional impairment loss to be made
or reversal of impairment loss previously made. Details of the
impairment loss recognised on investment in associate are set
out in note 18.

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management of the Group reviews the usage of the
inventories at the end of each reporting period, and makes
provision for obsolete and slow-moving items where events
or changes in circumstances indicates that the net realisable
value of such inventories are expected to be less than their
carrying amount. In addition, physical counts on all inventories
are carried out on a periodical basis in order to determine
whether provision is needed to be made in respect of any
obsolete inventories identified. The directors of the Company
are satisfied that adequate provision for obsolete inventories
has been made in the consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$8,802,000, net of provision for obsolete inventories
of HK$20,372,000 (2019: HK$7,784,000, net of provision for
obsolete inventories of HK$58,853,000).
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group
is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of accounts and on management’'s judgement
at the end of each reporting period whether there is any
objective evidence that the trade receivables are impaired.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer and the assessment of the expected credit
loss. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be required.
As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade receivables
was HK$8,338,000, net of impairment of trade receivables
of HK$2,333,000 (2019: HK$25,623,000, net of impairment of
trade receivables of HK$320,000).

The Group uses four categories for expected credit loss
assessment of deposits and other receivables which reflect
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined for
each of those categories. These internal credit risk ratings are
aligned to external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss assessment of
the Group's receivables are disclosed in note 43.

Impairment of loan and interest receivables

When there is objective evidence of an impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. Further details of loan and interest
receivables are included in note 23.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Management of the Group determines on a regular basis
whether there are any indications that the property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets/prepaid land lease
payments are impaired. Impairment loss for property, plant
and equipment and prepaid land lease payments are impaired
when the carrying amounts of each of the assets exceed
their respective recoverable amounts, which are determined
based on the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The fair values of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets/prepaid land lease payments are
estimated by reference to their expected selling prices which
are affected by various factors, including market conditions
and the technological occurrence. The value in use calculation
requires the use of estimates such as the future revenue
and discount rates. If the recoverable amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets/prepaid
land lease payments is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in respect of the period. For
the current year, no impairment loss was recognised on the
Group's property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets/prepaid land lease payments (2019: Nil).

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider
various factors, such as expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance
of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the
experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in a
similar way. Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are different from previous estimates.
Useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year end date based on changes in circumstances.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investments in film production
As at 31 March 2020, investments in film production are
measured at fair value, estimated to be HK$45,318,000 (2019:
Nil), with fair value being determined based on significant
unobservable inputs using valuation techniques. Judgment
and estimation are required in establishing the relevant
valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes
in assumptions relating to these factors could result in
material adjustments to the fair value of these instruments.

Details of the investments in film productions are set out in
note 25(a).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties
Investment properties are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at their fair value. The best evidence of fair value
of the Group's investment properties are current prices in an
active market for similar properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar leases and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, management determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates.
In making its judgement, management considers information
from: (i) independent valuations; and (ii) external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition. Details regarding the fair value of the
Group's investment properties as at 31 March 2020 are set out
in note 15.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2020 was approximately
HK$181,771,000 (2019: HK$216,119,000). Further details are
disclosed in note 32.
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BZBATHER RETUEREL
RESE B BEBEEARERX
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TE—F 216,119,000 T ) o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments (2019: five reportable
operating segments) as follows:

(@) the manufacturing and trading segment engaged
in manufacture and trading of optical frames and
sunglasses;

(b) the property investment segment engaged in leasing of
properties for rental income;

(c) the debts and securities investment segment engaged in
investments in financial instruments and quoted shares;

(d) the film investment and distribution segment engaged
in film right and movie investments and distributions;
and

(e) the money lending business segment engaged in
provision of loan financing in Hong Kong.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/ loss before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/loss before tax
except that bank and other interest income, finance costs and
unallocated gains as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

In the current year, the Group reorganised its internal
reporting structure which resulted in changes to the
composition of its reportable segments. In view of downsizing
of money lending business, the Group managed the resource
previously under money lending business on a group basis for
the current year. As a result, no separate segment information
is presented for money lending business.

Segment assets exclude other unallocated head office
and corporate assets, including cash and cash equivalents,
investments in and balances with a joint venture, property,
plant and equipment and loan and interest receivables, as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

D EE

RERME AEERBHESRRR
e 5 BRI AR A T A
ARBEEH N (—F—NF: HET

BH¥REEDEE) -

(a) WEREREERBRLKGR
BIHENEEDE:

b) WEHEVEURDESWAZ
MEREDE:

0 HEEMIARBEROKREZ
BEBREFREDE:

(d WEEEREREZRENRET
BEXRERETOR K&

e) REBERUFREERBE 2NE
EBoE-

EREERASESKLED M FE
NAREERDERFERR DX
BRIRB A RS BEyE I, E1E (B
AHEEHERBANE R, B8 ) T
BB BANE R, B IE T R K E
BEAEN BEERBAE HEAH
AEYABRERITREMNMBEA
MBHEERERDEREARERERHE
R D EH X

RAFE AEEBEHNAEELRNITZ2
WRE SHEA 2D AR AKX
AP ERNBRRERY AFE-
AEBREEELEERENRNRESR
BETHER Hit REXBEHES
5B EBEFL o

DHEETERREMARDEAHRER
RexEE EFBRERSRASF
BY R—HaERRAZREREZ
RERBZHEH ME BHEEREN
KEWE R E YA E - b T) B R %
FEEREHEEEE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. SBER (F)

Segment liabilities exclude other unallocated head office and SHBEETEREMRDEANRER
corporate liabilities, including interest-bearing bank and other MExXaE HPEHEFRARITRE
borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other HWEE EMNHEE - ELHBEAERE
payables, accruals and deposits received, as these liabilities M FRIE - BT RE WiRSE - it
are managed on a group basis. THRZEBBEREEEEEIR -
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DHEHEREEN2EUERTE
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the ME=ZFHEZEBMET

then prevailing market prices.

Debts and Film

Manufacturing Property securities investment and
and trading investment investment distribution Total

BHR SHRER
REREE LU 33 HHRE BT @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiER TR TFET FEL

In respect of the year ended HEE-F-%%
31 March 2020 ZAZt-HLEEEME

Segment revenue S 62,609 2,768 - 1,529 66,906
Inter-segment revenue Ak - (660) - - (660)
Revenue from external customers RENMPEP 2 W 62,609 2,108 - 1,529 66,246
Segment (loss)/profit S (E1) /A (35,360) (5,006) (1,558) (53,108) (95,062)
Bank interest income FATHSHA 23
Interest income from loan receivables EWETF A 2,187
Corporate and other unallocated expenses % REMARAHEH L (15,245)
Finance costs IHER (5,111)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—HEERR 2R 103 - - - 103
Share of profit of an associate AE—EBE R 2 EH - - - 10,712 10,712
Loss before tax BEAIER (102,393)
Segment assets HEE 109,925 69,865 5,967 154,316 340,073
Corporate and other unallocated assets ~ SEREMASIREE 39,591
Total assets AERE 379,664
Segment liabilities SR 74,233 795 35 24,625 99,688
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities ©¥REMAXSREE 59,418
Total liabilities REAS 159,106

=R EREEEEBR AR 2019/2020 3 123
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

5. S8B&EHR (E)

Debts and Film
Manufacturing Property securities investment and
and trading investment investment distribution Total
BHR BYRER
REREE hERE BHRE & @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TiER TiER TR FET
Other segment information: £ pEH:
Share of profit of a joint venture Ah—AEERAZER 103 s s s 103
Share of profit of an associate AE—EHE R A28 - - - 10,712 10,712
Depreciation and amortisation MEREH
Segment expenses PHEX (5,480) (309) - (3,150) (8,939)
Unallocated AOR (299)
Total &:t (9,238)
Impairment loss on investment R-HBERRZRAAEER
in an associate - - - (18,543) (18,543)
Provision for inventory obsolescence BEEERA (66) - - o (66)
Impairment of trade receivables YRR E (2,013) o s s (2,013)
Impairment of loan and interest RRERRERTSRE
receivables
Segment expense ABREX - = e 0 S
Unallocated AHR (9.480)
Total &zt (9,480)
Reversal of impairment loss on BER-HRERRAZRER
investment in and loan to M-EeERRER 2 HERE
a joint venture 98 - - - 98
Additions to items of property, REME BERREER
plant and equipment 1,087 - - 279 1,366

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2020

—E-EF=-A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5. 9EEE(B)

Film
Debts and investment
Manufacturing Property securities and Money
and trading investment investment  distribution lending Total
BBk  EF¥RA
HERER NERE BHRE B HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThEL ThEL ThEL Fitn Fitn
In respect of the year ended HEE-F-N&
31 March 2019 ZAZt-BLEEME
Segment revenue ok E 169,287 2,644 1,300 1,102 4948 179,281
Inter-segment revenue A ks - (330) - - - (330)
Revenue from external customers RENFRF 2 K 169,287 2314 1,300 1,102 4,948 178,951
Segment (loss)/profit S (B8) /&) (45,611) 1,663 (686) (27,830) (24,328) 96,792)
Bank interest income RITHEMA 13
Corporate and other PEREBRAIERZ
unallocated expenses (16,226)
Finance costs BB (2,231)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—FEaERA RN 350 = = = = 350
Share of profit of an associate PE—RBAAR ZEH - - - 11,525 - 11,525
Loss before tax BREAEE (103,361)
Segment assets HBEE 124,127 77,457 6,705 184,809 20,702 413,800
Corporate and other TEREMAAIREE
unallocated assets 13,937
Total assets BELE 427737
Segment liabilities HipALRE 72,046 354 = 17,575 = 89,975
Corporate and other PEREMANEAE
unallocated liabilities 39,314
Total liabilities BERE 129,289
Other segment information: HithpipEH:
Share of profit of a joint venture AE-EEERAZEM 350 - - - - 350
Share of profit of an associate ME—FEB A AR 27 = = = 11,525 = 11,525
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (8,996) (69) (182) (1,233) - (10,480)
Impairment loss on investment R-EBERFAREL
in an associate REERE = = = (21,000) = (21,000)
Reversal of provision for inventory HEFERERD
obsolescence 1,070 = = = = 1,070
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR ZURLE 1) = = = = (1)
Impairment of loan and JENE SR FE Y SR E
interest receivables = = = = (28,844) (28,844)
Impairment loss on investment R-HagRA RE
in and loan to a joint venture RE-HAERA
BRZAEBHE (162 - - - - (162
Additions to items of property, RENE BERRBEEE
plant and equipment 5,341 236 = 3,789 = 9,366

=l
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

SEBEF (15)

Geographical information Hh 35 & ¥4
Revenue from external customers (a) RBEIFEFEZW

2020 2019
—T-TF —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TEIT
Europe &M 14,485 23,733
America E=M 40,586 53,859

The People’s Republic of China hEARAM
("PRC") (including Hong Kong) ([FRE]) (BESH) 8,884 96,908
Other Asian countries = RN IETES 2,091 3,674
Others Hith 200 777
66,246 178,951

(b)

The revenue information above is based on the locations
of the customers. The PRC (including Hong Kong)
segment mainly represents rental income from lessees
located in the PRC (including Hong Kong), the sales
of eyewear products to agents located in Hong Kong
including sales made to local retailers, fair value gains on
listed equity investments and interest income from loans
made in Hong Kong. The directors are of the opinion
that the agents in Hong Kong export the Group's
products mainly to ultimate customers located in Europe
and America.

Non-current assets

All significant operating assets of the Group are
located in the PRC (including Hong Kong). Accordingly,
no geographical information of segment assets is
presented.

Information about major customers
Revenue from individual customers of the corresponding
years contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group is

Fatl s E M IIRIER P AER
o -FE(BEFB)DBER
BRERTE(BEEE) 2
BARBRZEES KA WERE
BHRERLTERHEREE
fn EWREREN AR B
MREBBBHRENBEA-E
ERRBBEZREREERER
TEHOTFHREMEZME &
REP-

(b) FRBEE
AEBMAEEALEEEHTR
hE(REEE) Fit WES
55 # A B 2 M AR -

AREEERZEHR

REBFERE SAEE TR A NS
10% A EMBEATP ZWEHIT

as follows:
2020 2019
—EEFE —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEL T T
Customer A — USA BEEA—%H 28,911 30,174
Customer B — PRC EEB—H N/AFE A * 82,220

*

The revenue of Customer B did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. Wi RHEMUTA
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WaENRREREREZTNES
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, gross EmZBEFE LHESBARE
rental income and agency and commission income from film FERTRERASHEA-
distribution.
An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income is as REBYE M EMBAZDFTNT
follows:
2020 2019
k. Jmt 33 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue: Wz :
Sale of goods HEHm 62,609 169,287
Rental income from lease of HEREMEZ
investment properties HEUWA 2,108 2,314
Interest income on money lending WEZER 2 M EWA
business - 4,948
Film distribution agency and BYBITREBERAR
commission income A 1,529 1,102
Fair value gains on equity investments BRAREF AEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net BREREZARE
DEah - 1,300
66,246 178,951
Other income and gains: Hi g\ R W2z
Sale of scrap materials H & BE K 323 68
Accounting service fee TR E 1,080 1,260
Bank interest income RATHLB WA 23 13
Interest income from loan receivables JE W E SR A B A 2,187 -
Rental income from lease of machineries A& #zs 2 1 © U A 1,327 -
Fair value gains on equity investments BRAREF ABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net BEREZARE
&b 2,306 -
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - WE RRE
property, plant and equipment 18 B 2 Was 177 27
Gain on changes in fair values of KREMEAREE D
investment properties & - 2,100
Write-back of other payables H At & < FRIA 5 [ 692 363
Reversal of impairment loss on BER—E&EE AT
investment in and loan to 21 E Km—[E
joint venture (note 19) BERBIERZ
BERE (KE19) 98 -
Others Hitb 783 905
8,996 4,736

=X EREEEEBR AR 2019/2020 £ 127
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

7. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 7. HEEMX
2020 2019
bt e 35 —ZT-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Impairment of trade receivables JE W AR FORE (BT 5122)
(note 22) 2,013 11
Impairment of loan and interest JE W B R R e W A R
receivables (note 23) BB (HIEE23) 9.480 28,844
Impairment of other receivables H h WO IB R (B 127 =
Impairment loss on investment in an R—EBE QR ZKE
associate (note 18) 2R EEE (M5E18) 18,543 21,000
Impairment loss on investment in and R—E&aERrEZ
loan to a joint venture (note 19) RERA—H&EE
NEERZ BEERE
(P3E19) - 162
Impairment loss on property, Mz BE MR ERE
plant and equipment =gl 2,706 =
Loss on changes in fair value REMERREEZSH
of investment properties (note 15) EE (MEE15) 2,088 =
Fair value loss on financial assets BRAREFGTAEBRZ
at fair value through profit or loss THEEZANLEEE
— investments in film production — B RERE 13,647 -
Others EAh 66 =
48,670 50,017
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MBEHR
2020 2019
—EC-EHE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMBEERFE 4,506 2,219
Interest on finance leases EERER S 30 12
Interest on lease liabilities HEARHNE 575 -
5,111 2,231

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-EF=-A=+—H

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. BRBIAEE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBRBABERNBR (5T A)
(crediting): TH & IE&ER:
2020 2019
- e 33 —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Cost of inventories sold* BEFE KA 56,592 161,832
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz BERRETE
equipment 6,077 10,364
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,411 =
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEfT LA E5KIE 2
payments 5 S 116
Amortisation of intangible assets | E B 2 HEiE 1,750 =
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN &
— audit service —EZRT 1,225 1,200
- non-audit service — B LR 50 =
Minimum lease payments under THREFZ
operating leases in respect of land RELEHEHMEE
and buildings - 7,199
Short-term leases expenses REPHEERY 2,164 =
Employee benefit expense BEBEAMHAX
(excluding directors’ and chief (TEEEEN
executive's remuneration): THRARME)
Wages, salaries and other benefits T8 ¥HekEMmEs 32,928 49,952
Pension scheme contributions** BIKE 5B T 1,989 5,383
34,917 55,335
Gross rental income e WALz (2,108) (2,314)
Less: Direct operating expenses BRI 2 REME
(including repairs and FIE4A 2 BEEKE
maintenance) arising from Fx (BEEER
rental-earning investment RE)*
properties* 294 259
Net rental income He WA F58 (1,814) (2,055)
Provision/(reversal) for inventory T ERE S (EE) >
obsolescence* 66 (1,070)
Foreign exchange losses, net BN EE  FE 4,569 2,285

* IIAGRAEBRERPZ [HERRBRA] -

Included in “cost of sales and services” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

** At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited ** RBERR AEE L /D RBRKSE
pension scheme contributions available to reduce its contributions to IR AT AR R R F 2 2 RIKE FHEIH
1:/7(

the pension schemes in future years (2019: Nil). F(ZE-—NF:|E)-

=X EEEEEBR AT 2019/2020 £33k 129
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeEMBERETME

31 March 2020

—E-EF=-A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - fTHHEBRAERS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' FESZE
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERITHEZNE

2020 2019

—E-FFE —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fees e 268 426
Other emoluments: H b i

Basic salaries and bonuses ERNF S RIEL 630 3,077

Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIE R 34 50

664 3,127

Total 5T 932 3,553

a. Independent non-executive directors a. BYFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

FRARABLFATESTIN 28

for the year were as follows: ST
2020 2019
ot Jet- 3 —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET
Wan Kin Man, Tony FRE - 120
Chan Wei ;3 - 5
Chan Ming Kei PR 84 & - 120
Chen Youchun RRE 8 120
Chan Chung Yin, Victor PR - 34
Man Wai Lun AR B 120 27
Cheung Chun Man AR 85 -
Tang, Warren Louis EEfRm 55 -
Hui Man Ho, Ivan & = -
268 426

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors for the year (2019:
Nil).

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 10. EE - THHEARRALERS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’ FREEZM: (&)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration EERTHAETZNE (&)
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and b. #HTEE IHTESERITH
the chief executive R
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total
and bonuses contributions remuneration
EXHE Bikg
R4 sHEIR Bl & 4888
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TFET FER
2020 - el 33
Executive directors: WITESE:
Liu Shufeng' ZER 5 54
Chan Kam Wah? R 3 22 1 13
Chung Yuk Lun ERH 13 41
Chan Chung Yin Victor® BR fh A3 9 180
Non-executive FHITES:
directors:
Wong Hoi Fung* T 1 1
Wong Hoi Ping® FHF 5 5
34 664

=X EEEEEBR AT 2019/2020 F3F 131
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration

(Continued)

b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive (Continued)

10. B¥ (THBHEEERH
FEEZEE (8)
EERTHEEZNE (8)

b. HITEEZE FHITEERITH
mE(E)
Pension
Basic salaries scheme Total

and bonuses

contributions remuneration

EXFe BRe
RAEAL SHEIfE e mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
FHET FAT TAET
2019 ~E-0EF
Executive directors: WITES:
Chan Wai Kit® RS 43 1 44
Liu Shufeng ZER 960 18 978
Ma Yilin iR £ 37 356 - 356
Wong Chi Yan? bl 537 10 547
Chan Kam Wah PR 53 2 55
Chung Yuk Lun ERH 171 4 175
Liu Longkin® SRR e 137 - 137
Wong Hoi Ping BT 622 10 632
Non-executive FHITESE:
directors:
Wang Jijun' FEED 81 = 81
Wong Hoi Fung TaE 17 5 122
3,077 50 3,127

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

! Ms. Liu Shufeng resigned as an executive director with effect
from 14 June 2019.

Mr. Chan Kam Wah resigned as an executive director with
effect from 18 April 2019.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
(Continued)
b. Executive directors, non-executive directors and

the chief executive (Continued)

& Mr. Chan Chung Yin Victor was appointed as an executive
director with effect from 15 July 2019, and resigned as an
independent executive director with effect from 11 January
2019.

& Mr. Wong Hoi Fung resigned as non-executive director with
effect from 9 May 2019.

Mr. Wong Hoi Ping was appointed as non-executive director
and resigned as an executive director with effect from 27 May
2019.

& Mr. Chan Wai Kit resigned as an executive director with effect
from 17 April 2018.

Ms. Ma Yilin resigned as an executive director with effect from
14 April 2018.

Mr. Wong Chi Yan resigned as an executive director with effect
from 22 October 2018.

7 Mr. Liu Longkin resigned as an executive director with effect
from 28 September 2018.

Ms. Wong Jijun resigned as non-executive director with effect
from 28 September 2018.

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals during the year do
not include any director (2019: one director, details of
whose remuneration are disclosed above). Details of the
remuneration of the five (2019: remaining four) non-director,

b. BITEE FUTEERTH
mE(E)

T RMAKEE-F-NAELATE
AREZEANTEERA-F
—NE—A+—BRBEBIEN
TEE-

. ITEEREA-_T-NAFRANE
EEEFFNTES

. ITBEFEEA-_FT-NLFAA
“TERREZERINTEER
BEMTES-

¢ REH#ELEB-FT-NFONA+L
RERERTESR-

7 MAMLZLtE —E—-N\FEA+H
RERENTES-

¢ BEEREEBE-_ZT-NEFET+A
Tt REBERTES-

g BB EEB _ZE-NFENA

N B RBHERITE S -
o EIFERLA-T-N\FAS
B EBHERNTES
IamEHREEZME

FR-RAEHESFALFTEBEEM
EF (2T NF:—REZ H#=2
HBEEREXHWE) FR AR (=
T-NE RTOER)FEEHERFA

highest paid individuals for the year are set out below: + oML BT
2020 2019
—E-EFE —E—-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ETT FHET
Basic salaries and bonuses EAXE S RIEL 4,154 3,701
Housing benefits EE®EH 1,452 1,572
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIH K 109 98
5,715 5,371
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES'
REMUNERATION (Continued)

Five highest paid employees’ emoluments
(Continued)

The number of non-director, highest paid individuals whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENFTINBEZHEZTTSHA
TZABWT:

Number of non-director,
highest paid individuals

FEEREHFALAN
2020 2019

—e-%% —n%

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fi#% FBT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T Z2,500,000/% 7T - 1
5 4

One of the non-director, highest paid individuals occupied
one of the Group's properties rent free during the year. The
estimated value of the accommodation provided to him was
HK$252,000 (2019: HK$252,000) for the year ended 31 March

FREF—Z2IEEERHFALRL
HEERAEEET -—EYX-BE
—E_FTF-_AZ=T-HLEFE'@
TBZ?ET, 12 2 k5T # {5 /252,000 7T

2020, which has been included in the amounts detailed — N5 252,000 7C) © B EFA

above. J:Xﬁ L& BE A ©
INCOME TAX CREDIT 1. FiEHHER

2020 2019

—B-®E —NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Current — Hong Kong BN —& B

Charge for the year REFEZH = -
Current — Elsewhere BN ER— H b 3 [

Charge for the year REFE T H (mn 0]
Overprovision in prior years BAEFEHRERE 779 637
Deferred tax charge EFERT A X (70) (116)
Total tax credit for the year RNEZRIBE AT 708 520

No provision for the Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group does not generate any assessable profits for
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

B AN 6% B 0 RN 4R R 4 E AR (] R
AR A - R I R AR F B M 1S A B
o HMhiblE 2 BRBUEF 2 HIB T
*ETFKEIK“%%fQﬁﬁET&%EZ
BRITHEFE
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

The income tax credit/expense can be reconciled to the loss

1. iIRbBER (8)
FERER BMXTREAERRY

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss RTATEBEERAT
as follows:
Hong Kong The PRC Total
&E g gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
2020 —E-®
Loss before tax & B R E 18 (78,191) (24,202) (102,393)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BREEMEFEZ KA (12,901) (6,050) (18,951)
Expenses not deductible for tax NRINTZ F X 10,373 6,051 16,424
Profit attributable to a joint venture —H#& & A Al FE (5 & F (17) o (17)
Profit attributable to an associate — BB & N B R & A (1,767) - (1,767)
Tax losses not recognised AERTIAER 4,312 - 4,312
Adjustments in respect of WM Z AR
previous periods - (779) (779)
Income tax expense/(credit) FreRimx/ (KE) 70 (778) (708)
2019 “EB-NF
Loss before tax B35 B B 1R (72,131) (31,230) (103,361)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEAEMEFTE 2 IE (11,902) (7,808) (19,710)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR 2 X 3,465 7,809 11,274
Profit attributable to a joint venture —MH& & A Al &1L % A (58) = (58)
Profit attributable to an associate —[E B N | B A & A (1,902) = (1,902)
Tax losses not recognised RERRIAEE 10,513 = 10,513
Adjustments in respect of B HAfR 2
previous periods (637) = (637)
Income tax (credit)/expense Fiis# (o) Fx (521) 1 (520)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. XAGIHEAELEREE

136

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic loss per share amounts is based on
the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$98,399,000 (2019: HK$99,090,000), and
the weighted average of 442,398,000 (2019: 415,894,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted
for the basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2019 has been adjusted to take account of the effect
arising from the rights issue of shares by the Company on
18 February 2020.

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Group had no
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 or as at those dates.

EREAEBNZEFARNRAEES A
JE{h 2N [E E51898,399,0008 7T ( =&
— L4 : 99,090,000 7T ) M B BT Y
A% AN 7 15 £0442,398,0000% (==
— FL4F 1 415,894,0000% ) 5T & -

A ERE—_T-NAF=A=1+—H
FEENSRERNBEMRANE R
BMEFDHEERE R AR
AR_ZT_TF_A+N\BETHRK
ELNTE-

HREBEEZ2-_E_TFR_T—NF=
A=+ —HUIEFEHEIRZERR
AEEWECETASREE N 2LER
IR -t 25| Gl EEEE-
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V¥ -BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
i KB
HEME RER REAE
TiHRET R e B RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET
31 March 2020 —®-%£=RA=+-H
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE=R=1-H
Cost A 57,962 31,590 30,422 9,823 12,404 142,201
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (17,868) (24,355) (27,111) (5,713) (9,013) (84,060)
Carrying amount FHE 40,094 7,235 3311 4110 3,39 58,141

Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 RZZ-NEZR=1-HZ
EEE 40,094 7,235 3311 4,110 3,391 58,141
Assets reclassified to right-of-use assets ~ RRM BB RS 28
upon adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 14)  B16R A ENAEZERE

BECARE (Wite) - - - - (466) (466)
Carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RIZ-NEMA-BZ

KEE 40,094 7,235 3311 4,110 2,925 57,675
Additions, at cost RE REA - - 8 488 870 1,366
Disposals HE - (1,252) (687) (529) (5) (2,473)
Depreciation provided for the year ERELTERR (1,833) (792) (988) (1,666) (798) (6,077)
Gain on property revaluation EE L6 1,124 - - - - 1,124
Impairment recognised in profit or loss ~ REZEERZAE - (1,868) - (222) (616) (2,706)
Transfer to investment property (note 15)  EBZEREW% (HizH15) (1,865) - - - - (1,865)
Exchange realignment A% (1,855) (388) (714) (42) (18) (3,017)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZZ-Z2F=R=1-H

ZEEE 35,665 2,935 930 2,139 2,358 44,027
At 31 March 2020 R-E-FFE=A=1-H
Cost KA 54,363 14,193 15,340 8,501 6,137 98,534
Accumulated depreciation and ZHAERAME
impairment (18,698) (11,258) (14,410) (6,362) (3,779) (54,507)
Carrying amount RaEfE 35,665 2,935 930 2,139 2,358 44,027
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% - = Resk s (48)
(Continued)
Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
buildings  improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
Gl %E
BENE B R REAE
THRET b3 BE B nE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
31 March 2019 “E-nEZH=+-H
At 1 April 2018: RZZ-N\FHA-A:
Cost KA 60,917 31,887 37,498 6,592 11,321 148,215
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (17,997) (21,305) (32,314) (4,743) (9.978) (86,337)
Carrying amount REE 42920 10,582 5,184 1,849 1,343 61,878
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\§0A-HZ
e 42,920 10,582 5184 1,849 1,343 61,878
Additions, at cost RE BRA - 801 1,760 4,13 2869 9,366
Disposals & - - - - (63) (63)
Depreciation provided for the year ENELNERE (1,328) (2,148) (4.421) (1,749) (834) (10,480)
Exchange realignment A% (1,498) (1,800) 788 (126) 76 (2,560)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 RIE-NE=A=1-8
ZEEE 40,004 7,235 331 4110 3,391 58,141
At 31 March 2019; RZF-NE=R=1-R:
Cost KA 57,962 31,590 30,422 9,823 12,404 142,201
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE
impairment (17,868) (24,359) (27,11) (5.713) (9,013) (84,060)
Carrying amount REE 40,094 7,235 331 4110 3,391 58,141
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

13. W% - = Resk s (48)

The land use rights of certain buildings included in land
and buildings are separately presented in “Right-of-use
assets” (since 1 April 2019) (note 14) or “Prepaid land lease
payments” (note 17) (before 1 April 2019).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, certain land and
building with the carrying amount of HK$1,865,000 were
transferred to the investment properties and the net gain
on change in fair value of this property amounted to
HK$1,012,000 (comprising the gain on charge in fair value
of HK$1,124,000 less attributable deferred tax liabilities of
HK$112,000) was included in asset revaluation reserve.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s motor vehicles held
under finance leases at 31 March 2020 amounted to HK$nil
(2019: HK$2,468,000).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had pledged part of its land
and buildings with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$16,000,000 (2019: nil) to secure the Group's borrowings.

SAALHMBEEBFZETEFZ LME
REEFS2INIEREEE] (A=
T-NEFMA—HR) (ME14) % [E
B ERE] (ME17) (RZF
—NFMA—BA) -

HE-_Z-_ZTF-_A=+—HLFE"
BR T {E £ 1,865,00058 T 89 3% T T3 |2
Efﬁvi?Xﬁ%% BZWERNRIR
g% %buéz $SH%E1,012,00058 7T (B 45
NAREEE 7 WE1,124,00058 7T 7 E
'TELL%RIE\E\{E']'IZ,OOO/%E)n‘l’Aéﬁ
EEnEE-

W_ZE-ZTFE=ZA=+—H KAEH
LREREMFAEZEmEASS
T (ZZF— 42,468,000 7T) °

R-E-FF=A=+-0 2%E
£ 5 # H BR H {8 4916,000,00078 7T ( =
T-AFE)NBRLIBRET M

MEAEEMER

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FHESE
Leased
Leasehold Leased motor
land properties vehicles Total
HELH HEYE HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TEL FEL TAET
(note a) (note b) (note b)
(MizEa) (MsEb) (MsEb)
Carrying amount RZE-AFNA—H
at 1 April 2019 REREE 22,563 1,823 720 25,106
Disposals HE - (1,474) (421) (1,895)
Depreciation provided BE_Z_ZF
for the year ended _ﬂ_+ HIEEE
31 March 2020 MTERE (784) (328) (299) (1,411)
Exchange realignment L (1,413) - - (1,413)
Carrying amount RZZE_ZF=f
at 31 March 2020 =t+—-H0EREE 20,366 21 = 20,387
Expense relating to short-term BHREHERAER
leases and other leases E%}MJ% BENK
with lease terms end WEERE 165 B 5
within twelve months of £+ BARTEN
the date of initial EuBENRY
application of HKFRS 16 2,164
Total cash outflow for leases HERE R LA 3,412
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14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The Group owns various industrial buildings where its manufacturing
facilities are primarily located in the PRC. The Group is the registered
owner of the property interests, including the land in DaHou Village,
XieGang Town of DongGuan, which previously recorded as prepaid
land lease payments, and the land in Yin Hu industrial area, XieGang
Town of DongGuan, which has 50 years fixed lease term with monthly
payments by the Group. For the land in DaHou Village, lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the property interests. The
leasehold land components of the owned property are presented
separately only if the payments made can be allocated reliably.

(b) As at 31 March 2020, the Group leases a car park (1 April 2019:
various office premise, car park and motor vehicles) for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one year to five
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines the
period for which the contract is enforceable. As at 31 March 2020,
the Group has extension and/or termination options in a number of
leases for offices.

The lease of assets are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's
operations. The majority of extension and termination options
held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether it
is reasonably certain to exercise the extension options or not
to exercise the termination options. There was no potential
exposures to these future lease payments for (i) extension
options in which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise and (ii) termination options in which the Group is not
reasonably certain not to exercise.

There was no additional lease liabilities recognised during
the year ended 31 March 2020 as a result of (i) exercising
extension option that the Group was not reasonably certain
to exercise and (ii) not exercising termination option that the
Group was not reasonably certain not to exercise.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option, or not to exercise a
termination option, upon the occurrence of either a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances that is within
the control of the lessee. During the year ended 31 March
2020, there is no such triggering event.

14. EHESE (8)

i

() AEEHEFZEIXANE HBERMET
BURTE -RNEEAMEED (BEL
RISk RTEN T ERIEZ AN R=EH
HEARENE— LI K ASOFEEMEH
Bl AREEE A MM A7 REH E#ER
MIEEN—RTH)NELHEEAR
URAEMSO LM E RASEN—
BHHRBEBAERYEER - FAHEMENE
B MM E D B & R AR S ) B
HEE R TEBILZS

(b) %f?fzi A=+—B F~&BERH
BEHE—EFES (ZE-NLFHRA—
B:ZERAE FEHRAE) HEAR
WEEE-FERFFHRIL - BEBHER
RERNEEER YABESETRMN G
RRGH -EEEEERRFGETIRE
ZHRE AEERASONERLEE
BT REMITHSNE - RFT_FF=
A=t—H A&KERZABAZEES
BALERR, R IEHRIRRE-

HEEERNKBRERRNEBR L EM
%QFEEWELEEE%KiEm°
REDFFHAENER MK ILEEERE
AHAKEMIFRSEMEBEATTR-

AEBREERBAHFEREARE
BETEECREEEXTITELLE
B -2EAKBAENRROAEER
WA BHETEITENLEREZRE X (i)
REBEBWFEEETE TTRENOKLE
%E@ﬁﬁ ﬁ, B TE R o

RBEE_T_FTF=-A=1T—HLHF
E-SiERREIMMERE HAR
M”EKEII#A@ﬁ 1T/ IE
EBEE QMM TEAEELIFS
ﬁﬁmTﬂﬁm%i\EE°

AN AEESER A HAEAE
HHEAEHXERNBRESK B
MR EAERESTEERER
BATTERKLIEER-RBE_F
“EF=A=+—-RILFE HED
REMBERESF-
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &YX

2020 2019

ot et -3 —ENF

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Bt &E THET FHT

Fair value at beginning of year RENZARE 77,457 75,357

Transferred from property, B BER&E 13

plant and equipment [ 3004 1,865 -
(Loss)/gain on change in fair value M E U A K& Uk zS
recognised in other income WRZANREE

and gains 2 (B8) /W% (2,088) 2,100

Disposal of investment properties HERE Y (7,037) =

Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B (815) =

Fair value at end of year RERZARE 69,382 77,457

The Group's investment properties consist of three (2019:
three) industrial properties, one (2019: one) residential
property in Hong Kong, one (2019: one) industrial property
and one (2019: none) commercial property in the PRC.
The directors of the Company determined that the
investment properties consist of three classes of assets, i.e.,
industrial, commercial and residential, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's
investment properties were revalued on 31 March 2020
based on valuations performed by Roma Appraisals Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers of approximately
HK$69,382,000 (2019: approximately HK$77,457,000). Each
year, the Group's financial controller decides, after approval
from the audit committee, to appoint external valuer to
be responsible for the external valuations of the Group's
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group's financial controller has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation result once a year when the valuation is performed
for annual financial reporting.

AEENREMEBTEREEN =18
(ZE—h&F:ZE)ITEWEN—HE
ZE-AF R)IGEMWEUERR
PEMN—EB(ZE—NAF:—H)IL¥
MER—B(ZZE—LF 8B2)BED
- BESEDEOED BHEERA
S AN EERAREMERE=
MEE IE BEREFE-RES
VEELAERGHEMESHERTGE
BARETHGHE AEHREYE
MN-E-_EFE=RA=+—HEHHE
5 4969,382,0008 7L (Z T — NF: 4
77,457,000 L) - ANE BT KB EET
FROSEZZEGHERRTEERE
INEREER LB EAEEYEMNING
HE-EREREGHREMSNG 2.
BYBNERGHBEEZE-AE
BV ERESTFRAEFUSRRE
THEESEGEMRGEEBRRRGEE
HEREITI
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. IREYE (E)

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of which
are included in note 39(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Particulars of the Group's investment properties are included
on pages 195 and 196 of the Company’'s 2019/2020 annual
report.

REMERBEEHEOBBETE=7
#—PHBEN A W RRE M E39)
Bt -

KEBRENE L HEHREAT
T—h,/ - E-TEREISEI6HE

Fair value hierarchy ARERBR
All the Group's investment properties were classified under FEAREBEREMESIBEERARBER
Level 3 in the fair value measurement hierarchy. EEREIR-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

FRABRAABEFERFIRESE2
RzEER TEBEARBBEIR (=

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within DEERRBEEBREIRZ AR EG
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: EHEK:
Commercial Industrial Residential
property properties property Total
[SEZ7ES IxY= EEME 4@t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 April 2018 ~ RZZ—-A\FMA—AHK
REE - 39,957 35,400 75,357
Gains on change in fair value RERBRZARBEEE L
recognised in profit or loss e = 2,100 = 2,100
Carrying amount at 31 March 2019 RW=-Z—-AF=ZA=1+—H
and 1 April 2019 EZZE-NENA—HM
REE - 42,057 35,400 71,457
Transferred from property, A% BEREEHER
plant and equipment 1,865 - - 1,865
Loss on change in fair value RERBRZOABEEE L
recognised in profit or loss EE (78) (710) (1,300) (2,088)
Disposal of investment properties &R EME = (7,037) = (7,037)
Exchange realignment RS (117) (698) = (815)
Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 R=-Z=Z#=A=+—H
KBk E B 1,670 33,612 34,100 69,382
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15. IREYE (&)
AREER (F)
REMEGEEEHABEBED

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation

of investment properties: K
Significant Weighted average price per
Valuation techniques  unobservable inputs square foot/square metre
BEFR FEFHK
fHERT EEFTEHRGABE niEEHEE
2020 2019

—B-BE T hF

Commercial properties Market comparison Price per square metre HK$42,125 N/A
in the PRC approach

TEREDE M5 BUA ¥ KER 42,125% T i@ F

Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$4,400 HK$4,066
Hong Kong approach

BEIRME M S L EOR FFHRER 4,400 5T 4,0667%8 7T

Industrial properties in  Market comparison Price per square metre HK$1,615 HK$2,210
the PRC approach

FEITEMF M5 L8R TR ER 1,615% T 2,210 7T

Residential property in  Market comparison Price per square foot HK$13,362 HK$12,887
Hong Kong approach

BABEEME M5 L BOA FF 5 REH 13,362 128878 7T

RETBLEE RENETIRTS
HEEMBE BRAFVETIURIR
FHE Y2EAMMBZAELR
HEBRB - LBDNERERRR T E
RZERIATELBYEZEE -2
B EFWEZEER KE I

Under market comparison approach, the properties are
valued on the market basis assuming sales in their existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession and by reference
to comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant
markets. Comparison is based on prices realised in actual
transactions or asking prices of comparable properties.

Appropriate adjustments are then made to account for the
differences between such properties in terms of age, time,
location, floor level and other relevant factors.

In estimating fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

A significant increase/(decrease) in price per square foot and
price per square metre would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.

BESELREMEBRZZZEF N

mEE-

RIEFADEZAAER - VEZES
EkeEREREBRAE-

BFEIREBREEF T KERBER
m/ (R AIEBBREMEZ AR
BEREEM ORD) -
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSET

16. BIL & &E

2020 2019
- e o33 —ZE-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Film distribution rights ERIITIE
At beginning of the year REH]
Cost A 1,690 1,690
Accumulated impairment 2EHRIE (1,690) (1,690)
Carrying amount FREE - -
Carrying amount at beginning of R F ¥ Z BREE
the year - -
Additions, at cost R K AN E 12,000 -
Amortisation for the year F PR £ (1,750) =
Carrying amount at end of RERZEREE
the year 10,250 -
At end of the year RE R
Cost DN 13,690 1,690
Accumulated impairment REHRE (1,690) (1,690)
Accumulated amortisation R 8 (1,750) =
Carrying amount FREE 10,250 -

As at 31 March 2020, intangible asset with definite useful
life amounted to HK$10,250,000 are attributable to the Film
investment and distribution.

The following useful life was used in the calculation of
amortisation:

Film distribution right 4 years

The above intangible assets are amortised on a straight line
basis over the relevant periods.

The carrying amount of film distribution rights at 31 March
2020 will be amortised over the remaining useful life of 3.4
years (2019: Nil).

RZE_ZEF=ZA=+—H EER
Al E A FEI R EF B E £10,250,000
B DEAREZIRE KT

AT AERFHARFT E#H:

®

Q

TITHE 45

&
5

R

tREFVEENAREBREREE

R-ZE_EF=A=+—BEx%T
R BRI E A8 A T #4 1] 55 B AR HA3.44F
NEHE(ZE—NFE|E)-o
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17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 17. Eft T B ERIE

Notes HK$'000
B 5 FHET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-—N\FMOA—H 4,584
Amortisation for the year ended BHE-Z-—NF=A=+—8H
31 March 2019 1E S8 (116)
Exchange realignment BEE 57, 58 B (189)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZFB-NF=A=1t—8 4,279
Transferred to right-of-use assets FE AR A& B 7 s AR A 14
upon application of HKFRS 16 FIREEERRREEE (4,279)
At 31 March 2020 R-F_ZFF=A=t—8H -
2020 2019
bt e 33 —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Analysed for reporting: MEHDAT -
Prepaid land lease payments Tt 30 & FRIE
classified under: DR
— Non-current assets —ERBEE - 4,163
— Current assets (included —-RBEE
in prepayments, deposits and (FFAFESS
other receivables) RIE e &
H fth & U BKIR ) - 116
- 4,279
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

18. N—RIBEZEATIZRE

2020 2019
i Jmt 33 —ZT-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Unlisted associate T E A A
Cost of investment &R 110,000 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and JE (5 W B 18 5 ) %
other comprehensive income H 2 mE A 20,543 10,985
Impairment loss recognised BERREEE (39,543) (21,000)
91,000 99,985
Movements during the year are as follows: RNEZEBHIT -
2020 2019
i Jmt 33 —E-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At beginning of the year RE ) 99,985 =
Acquisition of associate 1 B B 2 N A - 110,000
Share of post-acquisition profit and other 784 & [iE {5 Uk B& 1% 55 )
comprehensive income for the year REMZEKA 9,558 10,985
Impairment loss recognised for the year  AN4F [ B MR EE 1B
(note 7) (Hg5E7) (18,543) (21,000)
At end of the year RER 91,000 99,985
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(Continued)

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

18. R—HEEZEATZ2IRE (&)

The unlisted investment represents the Group's 25% (2019:
25%) equity interest in Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko

Culture”).

Particulars of the associates of the Group (comprising Filmko

FETREEAKERE

Yﬂ:ﬁﬁﬁ

~NAE ([EHEXXE]) #25% —h
1 25% ) KO BLHE

AEEBENR (BREEXERE

Culture and its subsidiaries) are as follows: MEAR)MEFBNT:
Proportion
Principal Issued ordinary  equity interest
Place of place of registered  attributable to
Name incorporation business paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
TEER ERTLER FRERE
£ it i A 3t B 2 EREMSERE IRIELLH TERH
Filmko Culture British Virgin Islands PRC Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
("BVI") US$10,000 production in Hong
Kong and Mainland
China
EREXIE RBRIHEE B EFL BERPEARNMNEY
((RBRLES] 10,000% 7T BITRRME
Filmko Entertainment Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 25%  Films distribution and
Limited* HK$10,000 production and
artiste product
ERREFRAA BB Bk LR BYRTRBHEMES
10,0007 7T H1E
Nunjing Xinhao Film PRC PRC Registered 25%  Investment holding
Culture Development RMB23,000,000
Co., Limited*
EREMTEXILERE HE hE ERMARS REZK
R A 23,000,0007T
Jiangsu Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
Film Distribution Co. RMB 10,000,000 agency service
Limited*
IHRZARMEZENE hE Bl ERMARS BRETRRERSE
R A 10,000,0007T
Khorg as Anshi Yingna PRC PRC Registered 25%  Film distribution and
films* RMB10,000,000 agency service
ERROZAEMEYH i i EEMARE BYRTRAERE
TERRF* 10,000,0007T
g These entities are wholly-owned by Filmko Culture. e ZEERHEE L2 EHEE -

BHEXEREEEER QA 2019/2020 F i1

147



148

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

31 March 2020

—E-F

—= =

F=A=+—8H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE
(Continued)

Note:

(iii)

The above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

On 11 July 2018, the Group acquired 25% equity interest in an
entity, Filmko Culture Limited (“Filmko Culture”), for a consideration
of HK$110,000,000 which was settled by the payment in cash of
HK$70,000,000 by the Group and the issue of 16,000,000 new ordinary
shares of the Company. Filmko Culture is an investment holding
company which was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
subsidiaries of Filmko Culture were established in the PRC and are
engaged in film distribution in the PRC.

Pursuant to the terms of the acquisition, Alex Film Limited (the
vendor and a company beneficially owned as to 72% by Mr. Wong
Hoi Fung, a ex-director of the Company) and Mr. Wong Hoi Fung
shall give guarantees to the Group that the consolidated profit of
Filmko Culture and its subsidiaries for each of the three years ending
31 March 2021 shall not be less than HK$40 million (the “Guaranteed
Profit”) and that any shortfall between the actual profits for these
years and the guaranteed profit shall be compensated by the vendor.
The directors of the Company are of the view that as the recoverability
of the shortfall compensation, if any which are ultimately materialised,
is uncertain, the fair value of the profit guarantee given by the vendor
is insignificant and such profit guarantee has not been recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. Mr. Wong Hoi Fung, as a
guarantor, shall guarantee by way of continuing guarantee to the
Group the due and punctual performance by Alex Film Limited of its
obligations under the profit guarantee.

The recoverable amount of the investment in the associate, Filmko
Culture, has been determined on the basis of fair value less cost
of disposal. In view of the management expectation of continuous
decline in the overall film industry performance, the directors consider
it appropriate to recognise impairment loss for the year against the
investment amounted to HK$18,543,000 (2019: HK$21,000,000), which
was included in other operating expenses (note 7).

18. R—HEEZEATZ2IRE (&)

B g

(iii)
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18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information in respect of the associate and its
subsidiaries, reconciled to the carrying amount in the

consolidated financial statements:

18. R—HEEZEATZ2IRE (&)

TREIZBERFREKE QR

HAaUBEMMESR
SIRREE RS AR

31 March 2020

= A\
A

B X5 R R

31 March 2019

—EZEFE —E-NF
=A=+-8 =ZR=+—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Non-current assets EREBEE 24,559 18,537
Current assets MEEE 77,225 93,041
Current liabilities mEA & (62,906) (110,933)
Net assets BEFE 38,878 645
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
—EEF —E-NF
=ZA=+-8 =R=+—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Revenue g 118,834 210,033
Profit before tax R F5 Rl g A 43,438 48,324
Income tax expense FR 55 2 (589) (2,225)
Profit for the period B s 42,849 46,099
Other comprehensive loss HEih2mEEE (4,616) (2,158)
Total comprehensive income 2HUWRA LT 38,233 43,941
Reconciliation of the above summarised _F it B 7% & L #f 2 &4
financial information to the carrying PSS E DA/
amount of the Group's investment RENFREEHRK:
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group's ownership 7S5 [ 2 % & #E L I 25% 25%
Group's share of net asset of PN S E N ]
the associate excluding goodwill BESE TEEHE 9.719 161
Goodwill on acquisition Uy i e 2 120,824 120,824
Impairment loss on investment ERNEE R FIRE
in associate recognised 2R EEE (39,543) (21,000)
Carrying amount of the investment ®E& 7 REE 91,000 99,985
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—RBEEATZRE

2020 2019
- e o33 —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Share of net assets E1EEEFE 1,173 997
Loan to a joint venture m—EAEZLAFER 3,286 3,560
4,459 4,557
Provision for impairment VIRERE L (4,459) (4,557)
Movement during the year are as follows: FREFHOT
2020 2019
—EB-¥E —ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
At beginning of the year NG - -
Share of post-acquisition profit and NG JE PE (R B 18 5 7
other comprehensive income R E A 2 EIA
for the year 176 363
Repayment from joint venture KEAERRIZER (274) (201)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment R—HA&&E QAR ZEER
loss on investment in and loan to mM—AEERARERZ
a joint venture RMERBERD S (BE) 98 (162)
At the end of the year RER - -
The loan to a joint venture of HK$3,286,000 (2019: m—EA 2 ARIE3,286,0008 T (=

T — L4 £ 3,560,000 7T ) & M
T ERTERERERR—FAE
B-BEERR BERRBEALEENRE
LERBREFE L —HDe

HK$3,560,000) is unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period. In the
opinion of the directors, the loan is considered as part of the
Group's net investment in the joint venture.
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 19. R—EIEEA8 ZzRE (&)
(Continued)
The directors had conducted impairment testing on the EFEHAEER—REERFAIZKR
Group’s investment in a joint venture and considered that ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ@ AHR - BERREERATE
the recoverable amount of the investment is insignificant as HReEREERENITWE S ET
a result of the expected operating losses of the joint venture, Eji Hit BERRNEERm 2 RER
accordingly, impairment loss was recognised in full on the BHERREBE RAFE  £AIZ5
investment in the joint venture. For the current year, a reversal Z B HEEI98,000 LAt AR A B
of impairment previously overstated amounted to HK$98,000 = (KizFe) RBE_Z—-—NAF=A
was credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss =t+t—BLEE—FE - REZRES
(note 6). For the prior year ended 31 March 2019, impairment $8162,0008 7T B4R & B & 0B (B
loss on the investment amounted to HK$162,000 was charged 7)) °

to consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 7).
Particulars of the Group's joint venture are as follows: AEBELE AR ZFBOT :

Percentage of

B
Particulars Place of
of issued registration Ownership Voting Profit
Name shares held and business interest power sharing Principal activities
i E 81T st R
&% Rz 3 5 1R EBHE AREER BEE FEibim¥ EEEH
BMNERE N2 Registered The PRC 27 27 27 Trading of optical frames
REFRAA capital of (2019: 27) (2019:27)  (2019:27)
(MERZE]) RMB1,000,000
BT i RERCES
AR¥
1,000,0007T
The joint venture adopts 31 December as its financial year AAA?EFHJF A=+—BfEARE
end date to comply with relevant regulations in the PRC. The BEELEERANETHEHIEER
consolidated financial statements are adjusted for the material Bl o 45 & Eﬁfk#—&% DHEERRARC
transactions of the joint venture between 1 January 2020 and TEF-A—RAEZZT-FF=H
31 March 2020. ST RETZERRSELHAR-
The joint venture has been accounted for using the equity BENANEEREZNMEREVBR
method in these consolidated financial statements. KR
The joint venture was registered as a Sino-foreign joint BEAT BB BUEEFM A F
venture under the PRC law and is held through a wholly- BERECERBBARNRZEEN
owned subsidiary of the Company. BRRIEE-
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

(Continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's joint venture:

19. R—RI&

TRINRAEEE

31 March 2020

BEATZRE (F)
YRRZMEER

31 March 2019

ok Jonk- -3 —E-NF
=ZA=+-8 =ZR=+—~
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Non current assets FEnBEE 19,377 20,417
Current assets mENE B 32 29
Current liabilities mEN B E (2,836) (3.222)
Non-current liabilities FnBERE (12,229) (13,531)
Net assets BEFE 4,344 3,693
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
—E-TF —E-NF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue Yo 9.474 10,749
Profit before tax F 35 Bl A 383 1,296
Income tax expense FRi5HiF 2 - =
Profit for the period A A 383 1,296
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 HEE 270 43
Total comprehensive income ZHEBAEEE 653 1,344
Reconciliation of the above summarised — _E#li 875 E BT E
financial information to the carrying HAEEREGERA
amount of the Group's investment I8 E B AR TE (B ¥R -
in the joint venture:
Proportion of the Group's ownership NEE 2 A RELLA 27% 27%
Group's share of net asset of the AEBEEIESE QA
joint venture BEFE 1,173 997
Loan to a joint venture m—EaZ2ARER 3,286 3,560
Impairment loss on investment EHERNAE QA
in a joint venture recognised KREZRMEEE (4,459) (4,557)
Carrying amount of the investments REZEREE - -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE 20. EASETAZMEEIA
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (MERAREFARGZEI
INCOME (“FVTOCI") ANz&mE&EE

2020 2019
Sy —T-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#Rx THET
Unlisted debt investment, FELTEBRE
at fair value BARE - 290
Movements during the year: REFEE:
2020 2019
—g-%% Y
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#RT THET
At beginning of the year RE A 290 290
Disposals during the year FALE (290) =
At end of the year RE R - 290
During the year, the Group disposed of the unlisted RAFE AEBEEEFLLTEHR
debt investment (which represents club debenture) for a & (BlgrESs)  R1E A #290,000/%5
consideration of approximately HK$290,000. JC °
21. INVENTORIES 21. 58
2020 2019
Sy —T-nF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#RT TET
Inventories, at gross amount FERE 29,174 66,637
Impairment loss recognised ERAREERE (20,372) (58,853)
8,802 7,784
An analysis of inventories is as follows: GBESTHET:
Raw materials R ¥ 2,605 2,874
Work in progress & m 3,442 2,946
Finished goods RUBK 2,755 1,964
8,802 7,784
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154

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. FEWBR X
2020 2019
—EZEFE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Trade receivables, gross amount JEUg BR TR 48 58 10,671 25,943
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (2,333) (320)
8,338 25,623

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit, except for new customers where payment in advance
is normally required. The credit period is generally ranging
from 45 to 120 days (2019: 45 to 120 days). Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

AEBHETF X HERDEEI
BRER AT W BEP —ARARA
BRI EEHB— KN F4521208
ZE—NF 45F1208) - BREF
EERAEELR -ASESRGEFY
HEAEERRFEBEZEBREHNRE
BREFERR GHEHeHaRE
BEETHR ER Ltz kAEEH
CPRERRERESZZATEEFER W
WA FEEAEFEERR -A&E
I E W A A TR
o B E A {5 38 AR o B WK AR FRAE R AT

B o
TN

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of MREBREMRREZARHZIN 2 EHK
each reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of R (HBRE®) 2BRESTTAT

provisions, is as follows:

2020 2019

i et 23 —F-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THETT

Within 90 days 90H A 8,146 17,734
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 39 7,851
181 to 360 days 181%2360H 153 38
8,338 25,623
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22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movements the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables are as follows:

22. FEWCERF (58)

%%W%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁZ%@m
T

2020 2019

ot Jet- 3 —E-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

At beginning of year RE A 320 309
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI EERE

(F=E7) 2,013 11

At end of year RE R 2,333 320

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

WAR R ARRE 2 EWIRFER I D T
T

2020 2019

—e-%s —2—h&

HK$'000 HK$'000

FT#ERX FHET

Neither past due nor impaired A R 8 BRSO (B 4,408 12,152
Less than one month past due wE DR —1E A 3,017 5,239
One to three months past due BH—F==EA 876 343
Over three months past due BEEB=18A 37 7,889
8,338 25,623

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.
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23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 23. FEWWERRIEWKFE

2020 2019
—EZEFE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET

Unsecured loan and interest receivables, EHIFELIE &
gross amount JEULFI B 48 %8 21,249 48,866
Less: impairment loss recognised B B ERBEEE (10,120) (28,844)
11,129 20,022

These loan receivables are stated at amortised cost using
effective interest rates ranging from 10% to 15%. Loan and
interest receivables thereon will be settled by the borrowers
at their respective maturity dates within one year. As these
loan receivables relate to a number of different borrowers,
the directors, of the Company are of the opinion that
there is no concentration of credit risk over these loan
receivables. The grants of these loans were approved and
monitored by the Group’s management. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement over

ZERWE FIRI0%ZE15%0 E B 7
RIZBHERATNR - BRER N EE
WHEBRERAR-FREERB
MBI AR ANZFREREET Y
REZARERA BARAEER
RBRERREFRYTEEERARESD
BR-ZEERZBEETHAAEEE
BEEHAEREE AKETEEE
WERSHFAERERRKEME
RER-ZEREREFRNEEERL

its loan receivable balances. The carrying amounts of these NABERSE-

loan receivables approximate to their fair values.

Movements in the impairment loss of loan receivables are as EREFREBEE BT
follows:
2020 2019
ke Jem 33 —E-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FET
At beginning of the year REA] 28,844 -
Impairment losses recognised REFHERZBERER
for the year (note 7) (M7E7) 9,480 28,844
Written off during the year SANE i (28,204) =
At end of the year RER 10,120 28,844
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23. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The loan and interest receivables amounting to
HK$28,204,000 relate to a number of different borrowers.
The Group has taken up various actions, including litigation
procedure for repayment, against long past due borrowers,
and considered that the recoverability of theses loans is
remote. Accordingly, such loan and interest receivables were
written off. However, continuous actions, where appropriate,
will be taken by the Group for such loans repayments.

The Group uses four categories to reflect the credit risk
and how the loss provision is determined for each of those
categories. These internal credit risk ratings are aligned to
external credit ratings, where possible.

The information about the expected credit loss and the
impairment loss recognised is disclosed in note 43.

An aged analysis of the loan and interest receivables that
are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

23. R E R R EBIAE (&)

FE W B 3R K e IR £.28,204,0007% JT
HEEZTRAERATBA AEEBD
BZETH (EEHRHEABEERA
MBI EFARER) MR AKEZ
EERMATREMERE - F It - 52 S B
ERRERFEEME HAEEG
MZEEREFIFERIUEE (43
) -

7] £ E 5K A P B4R Bl IA R RS B L B
R EZFRREEERREE-
RABEMBR T  ZFAMEERR
PR TSRS EBEE R AR — B

FAEREERENRCSERRERSRE
M B R BRI MY RE43 ©

AR B AR E 2 B WS 3R e R UL A B
Rl T T

2020 2019

—B-®E —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired R HA Rl (B 11,129 20,022

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a large number of diversified customers. Based on past
experience, the directors are of the opinion that except for
the impairment loss made based on the expected credit
loss provision, no additional provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality.

REHLRE 2 BRFIRERS LA
EFPEM-ENBELR EFERA
BARBEREEBERBEBIELRERS
BN BARZFREBRIELBINAE
B RESGEEERYEEAEE-
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. fﬁﬁ;ﬁlﬁ RERHMEIW

RECEIVABLES ™MIE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Prepayments and other deposits BNREREMIZS 3,241 14,319
Disposal receivable fEUR & FRIE 28,392 30,321
Other receivables E {th e Uk 5RIE 5,253 68,990
36,886 113,630
Less: Non-current portion R FEBNERER (230) (1,880)
36,656 111,750

Included in other receivables are advances to certain third
parties amounted to HK$1,680,000 (2019: HK$49,950,000)
for their settlements for film distribution and promotion
expenses. The advances are unsecured, interest free and
expected to be repayable within one year after the end
of the reporting period and the recoverability of these
advances is also guaranteed by an entity established in
the PRC (“the PRC Entity”) which is controlled by a parent
of Mr. Wong Hoi Ping and Mr. Wong Hoi Fung, both are
ex-directors of the Company. Subsequent to the end of the
reporting period, these advances were partly settled.

Included in other receivables is the advance to a PRC Entity
amounted to HK$691,000 (2019: HK$12,440,000) which is
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. This
advance was partly settled subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

The disposal receivable represents the balance of
the consideration amounted to HK$28,392,000 (2019:
HK$30,321,000) for disposal by the Group of a subsidiary
in prior years. Such balance of the consideration was paid
by the purchaser to another subsidiary of the Company
amounted to RMB26,000,000 (2019: RMB26,000,000) which
is included in deposit received (note 29). These disposal
receivable and deposit received could not be offset until
the foreign currency remittance procedures are completed.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

The information about the expected credit loss is disclosed
in note 43.

H fb fE W 5k IE a%mﬁ\ wHE
%Xﬁ&fﬁfﬁtﬁiﬁﬁm F %
#301,680,000/8 7T ( = ffﬂﬁr
49,950,000/ L) c:Z BN A EEA
RENREHRRERRE —FANEE "
BzEsg z ok e 4 o i 7 A B
¢Z§§;(rﬂp§’§%”%ﬁ<’ ZE
BEATSFAERTEERE (RS
iﬁﬁZ&@Tﬁﬁ%%)Z!ﬁw il o 5%
BDHRERMEBREDDEE-

ﬁﬁfuﬁz rTEeER—BPERE
691 ooo,%m(_f NF
ooooﬁ.%sm Eﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ#ﬁ T.ﬁ

_FH

& E
Fﬁ%fﬁﬁ Kﬁ%@ ¥
#:28,392,000% T ( — 2
30,321 oooﬁém) o“é“ﬁﬁ$@ﬂjj
MWNBRARENHZERELELRBA
R #26,000,000c (ZZE—NF: AR
#26,000,0007T) * B2 E R Btk st
)\Euﬁzhzéwﬁ?z% ZERKEE

FENBRIZE ERINEERFE T
fﬂmé%ﬁﬁ

| 7%

| B

NHEE
D-FF[EE{F\H\
CB

ttﬁ?iﬂ?ﬁﬁﬂi}ﬂﬂﬁ sEA Lt
R & R A E B AT I R 3 R A B
> el R B -

EREHREEBENERRERKE
43
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25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25. FAREFANERZEME
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS -3
2020 2019
—e-2s S
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Investments in film production BYEERE (M)
(note) 45,318 -
Investments in securities BHIRE
— Equity securities listed - BB LM 2RAES
in Hong Kong 5,704 6,705
51,022 6,705
Note: B 5
The balance represents the Group's investments in film production which EREASENEZRIERE REZEUME
entitled the Group to predetermined percentage of income to be generated REGZEENAEBRE LD NEBBRIZ
from the films based on the Group's investment portion as specified in EEAEFTMNAILEZEEEKREEZWRA -
respective film right investment agreements.
Movements in investments in film production were as follows: BREEREAZEHMT
2020 2019
ot Junt- 33 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year, at fair value REY IR E - =
Cost of investment in films BEIREKA 58,965 -
Decrease in fair value R ERD (13,647) =
At end of the year, at fair value RER BARE 45,318 =
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

26. RERIESZEY

2020 2019

ot et -3 —ENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Cash and bank balances B & MIRIT % 28,441 13,937

At 31 March 2020, the aggregate cash and bank balances
and deposits of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") amounted to HK$7,574,000 (2019: HK$5,623,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

RZE-_ZTF=A=+—H AEH
UARB(TAREDIEZR® MR
ITHEHB A RFRE 57,574,000 7T
— T —J,4F 5,623,000 ) c AR
AT EREBAEMER AW B
BRBRIIEERRETARERE EE
FREEERT AEEREEBE
RAIETINEEB 2 BT L BRARE
BEME

RITREBBEARTERINEAE
ZEEHBAME -HHEHETERZT
REHE—BE=ERATE RITEE
BARAEeTRME  WiKREEH
EHEREREIMAE -RITEHK
FRERNCHYEERCEBESR
Rif 2 8R1Te
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27. TRADE PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of
each reporting period, based on the payment due date, is
as follows:

27. FE{HER TR
MNERERREN R E 25 e
NEER BB AATIT -

2020 2019

k. Jt 33 —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FET

Within 90 days 90H A 4,592 7,208
91 to 180 days 91£180H 157 153
181 to 360 days 1812360H 245 15
Over 360 days 3608 119 331
5,113 7,707

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled on 90-day (2019: 90-day) terms.

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

BNERTTRE R —RK0A (ZF
—NLF 908 ) N REIMIE -

28. BB

2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT

Contract liabilities related to: BRI XA 2

ARAE:

Sales deposits and receipts HEZ S RIRA 416 5,708
Rental deposit of machinery MesHNIES 2,646 2,151
Distribution of film sub-licenses BITERERE 4,217 4,780
7,279 12,639

The Group receives payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance of the performance under
the contracts which are mainly from sales of goods and
distribution of film sub-licenses.

AEBZBAEONENNRLHRT
FPREAMR ELEETBREELEEM
RETEZEERENNTARRES
HBH Z AR -
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28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 28. AR (&)
The following table shows the amount of the revenue TRINFRE R wEHREERE ELE
recognised in the current reporting period in relation to HaWaBEARNRE®R:

carried-forward contract liabilities:

2020 2019
ot e o3 3 —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Revenue recognised that was included BEEFAFYEHEE
in the contract liabilities balance AR B HE R A
at the beginning of the year 7,961 5,386
Transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts are PHERBITEHOZX S BRI RN
as follows: K
2020 2019
bt e 35 —T-hHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Expected to be recognised FEEF R —FRHER
within one year
Sales of goods HEE MW 416 7,181
Rental income of machinery ez HelA 2,646 =
Film distribution BRET 852 780
Expected to be recognised after one year FE&T I —F & ER
Film distribution BRET 3,365 3,042
Total transaction price allocated to RERDEZE
unsatisfied contracts at end of the year ~ KETE LA
B 5B 7,279 11,003
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29. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 29. H A FEHRRIE - FERTSRIE &

DEPOSITS RECEIVED Edizs

2020 2019
—g-%s e
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Amounts due to related parties FENTRAE A T 3RIB
(notes 40c to 40e) (P 3F40cE 40e ) 15,319 9,813
Other payables (note a) H M B RE (P sEa) 16,492 12,968
Accruals i 3B 11,920 14,718
Deposits received (note b) B Yz e (H3Eb) 29,254 30,584
72,985 68,083
Less: Non-current portion R FEBNERER (67) (159)
72,918 67,924

Notes: M5 -

(a) Included in other payables is consideration payable for the acquisition (a) Hihe N RmEeER WESZ3TE (R
of film distribution rights (classified under intangible asset in note 16) M eE169 %EZ%%R&F)Z}EHRE =1
amounted to HK$12,000,000 (2019: Nil). This consideration payable is 12,000,000 T (ZZE—NLFE:F) - EZFE
unsecured, interest free and payable on demand. (HRAB A - TDJr@ RBIRENREE

(b) Included in deposits received is payment received for the disposal of (b) BRSO EAFAEEHE —RHE AR
a subsidiary in prior years amounted to RMB26,000,000. Such balance U 2 89 5K T8 A R #26,000,0007T © #% %5 £
was paid by the purchaser to another subsidiary of the Group. These EHEFRAAEES —HWBRAR I %
deposits received and could be offset with disposal receivable FE IR S ATRINE BE IR P ST AR BT R TR
amounting to RMB26,000,000 included in prepayments, deposits and H RIE e RE MR E S S E K
other receivables until the foreign currency remittance procedures are FRIE A R %26,000,0000 K 8 - B HR
completed, details of which are set out in note 24. M‘Ti% °
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30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 30. A EHERIE

The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles for its trading AEBHEETAENETEERE
of optical frames and sunglasses business. These leases REAGREXRB - REFEGAE
are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease AE175 2SFHERERBENR
terms under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied EEHENMHEHERR - AKEEA
HKFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach. Under KR EERERBEAT B MmE
this approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances ERIE165 - BB T NEEFE
at 1 April 2019 to transfer obligations under finance leases RZZE-NFHA - B HVIEREN
with lease term more than 12 months from the date of initial HHEBEEAERB SR EAI2E
application amounting to HK$413,000 to lease liabilities. AR E M E&EL3,0008 TEEM
EBfE-
Obligation under finance leases with lease term within 12 MEHBEERERBBHEFTI2EA AT
months from the date of initial application have been fully BMEHERAEEREFABHEE-
repaid during the year.
From 1 April 2019 onwards, future lease payments are B-ZT-hhFmNA—AE RRKEE
recognised as lease liabilities in the consolidated statement NHBEMAINHSGARERES
of financial position in accordance with the accounting MBERAXERREERE-
policies set out in note 3.
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments RZE-NF=ZRA=+—H &M
under finance leases and their present values were as ETARZEHEENFBBEREE 2
follows: WEMT:
Present value
Minimum lease of minimum
payments lease payments
REHE REME
D B E
2019 2019
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$"000
FET FET
Amounts payable: JERTFRIA :
Within one year —FRQ 1,279 1,255
In the second year to fifth years, inclusive F_FEZFHF BEEEWF 327 291
Total minimum finance lease payments RERMBHEENKERE 1,606 1,546
Future finance charges AREEF X (60)
Total net finance lease payables BREMNREESEE 1,546
Portion classified as current liabilities ’\*Eﬁmiﬁﬁfiiﬂ (1,255)
Non-current portion FERNER 7 291
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER M. FGIRRMITRAMEE
BORROWINGS
2020 2019
—T%E —E-NF
Effective Effective
interest interest rate
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 (%) Maturity HK$'000
BIR#ZE B =X
(%) FEAE FTET (%) Z|HA A FET
Current
B #A
Bank loans — Secured - - - 3.58-3.77 2019 525

RITER - BER

Other loan — Unsecured 12%-13.2% 2020 30,513 12 2019 20,224
H i B3R — |

30,513 20,749
Non-current
FEEDHA
Other loan — Unsecured 8% 2021 8,262 - - -
HAih & - S
38,775 20,749
2020 2019
—ECEE —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans repayable within one year R—FREEZRIT
= - 525
Other loan repayable within one year R—FREEZ HA
B 30,513 20,224
Other loan repayable more than MR—FRERZHA
one year =N 8,262 -
38,775 20,749
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2 4= =
31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER M. STRRITRAMES (B)

BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: B &

(a) The Group's banking facilities (the “Banking Facilities”) amounting (a) REENRTREBE ([RITRAE]D A
to HK$3,000,000 (2019: HK$3,000,000), of which HK$Nil (2019: 3,000,000/ 7t ( == — J14F : 3,000,0007#
HK$525,000) had been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, o) ERTET (ZF—NF 1 525,000/
and were secured by a fixed deposit amounting to HK$3,000,000 TLIRBERRE A WIAXR RN E
provided by a director of the Company’s subsidiaries. NE Lz —RERRMATE B3 503,000,000

BITEE R -

(b) The Group's other loans, amounting HK$30,513,000 and (b) AEBEREME 30,513,000 T &
HK$8,262,000, are payable within one year after the end of the 8,262,000 T H Bl AN WME KB —F
reporting period and more than one year after the end of the ARRBERRE —FEITe

reporting period respectively.

(c) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has made (c) BE-_Z-_ZTF=-A=+—HLEFE" K
new borrowings amounted to HK$18,551,000, all bank and other EEH I EE A18,551,0008 T FT A
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. RITREMEEH BT E

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 2. BEHIEAMF
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the year are FAZEEHEBEZSHNOT
as follows:
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
of related Property
depreciation revaluation Total
BB E
ZIRERHE MEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET TET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—-N\FHHA—H 1,176 933 2,109
Deferred tax charged to the ~ #IBR Bi8am Kk < IRIEFIA
statement of profit or loss (PREET1)
(note 11) 116 - 116
At 31 March 2019 and RZZE-—NE=A=+—8
1 April 2019 RZZE-—nFMOA—A 1,292 933 2,225
Deferred tax charged/ mea/ Gt BREZ
(credited) to the statement EIERE (FiEE11)
of profit or loss (note 11) 219 (149) 70
Deferred tax liabilities arising ¥ B {EE £ RELET IR
from property valuation B& (FHEE13)
(note 13) - 112 112
Exchange realignment ER IR = (56) (56)
At 31 March 2020 RZE-_TF=A=1+—H 1,511 840 2,351
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued) 32.IBEHIEAEE (8)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$181,771,000 (2019:
HK$216,119,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes
on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries and joint
ventures established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, no deferred tax has
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group's subsidiaries and joint venture established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it is
not probable that these subsidiaries and joint venture will
distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. There
were no temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised at 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RBERR AEBRBEBEEZM
sHRIE B A181,771,0008 L (=&
— NLF :216,119,0005 7T ) - 7] £ R HA
AU EEZEEBERARCAKE
A ENM AR ZEEBEEREHREE
%af&MWZMﬁF RIEL BRE

G XIS R B A A] (K 35 B IR B
E B IR L 3% F B B ERE TR
HEE -

BEFBRCERGSHE RPEAH
B INE ¥ B INRE BT IR
BB B MI0%BHFR - LR EB =
TENF-—A—BRBES TEAR
—EELFE+_A=+—B%EBZEF-
REMNENRES NP E AR ES
INEEERIEERII MBI 2B
NATEA MAEEmME BAMEA
5% $EII%M%EE¢IWWW
YHHRBARRALARNR_ZTEEN
E*H*E%%HZEﬂ% o R IR B
BmTEFOTL -

RZEZEF=ZRA=+—HEZE
—NEZA=+—8B BEAAXEH
F#lmeIZW% A RA &

M@%%WMZ$EﬁEﬂF$
Z%Hﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁﬁji
ERB WMEMNBRAAERGERTR
AREETAEDRBEBRT - R
T_EF-A=+—B YEAKE
R FR B A 3 B B A B A5 8 T 3 oK kLt
BRECHBABZEREZRE (=T
—NE:F)-

AR B A H BRI 2 BB
EAMEHRER-

I B 7
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES

33. HE& &

2020
—ECTE
HK$'000
THERT
Lease liabilities payable: FERERE:
Within one year —FR 90
Within a period of more than one year HiE—FETZRMEEA
but not more than two years 71
Within a period of more than two years HBMFETZREFEEA
but not more than five years 440
Within a period of more than five years 838 1 5 HAfA A 16,474
Less: Amount due for settlement within B8 A A EIERE T &Y
twelve months PO (90)
Amount due for settlement after twelve months FnBBEEEB TR
shown under non-current liabilities + =& A & B B3 {E 1 00 5 I8 16,985
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. Iz K
2020 2019
- el 33 —T-hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Authorised: ERE
1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each 1,000,000,0000% & &
E1{80.10/8 7T Z Ik 7 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRER
606,553,684 (2019: 404,369,123) shares 606,553,684 1%
of HK$0.10 each —F-NE:
404,369,123 ) Bk
E{80.10/8 7T Z I 17 60,655 40,437
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Movements in the Company’s issued share capital are as

follows:

TRRAZEB T :

Number of Issued
shares in issue share capital
STk EE EETRE
HK$'000
TFAT
At 1 April 2018 R-ZZE—N\FMA—H 388,369,123 38,837
Issue of new shares (Note (a)) BITH R (MIRE(a)) 16,000,000 1,600
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZE—NF
ZA=+—HK
—%—nﬁmﬂ —H 404,369,123 40,437
Issue of new shares pursuant to RIE R BATER D
rights issue (Note (b)) (B3 b)) 202,184,561 20,218
At 31 March 2020 RZTE_TF
—A=+—H 606,553,684 60,655
Notes: B 3 -
(a) On 11 July 2018, 16,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted at the (a) R=ZZE—N\F+A+—H" 16,000,000

issue price of HK$2.50 per share as part of the consideration for the
acquisition of an associate. Such shares were issued pursuant to
the general mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 28 September 2017. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 July 2018 for details.

On 18 February 2020, the Company completed its rights issue and
issued 202,184,561 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for
every two existing shares, at the subscription price of HK$0.14 per
rights share (the “rights issue”). The net cash proceeds received from
the rights issue amounted to approximately HK$26,012,000, after
share issue expenses of approximately HK$2,293,000, are intended
for the repayment of the Group's indebtedness and for the general
working capital for the Group. The rights issue has increased the
share capital and share premium of the Company by approximately
HK$20,218,000 and HK$5,794,000 respectively. Those rights shares
rank pari passu in all respects with the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue on that date. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 17 February 2020.

ETBBRIRETESR2508 TR F
RYE-HEEARNMIRE ZER
MIIRBARAR-ZF—LFAA-TN
EZ%%?@E?{ RTESEZ —REHE
BT -ABFBFL2HMARARAHR/-F
—NFLAT—HHRE-

(b) RZZEZZF-A+N\B ARARTKE
AR IR T A M IRIR A R 2% — AR it
R% B 19 2 A 35 17202,184,56 1 A% 1 A% A%
7 REEBATRERKRMGH0.14%8 T (T
A1) o A8 NBR A1 B 1T 5 X 492,293,000
Tk BHBRIKIESMERBFEN
26,012,000/ 0 AR EERNER 2 &
BRBEREE —REBEED HRE
LARRNAZBRA RGBS B L
20,218,000/ 7T & 5,794,00058 JT ° i% & 1
ARAR D R FT A HEERA DR R B BT
TRREBFS-FLHMARRHH
A-T-TF-_A+tHNRE-
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 16 March 2020.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
developments and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include
(i) any director, including any executive or independent
non-executive director or any full time or part time
employee of the Group; or (ii) any advisors, consultants,
distributors, contractors, customers, suppliers, agents,
business partners, joint venture business partners,
promoter and service providers of any member of the
Group.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for
issue under the Share Option Scheme
(i)  Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme as at 29 June 2020 (i.e.,
the date of the Company’s annual report for the
year): 60,655,368 shares.

(i)  Percentage of the issued shares of the Company
that it represents as at 29 June 2020: 10%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option Scheme
()  not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in
any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(i)  options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any 12-month period
exceeding 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

At any time during the option period in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme and such other
terms and conditions upon which an option was granted
from the date of grant of the option but in any event not
exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by the
board of directors.

()  Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i)  The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not
applicable.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company and will not be less than the
higher of (a) the closing price of the Company's shares
on the date of grant; and (b) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant.

The remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme
Approximately 9.5 years (expiring on 15 March 2030).

No option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme
since the adoption date of the Share Option Scheme.

35. MEMR#ERT S (45)
(e) THERBREZRBIRMGZH

()

(9)

(h)

(i)

PR
RIZBRE B 2 EX R BRY
BRERHMERDBRENZS
H AR M AR R BB AR B 2
TR EREMERT T
FHRBXL A HRI10F -

BERETENVARAEZ

& 3 1A PR
BFEERRTEE FHLE
IR -

() AASENERERRAA
SR E: 1.008 T

(i) whZA K o] BE £ FR 48 40 44
MRZHEARR - = H AR Er28
BR: &

(i) fEERBFBENARAED
EREERR: TEA -

EETEAEZEE
TEEDRARRNEEEEE
BERBERTIEREE  QRE
HERARRRND 2 KHE: R
DR BEERE AR AL %
BAR RN Z T E-

R R HERT 81 2 87 T SF 1

495 (R-—_E=FTE=H+H
BEm) °

BRERER SIRME ML BEREK
BREBRE S ERS -

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k

171



172

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

36.

37.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66 of
the consolidated financial statements.

The capital reserve of the Group represents (i) the excess of
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation on 8 February 1996,
over the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
in exchange therefor; and (ii) the premium arising on the
subscription of shares of Elegance Group Limited ("EGL"), the
then holding company of the Group's subsidiaries existing at
that time, at an aggregate premium of HK$22,000,000 which
was credited to the capital reserve. The Group reorganisation
has resulted in EGL becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
consolidated reserves.

PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

36. 1B
AEEAFERBEFEEY BN
&aw“ WA B R E B66E Y

i L EELIR

AEEZEXRFEEBEORE AR
F_ANBETZEREEAMRMKEHN
BB RN EERANRA I ET
f’Eﬁ&?ﬁZHﬂ%E@ZE.‘ﬁ RIE &n)
WEAEENEARER 2 EK

Hﬂ’%%@ﬁﬁﬁ ﬂ(FEﬂEE@J)Hxﬁ

FTEE A% (B #8)& (822,000,000 T E
FAEAFEBE EEEHSSHEER
MEERAQARZEWNEB AR

BEFERBHNBRABMELEZET
BECHBEREGAHBYE-

37. B E X B ER ZE 57

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BRI B AT
Details of the Group's subsidiaries that have material REBEBEEERFTERERIMER
non-controlling interests are set out below: AIFBEHIIMT
2020 2019
—E-EHE — &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Percentage of equity interest held by SEERE R IR A 2 IR
non-controlling interests: Exa
Gold Strong Industrial Limited (“Gold SHEIEER QA
Strong”) and its subsidiaries ([&FE]) X
HK 8 A 45% 45%
2020 2019
ot - o3 3 —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Loss for the year allocated to FIERERESEZ
non-controlling interests: KEFEE:
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries S MERENB QA (3,286) (3,751)
Accumulated balance of non-controlling R 2%k B 8I3EIE RS
interests at the reporting dates: 2 BETHERR
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries M BR Ko EL B 8 2 Al (8,837) (4,971)
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—ECEF=A=+—H

Group acquired 25% equity interest in an associate,
Filmko Culture for a consideration, part of which
was settled by the issue of 16,000,000 new ordinary

shares of the Company.

(i) During the prior year ended 31 March 2019, the (i)
Group entered into finance lease arrangements in
respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the leases of

HK$1,836,000.

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 37. O EXFERER 2T
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING HRMEAT (&)
INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial T&REH W NAE 2 B E R
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed Eo-EBESBEA/NEM R A HEEE
are before any inter-company eliminations: Al 2 © %8
Gold Strong and its subsidiaries SHRREMBAT
2020 2019
—B-®E —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Revenue & 43,893 54,989
Total expenses > A58 (49,719) (63,697)
Loss for the year FREE (7,300) (8,249)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRNEHEEEERE (8,589) (7,024)
Current assets mE & E 14,366 13,095
Non-current assets IERBEE 61,349 53,189
Current liabilities mEBIE (77,626) (76,310)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (17,727) (933)
Net cash flows generated from operating KEEFELRESME
activities HEE 3,513 714
Net cash flows used in investing activities & XEKFFERSME
R (44) (1,312)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash R & KBS EEYF
equivalents #in, CRd) 3,469 (598)

38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. FEHERERME
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EEHFHREXSH

()  During the prior year ended 31 March 2019, the i) REBEEZE-_E-—NAE=ZA

ZtT—HLEBEFE &K
SEXHRENRE—HE
N A2 X E25%H) IR

B HPHSsRERBET
16,000,000% 748 2 7] 7 & 3@
f& By 5 B -

E/\\\ai—; 7"L£|E A

=+ —HIEBEFE XK
SERVE BERSZE
AN TRERERHE %
mME - BELREERAE
FIERMNEEBEREA
1,836,000/ JT °

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k
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38. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

38. ZFEMERERMEE (E)
w)giaméﬁﬁma%@

activities
Bank and Finance lease Lease
other loans payables liabilities
|RITR FE £
Hib &= REAE HEaRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZZE—N\F
mA—H 11,063 971 -
Changes from financing BERSREZT
cash flows 9,686 (1,261) =
New finance leases FRERE = 1,836 =
At 31 March 2019 RZE—IEF
=A=+—H 20,749 1,546 =
Adoption of HKFRS 16 RNBE AR RE
ZERIE165% - (413) 20,774
At 1 April 2019 RZZE—NEF
mA—H 20,749 1,133 20,774
Changes from financing BMERSRELH
cash flows 18,026 (1,133) (847)
Disposal of lease liabilities HEHEasE - - (1,895)
Exchange realignment PE 7 38 - - (957)
At 31 March 2020 R_ZE_ZTF
=A=+—H 38,775 - 17,075

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with the leases negotiated for terms
ranging from two to three years. The terms of the leases
also require the tenant to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the
then prevailing market conditions.

39. EEHLHZHE
(a) fEEBHAAN
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39. EEHORH (B)
(a) fEBHBEAN(E)

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(Continued)
(a) As lessor (Continued)

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

RZZE—-AF=A=+—H 'K
S BARIE A T B & 2 Al 3
HEREHOBKEERS 2 KRR &

EHESBZT|WOT

2020 2019

- =Jo- -3 3 —E—-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FAT

Within one year —FR 960 1,313
In the second to fifth years, FE_ZELFN

inclusive (BiEEREME) 418 301

1,378 1,614

(b) As lessee

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties for the office and warehouse purposes, which
are held under leases previously classified as operating
leases under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 16 using modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the Group adjusted the opening balances
at 1 April 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to
these leases (see note 2). From 1 April 2019 onwards,
future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 3.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

(b) fEBEFHAN
REBAERIARAERENE
FToEZEBEA ETAERR
BEACHENFIIRDEAR
EHEMNHERB - AEEEH
RIETEBPEBREAE BB
WEER F165R - BB I F A
REFBFBR_ZT—NEWA—
HHHBBENEREZEHE
EEmBAEaE (RKE2) -8
—E-NFMA—H#E KKMA
ENFREMH EINE ST B R
REGEPBRRERBERATNESR

& o

R-FE—AE=ZA=+—H &
£ 818 18 LA T B/ 2 O T
440 T 00 B 22 R SR (L
fH3mmmT

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years

hFi&

F_EENFAN(BHEERMF)

2,612
2,657
27,091

32,360
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these

consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties during the year:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Transactions with a director of certain of
the subsidiaries of the Company

The Group leased the properties from Million
Wave Limited (“Million Wave”) for a monthly rental
of HK$92,160. Mr. Hui Leung Wah, the director
of subsidiaries of the Company, is the beneficial
owner of Million Wave. The amount of rental paid
by the Group for the current year in respect of
leasing of the properties amounted to HK$1,033,000
(2019: HK$1,106,000), which has been included
in “administrative expenses” on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, a property was
rented by the Group from Mr. Hui, for the use by a
director of subsidiaries of the Company, Mr. Poon Sui
Hong, as accommodation. The total rental paid by the
Group amounted to HK$444,000 in respect of each of
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

Outstanding balances with a joint venture

Details of the loan to a joint venture granted by the
Group as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Outstanding balance with the spouse of a
subsidiary’s director

Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2020 is amount due to the
spouse of Mr. Hui amounted to HK$14,453,000 (2019:
HK$9,813,000) which is unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

Outstanding balance with the subsidiary’s
director

Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2020 is amount due to Mr. Yu Wing
Lung, a director of subsidiary of the Company, amounted
to HK$572,000 (2019: HK$Nil), which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

40. FAEANLX S

B Itk

ERAVBHRREME D AFL
ZRZHN

AEERFAE TSRS

BALZRS:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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HAATETMHBATZ
—RBEBEZXS

AEBNE AHE£92,160% 7T M
BREBRAR([BHRE]HEEDYD
¥ ARAMBARESHF o E
EEAMENEZRE A-AE
EAFERBEEMEMINTZ
04 I8 51,033,000 0 (- =
—JLF :1,106,000/& 7T ) - 271
AfreEmRP 2 1TTBAX] -

Bz -_ZEF=A=+—HI1t
FE AEERFEAEHRE—E
ME UHARBWBERARZE
EEKELEREERE-AEE
RBE_T-_ZTF-A=+—H
M _ET—-hAF=ZA=+—HItF
E&FE I HEFE£444,0008 7T °

H—-EHE&EATZREE
HER
AEEET—MAEATAEHR
| HR 2 HERN G AR
RMFEE19 -

H—ZMBATIMNESEE
BZREELR
N-BE-_FEFE=A=+—H H
fib & 5 308 - B AT FUE R B YR
CEERNFLERBZHRE
14,453,000 T (=T — L &F:
9,813,000/ 7T ) * 7% 5K 1 A& &K
B 2B RIEEREER-

HMEBASIEEZKREER
e85
RN-ZTE-_TE=A=+—R0 H
fib & 5 BOIE -~ B AT AUE R B YUR
TEEENARARNMNBARES
K BE 9t A& 2 3K IE572,0007%8 T
(ZE—NF:ZTBL) ZFE
AEELE - B RIRBREE-
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Outstanding balance with the ex-director
Included in other payables, accruals and deposits
received at 31 March 2020 is amount due to Mr. Wong
Hoi Ping, the ex-director of the Company, amounted
to HK$294,000 (2019: HK$NIl) which is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Outstanding balance with an entity related
to the ex-director of the Company

Included in other receivables is the advance to the PRC
entity amounted to HK$691,000 (2019: HK$12,440,000)
which is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand. Mr. Wong Hoi Ping is the ex-director of the
Company. His mother is beneficially interested in this
PRC entity. This advance was partly settled subsequent
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

40. FEANTR S (B)
(e) HEIEFEZKREELR

(f)

R-_T_TF=A=+—H H
b B 5B~ EETRIA R B IR
CEERNAARNESEIEYT
e 7 FIE294,0008 T (— &
—NFE BB ZRERER
B RIEZEREERE-

HMAATHEEHBAZE
BZREELR
HERRERRERR HE S
B 3691,0008 T (T — N F:
12,440,000 7T) + H A EEF -
Tt BRABARERKEE-THYF
EEBARAMESZ -HEEHR
EHTRERAEEE=Em &
BRERRMEBREDDBE-

(9) giii"éﬂkézw

2020 2019

i Jmt 33 —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

Short term employee benefits REEEREN 7,725 8,350

Post-employment benefits RIKER 195 148
Total compensation paid and MEEERAEXMNK

payable to key management FEf 2 Bl & 4858
personnel 7,920 8,498

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions as set out in (a) above
also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

EEMeE—SHBIANGAY
B|RMEI0 -

EXQ@EMRHBAEALRZTE
B ET R A E1AAT BT R E

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. #REEIDZzE&R IR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REEHR SRR T AZKREE
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as LU
follows:
2020 —E-E&
Financial assets TREE
Financial asset
Financial at fair value

assets at fair Financial assets  through other
value through at amortised comprehensive

profit or loss cost income Total
BARE BAREGA
FAEEZ REHERA  HEH2EEA
SHEE HEZSMEE ZEREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET TET
Financial asset at fair value through RARE ALMRERA
other comprehensive income ZEREE o = = =
Trade receivables R BR X - 8,338 - 8,338
Loan and interest receivables B E Z R B A B - 11,129 - 11,129
Financial assets included in prepayments, &t ATB{THIE - 2 & REAM
deposits and other receivables ERFIE e REE - 34,067 - 34,067
Financial asset at fair value through RAREGFABRZEREE
profit or loss 51,022 - - 51,022
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRESED - 28,441 - 28,441
51,022 81,975 - 132,997
Financial liabilities cHBaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R SR A
JIRRZ &M EE
HK$'000
THER
Trade payables FE 1~ BR K 5,113
Financial liabilities included in other ST A ELfth FE < FRIE - FEETRVIE K
payables, accruals and deposits received BEliEezeBEE 61,065
Lease liabilities HER®E 17,075
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREMEER 38,775
122,028

178 Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41. #REMNEIDZ2E€M IR (&)
(Continued)

2019 —E—N
Financial assets SREE
Financial asset
Financial at fair value
assets at fair through other
value through  Financial assets ~ comprehensive
profit or loss  at amortised cost income Total
BARE BRRERA
FABEZ RE KA Hitz2EKA
SREE HELGREE LERBE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET TEL TAEL
Financial asset at fair value through BROABEFALMZEKA
other comprehensive income ZEREE = - 290 290
Trade receivables R BR X = 25,623 = 25,623
Loan and interest receivables U E K B U FI & = 20,022 = 20,022
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATBHE 2 E R EAM
deposits and other receivables EUWFIE ¢ RERE = 100,041 = 100,041
Financial assets at fair value through BRARBHABRZEREE
profit or loss 6,705 = = 6,705
Cash and cash equivalents RBeRBREESED = 13,937 = 13,937
6,705 159,623 290 166,618
Financial liabilities cRMAas
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LR
YRz SR BE
HK$'000
FAT
Trade payables B BRI 7,707
Financial liabilities included in other ST AE A FES FRIE - FEETEIE K
payables, accruals and deposits received BlikecemaE 53,365
Obligation under finance leases & FH & RE 1,546
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T ERITREMEE 20,749
83,367
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. £RiTEHZAREBERARE

180

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's finance team headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
The finance team reports directly to the financial controller.
At each reporting date, the finance team analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial controller.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the
audit committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings as at 31 March 2020 was assessed
to be insignificant.

Financial assets measured at fair value

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss and an unlisted financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are based on
quoted market prices.

The fair values of investments in film production has been
calculated by discounting the cash flow to capture the present
value of the expected future economic benefits to be derived
from the investment, based on an appropriate discount rate.

AEENMBRERE 2B NER
RETERIAQCAENEZRER
BRF -MBNEAERAMGEEER-
REREEH UHNESITERT
AZEBEEPYECEHETMAEER
W A BUE - (R ARG M 5 B BB R it
Eo-HEBENERBERZESSE
FETMRT R AEPHRFEY
FEERER -

TRMEENABZAABRZEMT
ANBERESTEMRS (FFESLB
BUHRE)RAIRBZ SR fG&T
ARAEERBATTERRE:

RZTE_TF=-_A=1t—8 X&H
A2 BRITEREMEE ZENR
A S TEKX

RAREFEZEHMEE

AREFABRREZ ETRERER
AREFAEMEEKRAZIELT
TRMEEZAABLNERTSRES

mwgﬁﬁ

BEXREREZAAENEBIREE
BEEEHReREBRRAGHEE B Z
REMEXZEHRREEN R 2]
BmstE-
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42. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 42. 2T HZAARBERAARE
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) B (5&)
Fair value hierarchy AREER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINAAEER AR BEFEZ SR
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments measured at fair TAZRAREAERR:
value:
Financial assets measured at fair value: BAREFEZESREE:
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE_FF=H=+—H

Fair value measurement using
BUT AXEZA £E

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EETE EETHE IETUEE

BE LTPN 6] BANRE

(B14R) (%524%) (534R) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TERT TERT
Financial assets at fair value through R BT ABHEZ
profit or loss SHEE 5,704 - 45,318 51,022

As at 31 March 2019

R-FE—NF=HA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

BUAT ARHEZD R E
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BEMS  IRABR IEFUEER
SE BARE LIUN ¢

(BE18]) (F281) (E34) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TET TET

Financial asset fair value through BRAREFARMEE
other comprehensive income WAz eREE 290 - - 290

Financial assets at fair value BRAREFABREL

through profit or loss TREE 6,705 - - 6,705
6,995 - - 6,995

=X EEEEEBR AT 2019/2020 F3 181
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42.

43.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Financial liabilities measured at fair value:

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2019: Nil).

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value:

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost
approximate their fair value. The fair value, which included in
Level 3 category, have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing model based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the
discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from
its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

IS
)/

43.

SHIAZARBERAMLE
B (&)

AREER (&)
BAREFEZEREE:
RZZEZZEERZFT—-NLEFE=HAH
=+—8-" mﬁliﬁ%ﬁEﬁEQ
hBEFEZCREE

RER EREENEBABZIAR
B EVEREVREE2R 2 HEE
MEEAXEHEIR (T NF:
&) -

YHEAABHFENEREER
TRAaE:

EERRBBHEANEAEEHNEREE
RemBEcRmEREAREES -
AR AR EERBEHRR S
MEPMZARTEEXNEE &5
BERZBABBARVEFHEER
B A RL IR XK o

B 5 L b IR B R B BUR

AERFEZEcRIABERE RS
EHEY - ZEZeMIATEREAEE
XBERET - AKEBARUER
EENEREZHAMREBERE
EZeREERBRE-

ANEBERMTIAEEZEZRAR AN
ERER EERBRERBDESRR -E
ZeEMLHTETEREZERAR 2K
KB -
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. E@jﬁ)ﬁl%%ﬂﬁ%iﬁim%

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (&)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
Most of the Group’s sales were denominated in United
States dollars while expenditures incurred in the operations
of manufacturing plants and capital expenditures were
denominated in RMB. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. The Group will enter
into a forward currency contract to manage its exchange
rate exposures if needed. Management closely monitors

5 BE = B

AEEEHRZEHRR ZFRER
TREEEMIRZEMIET I
EREEMEL - AKEARBOHE
NETIE MEERFEEFMEL
M REARFAXTIAARKEIIE K
SEREIERQINEH FBEER A
SESELERIT Y -REHEES
WMNEEREEXRRER - EEE LT
ERIIERR IRAREKE-F
ZEEFERINER R

foreign exchange exposure and will further consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

TRE TR RS 8K P 2
ERTE MARBERTEHAA

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the

RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of BEB 2B RT A% BB A EE
the Group's loss before tax and the Group's equity (due to EAEERR (EEKEERBER
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). NELREY) 2 HFRE -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease) in
RMB rate before tax equity*
AR® K]
EBxL# ik )V W+
(FE) (BD) wm, (EY)
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% TET FET
2020 —ECEE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens WETHARERE
against RMB 5 (2,332) (2,332)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WATHAREAE
against RMB (5) 2,332 2,332
2019 ZEB-nE
If Hong Kong dollar weakens WETHARKRE
against RMB 5 (815) (838)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens BT HARBHE
against RMB 5) 815 838

*  Excluding retained profits * NEERE R
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. M5 EMREEEHREEBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

184

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in equity securities measured at FVTPL. For equity
securities measured at FVTPL quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, management of the Group manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The management monitors the price risk
by timely review of investment portfolio and will consider
hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
For sensitivity analysis of equity securities with fair value
measurement categorised within Level 1, the sensitivity rate
is increased to 20% in current year as a result of the volatile
financial market.

If the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
20% (2019: 5%) higher/lower, the post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 March 2020 would decrease/increase by
HK$1,141,000 (2019: decrease/increase by HK$335,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of equity investments at
FVTPL.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties and related parties. It is the Group's policy that all
customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents and financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

H i (548 2 b
AEBRERERANRAAE] AR
a2 BN 58 25 T T b AR AR (B A8 L o
RRERBBMEIZAMARDAREN
BARBRFABRZRAESME
AEBEEE#EAT —BAEA TRME
R REHAERILERR - EEE
FREBRREASEZEERRER
I #5E BN HEER LR ERE -

FREDWDREBENRE BHAE S
ZEAERRARMEE - O BRF1
MzBAAEFENRAEZFGRE
DWME BREBTHERE AFE
HREE LR FFHE20% -

&R T AEWK L TE20% (=
T—NF:5%) ABE_T_TF=
A=+—HLEFE2REEEESS
ABEBEARBEFTABEZBREREZ
AR EEE MR, 01,141,000
T (ZZ— A% R, H335,000
BIT) o

e
AERERERTAEFERHRIFZ
EZTLHEATETRS -AEE
ZHRGHMAREZEENETEERL
BEP HARKBEERERRF LI
AEBFEERBYERIARE WA
SEZZERRARY AEK-

rEBEREMeREE(BRERES &R
EEEDARGFAENRE RER
HtEEFRE s eREE) ZFEM
RAZXZH T ZREESL KARR
MERZF LA ZIKRMEE-
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. M5 EMREEEHREEBUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#&)

Credit risk (Continued) EE R ( Zg)

(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables, (i) EWERA EWERKENK
other receivables and deposits ME - Eﬂﬂﬂéﬂﬂl RERRE
Trade receivables JE W AR
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide AEEERBEAVBEREENE
for expected credit losses for trade receivables ORI EM LA E(E AR
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the P W RS @ﬁﬁ HR¥a A 18
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. BHE)MERERNTERAGEES

BatiRBE -
As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the loss R-ZE-_FTE-A=+t—BRk=
allowance for trade receivables was determined as T-NF=-A=+—H ERKE
follows: FOEBEERERE T SEBEE
F o
Less than
Neither one month to Over
past due three months three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
BHILR
—ERAE g Gl
KM R E =f@An =fEA @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH#ET THERT FTERT
31 March 2020 it et 23
=HA=+-—H
Expected loss rate EHIEEX 0%-5% 0%-20% 80%-100%
Gross carrying amount  BREAA(E 4,408 3,914 2,349 10,671
Loss allowance EERE - 21 2,312 2,333
Less than
Neither  one month to Over
past due  three months  three months
nor impaired past due past due Total
—EBRzE BEER
A HRRE =fEA =f&A st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET FET FHET
31 March 2019 —EB-nE
=HA=+-—H
Expected loss rate EHEEX 0%-5% 0%-20% 80%-100%
Gross carrying amount BRI 8 (E 12,152 5,582 8,209 25,943
Loss allowance EERE - = 320 320

The above expected credit losses also incorporated
forward looking information.

=X EEEEEBR AR 2019/2020 3% 185
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. B EREEER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)
Credit risk (Continued) EERERE (5)

IR

186

(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables, (i) EWER ERERKEWR

other receivables and deposits (Continued) ME HtBERRERRS
(%)

Trade receivables (Continued)) JEWER K (&)
The Group considers the probability of default upon $$.E§Fm%ﬂﬁAﬁﬁuuﬁT%)€
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been ERAOAEE R ERENE
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing HETGHEERRESRENE
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess me R EEE BRI R EG

whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

MEAEESRERREESRL
i AR B AT BE 1 B2 ) 40 R SRS B AR
BEROAREETLER RAEtD
ZRAM ABEAEXFHOATE
ER-UTESEREEMEE:

e internal credit rating; . WEB1E AAT AR
e external credit rating; e  INEMERAFA:
e actual or expected significant adverse changes e ERBAEMKEEHNE

in business, financial or economic conditions that

AR~ B S AR R AN AT IR

are expected to cause a significant change to the R E KR b7 A
customer’s ability to meet its obligations; EREFEEEBRE
EEERE L

o actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the debtor/customer;

J significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the customer, including changes
in the payment status of customer in the Group
and changes in the operating results of the
customer.

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and
deposits

s BBA/BFHKEERR
ERE AN EERELES
RE1L:

s EFBHRBRIAETRE
EEREL BREEAT
FNRBERANE(MNEF
REXENE-

ERE TR EWFE B MR
HBEREE

The Group uses four categories for loan and interest REEBHERER &ngﬁﬂ
receivables, deposits and other receivables which reflect & & H MR 75'5@1.@
their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined Al REEA(E fJf}—LfSA& Rl

for each of those categories. These internal credit risk
ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and

deposits (Continued)
A summary of the

assumptions underpinning the

Group's expected credit loss model is as follows:

Category
Bl

Group's definition
of categories

FRERAENNES

4&%5&@%&5%@&%

EERR (8)
(i) EWERF EREFKREW
AS HEURKERZS

(&)
JEWE R EWFIE - B EW

HARKE (H)
AR EE B BER a0
BRELLT :

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

ERANGEEEREHENEE

Performing

RERE

Underperforming

RARE

Non-performing
KEIR

Write-off

Customers have a low risk of default and a
strong capacity to meet contractual cash
flows

EFMNEVRARRBERENGAORERE
HEE h iRt

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk: significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest
and/or principal repayments are 90 days
past due

15 Bl KR 2 0 69 8 W FRIR - i B HA90K
ERMER/SA% AIBRREERBK
W@

Interest and/or principal repayments are
365 days past due
BASKRERFE R HAE

Interest and/or principal repayments are
two years past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery

BEMEEEANFEREMNAEREN
MER/BEE

12 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
12 months. Expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime

NREANEHER - UREHFERE12EA
ZAMBE BHERENHARRFES

=

Lifetime expected losses

EHRYER

Lifetime expected losses
FHIRHER

Asset is written off

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Loan and interest receivables, other receivables and
deposits (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis.
In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the
Group considers historical loss rates for each category
of deposits and other receivables and adjusts for
forward-looking macroeconomic data.

Management assessed that certain loan and
interest receivables at 31 March 2020 are regarded
non-performing and impairment losses for the year
amounted to HK$9,480,000 (2019: HK$28,844,000) has
been made for those loan and interest receivables
respectively. Save as aforementioned, the Group's
internal credit rating of the remaining deposits and other
receivables were performing. The Group has assessed
that the expected credit loss rate for the remaining loan
and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables
is immaterial under 12 months expected losses method.
Thus no loss allowance for those deposits and other
receivables was recognised.

Concentration of credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk and the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is derived from its trade receivables, loan and
interest receivables, deposits and, other receivables, and
cash deposits at banks.

43. gi%)ﬁlllﬁmﬂa

=l

IR

EEmM (E)

(i)

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report

FEWERER EUREHKEK
ME HtBERRERRS
(%)

JEWE R EWFIE - B EW
HER L (E)

AEEBBNMERBHREEBR
EERBBEANAEEER
BT ERMEEREXE.
AEEHEELZEERRENEME
Ut 3R I8 B JEE S 5 18 =R IF A A AR 1
M REBEBEBIBIEL AR -

EEEFIER_ZE=-_ZEF=A
Zt+—HMBETRERERRER
FEWRARBETRBEERZE
JE WUE SR K FE LR B BIE AR
F [Z 5 B E5 189,480,000 T (=
T — L9 : 28,844,000/ 7T ) B
L EIIN AREBRBTES R
HihE KB ETAIBEEFT
HRBE12EATBBHEBEERE A
E BT EERT EUE 3K & FE U A
B 1% e M E A E W GRIEMN TEH
EEBBERTEN RLEHZ
Le R EMEWKIERRER
B

EFzEREE
AEBEGBEERR UWEAE
ERcmEAEAEEANEER
B 2R B H FE U AR 3K EWTA&
FEURFI B - 1R & K& E fth FE ULER
MIRTTHE ST R
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade receivables, loan and interest receivables,
other receivables and deposits (Continued)

Concentration of credit risk (Continued)

The credit quality of the debtors is assessed based
on their financial positions, past experience and other
factors. The Group has policies in place to ensure
credit terms are granted to reliable debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 23% (2019: 26%) and 68%
(2019: 24%) of the Group's trade receivables were due
from the Group's largest customer and the five largest
customers, respectively, within the Europe, America
and the PRC (including Hong Kong) regions. However,
the Group concludes that the credit risk in relation to
these customers is not significant because they have no
history of default in recent years. The Group's historical
experience in collection of receivables falls within
recorded allowance and the directors do not expect any
additional material impairment on trade receivables, and
receivables from other counterparties.

Receivables that aged less than 360 days substantially
related to various customers that has a good trade
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change quality and the
balance are still considered fully recoverable.

Cash at bank and bank deposits
The table below shows the details of bank deposit
balances maintained at the end of the reporting period:

43. g;%)ﬁlllﬁ"éﬂa = B B R

=

B ()

(i)

FEWERR - EWE R KX ER
ﬁ%fﬁ&@%ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ
=

FEHEERE (&)
BEBANEEZENRERS
Bk AT R EMREE
e fh o N B R B R AR
A SEEBARHEER KR
HHR AR AEE 2 BRERRK
BE23% (ZFE—NF:26%) &
68% (ZZE—NF :24%) 7 BlR
BAEBERBON - EMNRFAE (8
BEB) SR EARARE
F WAEEEETEFREER
BeAM AEBEREEBZSE
EEMEERRYTEKR IHE
HBERDFIJELNLE - RIE
AEEMBEUKRE LS BIRR
HWARBEHAMETHRE  ME
EFEH R R E ¥ F
FRRBEBE TSR REMEME
KRE -

fRiik DIRN3GOH MV E R IBEE &
HERERNEEE RIFR S
MEFABR -REBEER &
ERRBARZEERTIERE
BE AN EREERIEEAE
PHERDRE R 2HKE -

BROTRERBITER
TRIVRR HE R KT EART
TFREHRIFRE

2020 2019

et et 3 3 ZE-NF

Rating HK$'000 HK$'000

R T#ERx FET

Cash at banks and bank deposits A1-A3 28,441 13,937
RITRESRBITHERK A1-A3

=X EREEEEBR AT 2019/2020 £33k 189
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. M %5 e E 1 B R EEBUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Credit risk (Continued) SEEE (%)

(i) Cash at bank and bank deposits (Continued) (i) |MITEERBITER(E)
The rating represents long-term credit rating provided ARERE (—HBIBRRAINGE
by Moody's, an internationally recognised credit rating BB BIRHORBEEN
agency. A rating within the "A” category is judged to B BEMITREETOTAILER
be upper-medium grade and are subject to low credit AWAR B RF EEH - FER
risk under the rating regime of Moody's. Accordingly, RE-BHit - ~EEHERER
management of the Group considers that the credit risk RIRITERRBITERNEER
on the bank balances and bank deposits is limited. RAMR -

Liquidity risk RBESEE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEERAKFUERDESHABITA

a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the ERHESERRER -ZTAZEE

maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets TRTANTREE (WEWENR) 2

(e.g., trade receivables) and projected cash flows from IHMAREB2BARESRE

operations.

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between AEEZERRBEBERRTERN

continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank SEECHERESTEE CRAERT

loans. The Group's policy is to minimise borrowings. G- AEECBRREERIEE-

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at REBRBEHRRE TR

the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual HEEFEZeBREBEIHBANT

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

2020
“BI%E
Over Carrying
On demand 1 year Total amount at
or less than  but less than Over undiscounted 31 March
12 months 5 years 5 years cash flows 2020
At S 33
EER Hil15 XBH Z=ZA=+-H
D128 B BLR5E Bils5E HLREEE By AR (B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER THET TiER TR TiER
Trade payables FERTBR R 5113 - - 5113 5,113
Financial liabilities FTAEMEMRIE
included in other payables, EEFEREKEEZ
accruals, and deposits received & EIEE 61,065 = = 61,065 61,065
Obligations under finance leases i & & E - - - - -
Lease liabilities HEAE 593 2,493 24,555 27,641 17,075
Interest-bearing bank and SEBITREMEE
other borrowings 30,733 8,431 - 39,164 38,775
97,504 10,924 24,555 132,983 122,028
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 43. M5 EMREEEHREEBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (%)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mENESRME (&)
2019
—T-NE

On demand Total Carrying

or less than Over undiscounted amount at

12 months 1 year cash flows 31 March 2019

RZE-NF

JEE k3K AR =ZRA=1+-H

Si1218 A HBiB1F ReneRs MEREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THT TET FET

Trade payables B ER A 7,707 = 7,707 7,707
Financial liabilities FTAH M ER TR

included in other payables, e FERE KRS

accruals, and deposits received ~ Z&FEE 53,365 = 53,365 53,365

Obligations under finance leases B4 & & H&E 1,279 327 1,606 1,546

Lease liabilities HEAE = = - -
Interest-bearing bank and SAERTREMEE

other borrowings 20,962 - 20,962 20,749

83,313 327 83,640 83,367

Capital management EXEHE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019.

AEBEAERZIEZEBRARER
SHEAGRELE ZR I RERRRE
MBERLL R U HEEBRIERK
R{EME-

AEBEFERBEERR 2 ZEMHEEE
REBLMABE - BEFAHEE
AR AEERGHBERFIKHE
Z BB AR R B & AN B 31T T R
- AEEEREXEMIAMEZE
AEXROR- RBE_T_FTER_-
E-NEF=ZA=+-"RHLEFERN T
BEAZBR BRERLBFALEHR

B

=8 e
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FEMBEERME
31 March 2020
—ECEF=A=+—H

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

44, KATIZBHABIRAFT

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EMBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE R 22 30
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZE 104,139 479,311
104,161 479,341
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments and deposits AR RIARIEE - 1,569
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFED 16,763 45
16,763 1,614
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBAE
Other payables and accruals H h & < FRIB R FE 5T
IR 2,302 5,845
Interest-bearing other borrowings FEHMEE 20,513 20,224
22,815 26,069
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) ASSETS mE(BE)EEFE (32,513) (24,455)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERREBDEE
LIABILITIES 98,109 454,886
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Due to subsidiaries ST B A A (26,461) (197,901)
Net assets BEFE 71,648 256,985
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 60,655 40,437
Reserves (note) bt (aE) 10,993 216,548
Total equity ek 71,648 256,985

The Company's statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June

2020 and is signed on its behalf by:

Chung Yuk Lun
EE

Director

EF

ARARNMBMARCEESTEN =
E_EFRNA-tTABHERERET
BUWHATALTRABERE:

Chan Chung Yin Victor

PR 4 24
Director

EBEF

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share premium

GES

ARBZHEEHRELT

Contributed Accumulated

44, KATIZBHBRRAFT (8B)

account surplus losses Total
i 43 ik 1B AR BAEE RitisE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FHET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZZ—NFMA—H 150,675 146,973 (20,911) 276,737
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ FREER 2 HH S 4%
for the year - - (98,589) (98,589)
Issue of shares BITRD 38,400 = = 38,400
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 RZZ-NF=A=+—H
E=F—-nFmWA—H 189,075 146,973 (119,500) 216,548
Loss and total comprehensive expense ~ FREB R EEH T A8
for the year - - (211,349) (211,349)
Issue of shares BTG 8,087 = = 8,087
Share issue expenses R in B 1T X (2,293) = = (2,293)
At 31 March 2020 R=ZZE-ZTF=A=+—H 194,869 146,973 (330,849) 10,993

ARRz@ NBHESEEER
—ANAREZANB (KRR AREH
ATy REBEHBRBE D ®
TRAZR)ZEAEEFEEER
FRKRBERZAREMET AR
ARMEEZCAzEZE REARE

The Company's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the consolidated net asset value of EGL on
8 February 1996, the day on which its entire issued share
capital was acquired by the Company pursuant to the Group
reorganisation referred to in note 36, and the nominal amount
of the Company's shares issued in consideration for such
acquisition. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda —NN—FRFE (KEET)  RAF
(as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is CEABBARETERLTDR TR

distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances. Ho

=X EEEEEBR AR 2019/2020 3% 193



194

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
REeMBHRERMNE

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

45.

46.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transaction after the
end of the reporting period.

On 11 May 2020, Elegance Optical Investments Limited (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (as vendor)
and Healthmark Medical Supply Co., Limited (as purchaser),
entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the vendor has agreed to dispose of and
the purchaser has agreed to purchase an investment property
at the consideration of approximately HK$10,260,000.

Completion of the disposal has not taken place up to the
date of approval of these consolidated financial statements.

Details of the disposal of investment property are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 20 May 2020.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 June

2020.

45.

46.

HBEHREIR

Bk A BT W L A3 5 T B
B AEERBEBREREERT
25

R-ZZE_TFRAAT—B akRE
KREFRAB(RAAR—HHEAEL2A
MEBAR) (EREH)EEBEBERER
mEBERRAR (ERER)FILRKEER
W& Bl - EBFERELENRES
EREBE RKREME KEHNR
10,260,000/ 7T °

EERBZASHRAMBERAY &
AERBEBELESER-

BRHLEREMENFBHERAAA
BMAR—_Z_TFAA_tHZAE:

FEMBRRZME

HEMBBRREN_FT_TF XA
—t+hAH %%%Qﬁt@&&%?lﬁéf’
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Particulars of Properties

MEER
31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location Use

#h 26 ik

REME

Tenure

HE

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AEE
FE{L#ELS

B7, 3rd Floor, Block B, Industrial
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
i I%
NEEEE
B 3 4716-185%
EEITEANE
BEE3IEB7 =

B1, 6th Floor, Block B, Industrial
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BB I%¥
NEEE
B2 H716-185%
XHETXRE
BEEGIEBTE

B5, 4th Floor, Block B, Industrial
Mai Hing Industrial Building,
16-18 Hing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
Hong Kong
BB I%
NERE
B3 A716-185%
EEIHEKRE
BEEAIEBSE

A factory located at Lan Ma Jiao, Industrial
Tang Wen Qian, Xiejiang Town,
Dongguan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

HEERE Ix
REm
el SR B SCAT
B 58 2 BB

Medium

4

Medium

R

Medium

R

Medium

&

100%

100%

100%

55%

SHEXS2RBEEERE QR 2019/2020 F 3k
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Particulars of Properties
MEFER

31 March 2020
—E-TF=A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Location Use

#h 26 ik

REME (15)

Tenure

HE

Applicable
interest of
the Group
AEE
FE{L#ELS

House No. 203 and Vacant
two car parking spaces,
Boulevard Du Lac,

The Beverly Hills,

23 Sam Mun Tsai Road,
Tai Po, New Territories
Hong Kong

HE
RKHE
= PIfF 5 235%

LEZE R L Rl 22
B
2 B E2035: kM A E A1

H

B

Shop 240 on 2nd Floor, Commercial
China Travel Commercial City,
No. 219 Zhong Shun Wu Road,
Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province, The PRC
HEERE [EES
BN T 8K =
LA B&2195%
MR ENE B
24055 4

N/A

Medium

A

Elegance Optical International Holdings Limited 2019/2020 Annual Report
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